
 
 
Gareth Owens LL.B Barrister/Bargyfreithiwr 
Head of Legal and Democratic Services 
Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol a Democrataidd 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 
County Hall, Mold. CH7 6NA 

Tel. 01352 702400 DX 708591 Mold 4 
www.flintshire.gov.uk 

Neuadd y Sir, Yr Wyddgrug. CH7 6NR 
Ffôn 01352 702400 DX 708591 Mold 4 

www.siryfflint.gov.uk 
 

The Council welcomes correspondence in Welsh or English 
Mae'r Cyngor yn croesawau gohebiaeth yn y Cymraeg neu'r Saesneg 

To: Councillors: Aaron Shotton, Kevin Jones, Dave 
Cowans, Michael Priestley, David Smith, Eryl 
Williams, John Wynn Jones, William Gareth 
Roberts, John Chorlton and R.G. Parry   
 

 
CS/CO 

 
6 December, 2012  

 
Ceri Owen 01352 702350 

ceri.owen@flintshire.gov.uk 
 

 
 
Dear Sir / Madam 
 
A meeting of the NORTH WALES RESIDUAL WASTE JOINT COMMITTEE will be 
held in the COUNCIL CHAMBER, COUNTY HALL, MOLD on THURSDAY, 13TH 
DECEMBER, 2012 at 2.00 PM to consider the following items. 
 

Yours faithfully 
 

 
 

Democracy & Governance Manager 
 

A G E N D A 
 
 
1 APOLOGIES  
 

2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 

3 APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS MINUTES (Pages 1 - 6) 
 

4 MATTERS ARISING FROM PREVIOUS MINUTES  
 

5 PROGRESS REPORT (SO REPORT) (Pages 7 - 10) 

Public Document Pack



6 RIR - RISK STATUS UPDATE (SP REPORT) (Pages 11 - 44) 
 

7 COMMUNICATIONS UPDATE (SO REPORT) (Pages 45 - 62) 
 

8 PROCUREMENT UPDATE REPORT (SP REPORT) (Pages 63 - 72) 

 Presentation to be given by Cofely District Energy as part of this agenda item. 
 

9 ANY OTHER BUSINESS  

 



NWRWTP
North Wales Residual Waste Treatment Project

NORTH WALES RESIDUAL WASTE JOINT COMMITTEE

Minutes of the meeting of the Joint Committee held in the Council Chamber, 
Russell House, Churton Road, Rhyl on Wednesday, 1st August, 2012 at 10.30am 

PRESENT 
Councillor Eryl Williams – Denbighshire County Council 

 Councillor Mike Priestley – Conwy County Borough Council 
 Councillor Aaron Shotton – Flintshire County Council 
 Councillor Kevin Jones – Flintshire County Council 
 Councillor W.G. Roberts – Gwynedd County Council 
 Councillor John Wynn Jones – Gwynedd County Council 
 Councillor R.G. Parry – Isle of Anglesey County Council 
 Alex Aldridge – Commissioner for Isle of Anglesey County Council 

ALSO PRESENT 
 Conwy County Borough Council 

Andrew Kirkham 

 Denbighshire County Council 
Steve Parker 

 Flintshire County Council 
Carl Longland, Colin Everett and Louise Pedreschi 

 Gwynedd County Council 
Dilwyn Williams 

 Isle of Anglesey county Council 
Meirion Edwards and Arthur Owen 

 North Wales Residual Waste Treatment Partnership 
Stephen Penny and Chris Cohen 

 Local Partnerships 
Huw Roberts 

 AMEC 
Jonathan Bebb 

 Grant Thornton 
Saeefar Rehman 

Agenda Item 3

Page 1



Due to an accident on the A55 whereby a number of members were held up in 
the traffic queues, it was agreed (with the consent of those held up being 
obtained by telephone) that the meeting would commence but no decisions were 
to be made until all members had arrived, otherwise the meeting would be 
inquorate.

1. APOLOGIES

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Dave Cowans 
(Conwy County Borough Council) and Councillor David Smith 
(Denbighshire County Council). 

2. DECLARATION OF INTEREST 

Councillor Aaron Shotton declared an interest due to raising residents 
concerns, but this was agreed as not being prejudicial. 

Alex Aldridge declared an interest but was confirmed by the Chief 
Executive of Flintshire County Council that it was not prejudicial. 

3. ELECTION OF CHAIR AND VICE-CHAIR 

Nomination put forward, Councillor Eryl Williams, Denbighshire County 
Council to be voted in as Chair.  
RESOLVED-
Councillor Eryl Williams be elected as Chair (decision formalised on 
arrival of members from Gwynedd) for 2012/2013. 

Nomination put forward, Councillor Mike Priestley, Conwy County 
Borough Council to be voted in as Vice-Chair. 
RESOLVED-
Councillor Mike Priestley be elected as Vice-Chair (decision 
formalised on arrival of members from Gwynedd) for 2012/2013. 

4. APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS MINUTES 

The minutes of the meeting of the North Wales Residual Waste Joint 
Committee held on 16th March, 2012 were submitted for approval. 

RESOLVED-
That the minutes of the meeting of the North Wales Residual Waste 
Joint Committee held on 16th March, 2012 be approved as a correct 
record.  (Minutes were approved on arrival of members from 
Gwynedd). 

5. MATTERS ARISING FROM PREVIOUS MINUTES 

Page 2



None.

6. PROGRESS REPORT (SO REPORT) 

The Project Director commenced the presentation of the progress report, 
in the absence of the Project Manager who, unfortunately, was delayed in 
the traffic due to the accident mentioned earlier. When the Project 
Manager and the Gwynedd Members arrived it was confirmed that the 
Gwynedd voting Member had been present for the full presentation at the 
Briefing the previous day and was content to have missed the start.

The Project Director stated that the project was progressing and was 
within budget overall.

Going forward it would be the decision of the Joint Committee regarding 
the participants updated submissions.  The dialogue to be closed in 
October/November.

RESOLVED-
That the content of the report be noted. 

7. RIR – RISK STATUS UPDATE (SP REPORT) 

The Project Director presented the Risk Register Report, which 
highlighted some of the amendments that had been made to reflect the 
current understanding of risks and mitigation measures that were in place. 

The Project Director highlighted the new risks for the benefit of the new 
members.  It was suggested that at future meetings, the Risk Register 
could be shown on the overhead projector for ease of reference for 
members.

RESOLVED-
That subject to the above, the content of the report be noted. 

8. COMMUNICATIONS UPDATE (VERBAL UPDATE AT MEETING) 

The Project Manager updated Members with regard to the communication 
matters concerning the NWRWTP. 

Following discussion it was confirmed the press release to be agreed by 
all via email.  The press release would not contain details and no road 
shows were planned at this stage. 

Members agreed all members of the local authorities were to be informed 
of the information regarding the project and the Chair suggested meeting 
30 minutes prior to the full Council meetings as this would be more 
convenient for members. 

Page 3



The Chief Executive of Flintshire County Council stressed the decision 
made was confidential until notification was received from his office. 

RESOLVED-
The verbal report be noted and the Press Release be agreed as 
above.

EXEMPT ITEMS: LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972, SECTION 100A 
AND SCHEDULE 12A (ACCESS TO INFORMATION 
RESOLVED-
That the Public and Press be excluded from the meeting under the 
provisions of Section 100A of the above Act during consideration the 
following item as it involves the likely disclosure of exempt 
information as defined in Paragraph 14 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of 
the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended). 

9. REFINED ISDS EVALUATION REPORT (SP REPORT ACCOMPANIED 
BY A PRESENTATION BY THE PROJECT TEAM AND ALSO 
EXTERNAL ADVISORS. 

The Project Director presented the report to seek approval by the Joint 
Committee of the NWRWTP refined Invitation to Submit Detailed 
Solutions stage (refined ISDS) evaluation report and to make 
recommendation to the NWRWTP Joint Committee to agree to invite the 
selected Participants to proceed to the next stage of the procurement 
process.

The Chair stated that the project had not started in January 2010, but was 
originally a Welsh Government led project which had started a lot earlier. 
The Chief Executive of Flintshire County Council confirmed the first Joint 
Committee had met in 2008.  The Project Director confirmed he would 
make that point clear. 

The Project Director gave a brief outline of the evaluation processes which 
were undertaken by advisers who were very experienced in the depth of 
technical understanding which had been required for the tenders which 
had been presented.

Presentations on the Environmental, Technical, Financial and Legal 
aspects of the project were given to the joint committee.

RESOLVED-
That:

(a) A further report to be brought for consideration of the Joint 
Committee prior to close of dialogue and to approve the Call for 
final tender documentation. 

Page 4



(b) The Joint Committee approved the two participants, SITA and 
Wheelabarator to be invited to the next stage of the procurement 
process to be considered by the Joint Committee as set out in 
section 9.2 of the report. 

10. ANY OTHER BUSINESS 

None

Date of next meeting – 27th September, 2012 (Caernarfon) 

Page 5



Page 6

This page is intentionally left blank



NNWWRRWWTTPP
NNoorrtthh WWaalleess RReessiidduuaall WWaassttee TTrreeaattmmeenntt PPrroojjeecctt

AGENDA ITEM NUMBER 5

NORTH WALES RESIDUAL WASTE TREATMENT PROJECT  
PROGRESS REPORT 

NORTH WALES RESIDUAL WASTE JOINT COMMITTEE

Date : 13th December 2012

Period: 24th July 2012 to 5th December 2012

PROJECT SUMMARY

To procure a sustainable waste management solution for the 5 local 
authorities in North Wales (Conwy, Denbighshire, Flintshire, Gwynedd and 
Isle of Anglesey) that will assist with the reduction in greenhouse gas 
emissions from landfill and will minimise the tonnage of waste residue sent to 
landfill thus ensuring that the authorities avoid Landfill Allowance Scheme 
(LAS) infraction penalties and meet National Waste Strategy targets. 

PROJECT STATUS

Overall Project 
Status

Amber Following the Joint Committee’s decision on 1 August 
2012 to select Sita UK and Wheelabrator to continue in 
the procurement process, a public announcement was 
made shortly afterwards. The announcement named the 
remaining two bidders and informed the public that both 
bidders propose an energy from waste facility at Deeside 
Industrial Park. 

Dialogue has re-commenced with the two remaining 
bidders on legal, technical and financial aspets. See item 
8 on the agenda for further information. 

Budget status 

Green Provisional outturn for 2012 – 13 up to 30 September 2012 
shows expenditure of £379,764 being an under spend 
against budget of £54,448.

- 1 - 

Agenda Item 5

Page 7



NNWWRRWWTTPP
NNoorrtthh WWaalleess RReessiidduuaall WWaassttee TTrreeaattmmeenntt PPrroojjeecctt

Status Meaning

Green There are no problems; all is progressing well and to plan 

Amber There are some minor/ less significant problems. Action is 
needed in some areas but other parts are progressing 
satisfactory

Red There are significant problems and urgent and decisive 
action is needed. 

ID Activity RAG
status

Comments Forecast Actual

78 The second IAA 
(IAA2) to be 
commenced

Amber This to commence 
once CFT evaluated 
and likely preferred 
bidder is known (and 
the likely contract 
structure is more 
certain).

Spring
2013

83 Report back to 
public and 
respondents with 
results of 
consultation

Green Some key results of 
the consultation were 
used in the 
information pack 

Autumn
2012

Complete

91 Seek legal advice 
following letters 
received about 
the presence of 
one of the bidders 
in the 
procurement
process

Green Bidder de-selected 
and no longer in 
procurement process 

August
2012

Complete

93 Prepare
comprehensive
information pack 
for Members and 
public to be used 
when it is 
appropriate to 
discuss
technology and 
site proposals 

Green Information pack 
produced and 
distributed to 
Members.

June 2012 Complete

94 Prepare and 
schedule
necessary events 

Amber See item 7 on 
agenda.

May 2012 

PROJECT UPDATE – Activities due for completion 23rd July 2012 to 5th December 
2012 (and highlighted longer term actions). 

- 2 - Page 8



NNWWRRWWTTPP
NNoorrtthh WWaalleess RReessiidduuaall WWaassttee TTrreeaattmmeenntt PPrroojjeecctt

/ meetings / drop 
in sessions 
regarding
announcement 
(see 97 above) 

95 Pre CFT 
Documents
drafting

Green Project team and 
advisors to draft CFT 
documentation

November
2012

96 Post ISDS 
dialogue session 
with remaining 
two participants 

Amber Sessions held with 
remaining
participants, and 
further sessions 
scheduled for 
January (see item 8 
on agenda for 
update).

August to 
October
2012

97 De-brief
unsuccessful
bidder

Green Bidder did not take 
up offer of de-brief 

August
2012

Complete

98 Draft readiness to 
close dialogue 
report

Amber Project team draft 
report for PB & JC 
relating to readiness 
to close dialogue

Sep 2012 

99 Project team 
session to review 
project risk 
register ready for 
submission to 
WG as part of 
WG readiness to 
close dialogue 
review

Amber This will happen in 
early 2013 

Oct / Nov 
2012

100 Specialist
advisors to carry 
out heat network 
study in Deeside 
area.

Green Cofely energy have 
commenced work, 
and to give 
presentation to Joint 
Committee (see item 
8 on agenda). 

October / 
November
2012

101 Communications 
strategy for 2013 

Green See item 7 on 
agenda. Once 
feedback is received 
from the Joint 
Committee, the 
strategy can be 
actioned.

December
2013

102 Member sessions Green Invites to be sent to 6 & 7 

- 3 - Page 9



NNWWRRWWTTPP
NNoorrtthh WWaalleess RReessiidduuaall WWaassttee TTrreeaattmmeenntt PPrroojjeecctt

with Health 
Protection
Agency

all Members of all 
partner authorities 

February
2013

103 Arrange
readiness to close 
of review with WG 

Green Set dates for review 
meeting with WG, to 
include sufficient time 
for sign off prior to 
financial year. 

February
2013

KEY RISKS – See item 6 on this agenda. 

- 4 - Page 10



NNWWRRWWTTPP  
NNoorrtthh  WWaalleess  RReessiidduuaall  WWaassttee  TTrreeaattmmeenntt  PPrroojjeecctt    

 

 1 

AGENDA ITEM NO: 6 
 

 
REPORT TO:  NWRWTP JOINT COMMITTEE 
 
DATE:  13 DECEMBER  2012 
 
REPORT BY:   PROJECT DIRECTOR 
 
SUBJECT:    RISK REGISTER REPORT 
 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
  
1.1. The members of the NWRWTP Joint Committee have requested that they 

are provided with an update of the risk register at each meeting of the 
Joint Committee. 

1.2. This report will highlight some of the amendments to the risk register that 
have been made to reflect the current understanding of risks and 
mitigation measures that are in place. 

 

2. BACKGROUND 
 
2.1. The Risk Register will require continual update throughout the project.  

 
3. CONSIDERATIONS 
 
3.1. There are no new risks identified this reporting period.  
3.2. There have been the following  changes to existing risks in this reporting 

period: - 

• PO4 (Policy & regulatory Risk – Change in WG objectives / regulations) 
commentary amended to reflect final Collections, markets and 
infrastructure sector plan publication and risk therefore reduced. 

• SR1 (Strategy risk – change in any participating council’s waste strategy 
or technology / solution preference) commentary amended to reflect 
recent elections within partner authorities. 

• F13 (financial) text amended in relation to R1 and WG funding. 

• PD9 (Utility connections may not be available for the solution),  

• P10 (Differing funding proposals from bidders leads to extended 
procurement period). 

• CO4 (Pressure from lobby groups against the preferred solution and 
location). 

• P12 (Solution offered is not technically viable) commentary all amended 
to reflect solutions being proposed by bidders with reduced risks. 

• PS1 (Regional Waste Plan is in conflict with potential solutions) text 
amended to reflect role of recently published Collections, markets and 
infrastructure sector plan. 

Agenda Item 6

Page 11



NNWWRRWWTTPP  
NNoorrtthh  WWaalleess  RReessiidduuaall  WWaassttee  TTrreeaattmmeenntt  PPrroojjeecctt    

 

 2 

• PS5 (Suitable sites are not in council ownership to support development 
of the solution) commentary amended to reflect the inability to secure 
AAM option on site. 

• W3 (Composition of waste is different from that anticipated) commentary 
amended to reflect the fact that waste composition lies with the 
Contractor and not the Partnership. 

 
3.3. The Top 10 risks (after controls have been put in place) are shown in 

appendix 1. 
 
3.4. The changes this period are shown in appendix 2  
 
3.5. The risk register will continue to be reviewed by the Project Director and 

reported to the Joint Committee at future meetings. 
 
4. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
4.1. That members note the updated risk register for the project.  
 
 
5. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1. Not applicable 
 
 
6. ANTI-POVERTY IMPACT 
 
6.1.   None 
 
 
7. ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT 
 
7.1.  Not applicable 
 
 
8. EQUALITIES IMPACT 
 
8.1.  Not applicable 
 
9. PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS 
 
9.1. Not applicable 
 
10. CONSULTATION REQUIRED 
 
10.1. Not applicable 
 
11. CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN 
 
11.1.  Not applicable 
 

Page 12



NNWWRRWWTTPP  
NNoorrtthh  WWaalleess  RReessiidduuaall  WWaassttee  TTrreeaattmmeenntt  PPrroojjeecctt    

 

 3 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT 1985 
 
Background Documents: 
 
None 
 

Contact Officer: Stephen Penny  NWRWTP 

Page 13



NNWWRRWWTTPP  
NNoorrtthh  WWaalleess  RReessiidduuaall  WWaassttee  TTrreeaattmmeenntt  PPrroojjeecctt    

 

 4 

Appendix 1 Top (Red) risks and issues  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 14



NNWWRRWWTTPP  
NNoorrtthh  WWaalleess  RReessiidduuaall  WWaassttee  TTrreeaattmmeenntt  PPrroojjeecctt    

 

 5 

Appendix 1 Top (Red) risks and issues (continued) 

 
 

P
age 15



NNWWRRWWTTPP  
NNoorrtthh  WWaalleess  RReessiidduuaall  WWaassttee  TTrreeaattmmeenntt  PPrroojjeecctt    

 

 6 

 
Appendix 1 Top (Red) risks and issues (continued) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 16



NNWWRRWWTTPP  
NNoorrtthh  WWaalleess  RReessiidduuaall  WWaassttee  TTrreeaattmmeenntt  PPrroojjeecctt    

 

 7 

 
Appendix 2 Headline Changes this period       

Additional explanatory notes

Impact L'hood Overall Already in Place

Who is 

Managin

g

Not in Place (Proposed)

Who 

will 

Manage

Impa

ct

L'ho

od

Over

all

Finance & Affordability

F13 WG financial support evaporates Project potentially unaffordable 5 3 15

Assurances already received from 

WG that funding is available for 

the project as has been agreed 

previously for project Gwyrdd. 

OBC funding award letter defines 

the conditions for payment of 

funding- this is consistent with the 

Partnership's expectations.

PD PD 5 2 10 Ongoing Sep-12

WG has indicated that in 

the event that any solution 

that may involve energy 

recovery fails to achieve (or 

later loses) R1 energy 

efficiency status, may be at 

risk of losing the WG 

financial support. All 3 

bidders at ISDS stage have 

proposed technologies that 

are above R1 thresholds. 

The technical team are 

looking at this issue to see 

how likely it is that a solution 

could fall below R1 and if so 

under what ciricumstances. 

The team are also looking 

to ensure suitable risk 

allocation with the 

contractor in this respect.

Project Delivery

PD9
Utility connections may not be 

available for the solution

Possible threat to affordability, delay 

to programme
3 3 9

Technical advisors to be tasked to 

ensure ability to secure utility 

connections is understood early in 

the procurement process.

PD 3 2 6 Ongoing Sep-12

Bidders have demonstrated 

that utlity connectiond are 

deliverable.

Communication & stakeholders – failure to proactively engage with key stake holders leading to delays and lack of public support for the proposed solution.

CO4

Pressure from lobby groups/public 

against the preferred solution and 

location.

Alternative solution/site has to be sought, 

increased project development costs, delays 

to project delivery programme, excessive LAS 

costs, impact on Partner Councils reputation

4 5 20

Communication and Engagement 

Strategy drafted and agreed in 

draft form by Communication 

Officer group. To be "live" 

document and therefore updated 

when necessary.

PM Ensure fact based information 

produced to counter mis-information 

or alarmist claims  often put forward 

by lobbyists and campaign groups. PD 4 4 16 Ongoing Sep-12

National campaigners' 

engaging with local 

community councils and 

local communities in 

attempt to build opposition 

to potential solutions.

Procurement Strategy and Process 

P10

Document redacted. The 

Information has been redacted 

as it relates to the financial or 

business affairs of the partners, 

and others in accordance with 

Rule 10 of the Access to 

Information Procedure Rules

P12

Solution offered is not technically viable landfill diversion not obtained, LA's incur 

infraction penalties

5 3 15

LAS infraction fine passed to 

contractor. Technical viability 

scored within Evaluation 

Framework
PD PD 5 1 5 Ongoing Sep-12

All 3 ISOS submissions 

taken through to ISDS stage 

clearly meet partnership's 

landfill diversion 

requirements. All are proven 

technologies with good 

track records.

Review 

Date

Closure 

 Date

IDENTIFYING THE RISK or ISSUE MANAGING THE RISK or ISSUE

ID Risk / Issue (i.e.: Threat to the Project) Consequence

Current Assessment How the risk will be managed and controlled Residual risk 

Impln 

Date

 
 
 
 
 

P
age 17



NNWWRRWWTTPP  
NNoorrtthh  WWaalleess  RReessiidduuaall  WWaassttee  TTrreeaattmmeenntt  PPrroojjeecctt    

 

 8 

 
 
 
 
Appendix 2 Headline Changes this Period 

  

 
 
 
 
 

P
age 18



NNWWRRWWTTPP  
NNoorrtthh  WWaalleess  RReessiidduuaall  WWaassttee  TTrreeaattmmeenntt  PPrroojjeecctt    

 

 9 

 
 
 
 
 
Appendix 2 Headline Changes this Period (continued) 
 
 

 

P
age 19



Page 20

This page is intentionally left blank



RIR

A list of the threats to the success of the project and the action being taken to address these.

Revisions etc.,

Revision Date Version Summary of Changes Distributed

Y/ N

17.02.09 V2.0 All risks scored. Removed (R5, P4) Revised (T2, T3)

20.05.09 V3.0

T4 Split into two risks (A and B). Proposed actions updated by 

SP. Some implimenation dates and allocation of responsibilites 

completed. S5 WRAP Composition survey noted by NC

27.07.09 v4.0

New PS2 and PS3 ralating to stakeholder management and 

planning risk. S9 now remumbered as PS1)

1.9.09 v4.1 New R7 and T8 added

14.10.09 v4.1 Re working N

11.11.09 v4.2

Re working following risk workshop of 5th November 2009. A 

number of additional risk identified. N

20.02.10 v4.3 Risks PS13 and W4 added Y

13.04.10 v4.4

Updates to reflect recent actions commenced to control certain 

risks. Risks updated:- JW1, PD2, PD3, P2, P13, T18 Y

24/05/10 v4.5

updated risk PS5 to reflect increased risk of not securing a site 

for the location of one of the Waste trasnfer stations Y

15/08/10 v4.6

No update required  to in relation to v4.5 - text colour changes 

changed from red to black to reflect these are not new actions 

since last report. Y

15/09/10 v4.7

risks PD13,PD14 & PD 17 Closed as now complete. Risk PS11 

closed as is duplicate of risk CO4. Actions relating to PD15 

updated. Proposed actions moved to in place for some risks. Y

14/10/10 v4.8

W2 risk level and decription changed to reflect discussion held 

at project board meetings of September 2010. Y

09/11/10 v4.9

PO1 ammended to reflect increased risks relating to WAG 

funding availability, New risk F14 relating to WAG FBC, F15 re 

avaliability of funding to support "front end" recycling services. 

W1 ammended to relect risk of partner authoriteis not 

increasing front end recycling levels. Y

14/02/11 v4.10 New PD 20 relating to Participants seeking control of sites. y

22/02/11 v4.11

PD 20 ammended and PO2 due to issue of additional WAG 

guidance y

v4.12 Minor updates on progress y

v4.13 Minor updates on progress y

15/09/11 v4.14

New PS12, F2 ammended to refelct ISDS extension request. 

Other minor updates. Y

14/11/11 v14.15 Ammended PS12 CO4 Y

07/12/11 v4.16 Ammended F13 Y

09/02/12 v4.17 Ammended PO2 Y

01/03/12 v4.18 Minor changes y

01/04/12 v4.19 Updated to reflect stage of procurement process y

30/05/12 v4.20 No changes this period y

05/09/12 v4.21 Ammended PO4,SR1,F13,PD3,CO4,P10,P12,PS1,PS5,W3 Y

Environmental Services: NWRWTP

Risk and Issues Register

This document is only valid on the day it was produced and dated

1 Project Risk and Issues RegisterPage 21



RIR

Approvals This document requires the following approvals.

Name Signature Title Date of Issue Version

Project board

lead project officers

Distribution This document has been distributed to:

Name Title Date of Issue Version

all members of project board

All lead project officers

Author: S. Penny

Version: see version number above

Revision No. see version number above

Status live

2 Project Risk and Issues RegisterPage 22



P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 G
O

A
L

 &
 O

B
J
E

C
T

IV
E

S

G
o
a
l

O
b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 a

n
d
 A

s
s
u
m

p
ti
o
n
s

1
. 

L
A

S
 C

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
: 

T
o
 p

ro
c
u
re

 w
a
s
te

 t
re

a
tm

e
n

t 
c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 a

n
d
/o

r 
in

fr
a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 i
n
 a

 t
im

e
ly

 m
a
n
n
e
r 

th
a
t 

e
n
s
u
re

s
 t

h
e
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

s
' 
lo

n
g
 t

e
rm

 L
A

S
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
re

 a
c
h
ie

v
e
d
.

2
. 

T
o
 m

a
x
im

is
e
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
 r

e
c
o
v
e
ry

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 t

re
a
tm

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 r

e
s
id

u
a
l 
w

a
s
te

.

3
. 

F
u
n
d
in

g
: 

T
o
 e

m
p
lo

y
 t

h
e
 m

o
s
t 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 f
u
n
d
in

g
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 f

o
r 

th
e
 p

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

p
ro

je
c
t.

4
. 

D
e
liv

e
ry

 M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t:

 T
o
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 

a
n
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

m
a
n
a
g
e

m
e
n
t 

re
g
im

e
, 

a
s
 r

e
c
o
n
g
in

s
ie

d
 b

y
 O

G
C

 e
tc

, 
w

it
h
 g

o
o
d
 g

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
, 

e
x
p
lic

it
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
 p

la
n
n
in

g
, 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 u
s
e
 o

f 
a
d
v
is

o
rs

 a
n
d
 a

c
ti
v
e
 r

is
k
 m

in
im

is
a
ti
o
n

.

5
. 

E
x
te

rn
a
l 
S

ta
k
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

: 
T

o
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
 a

n
d
 a

k
n
o
w

le
d
g
e
 t

h
e
 p

e
rc

e
p
ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
e
x
te

rn
a
l 
s
ta

k
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

 (
W

A
G

, 
P

U
K

, 
P

u
b
lic

, 
e
tc

) 
to

 s
h
a
p
e
 a

n
d
 i
n
fl
u
e
n

c
e
 t

h
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

fo
r 

th
e
 b

e
n
e
fi
t 

o
f 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
je

c
t.

6
. 

In
te

rn
a
l 
S

ta
k
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

: 
T

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

in
te

rn
a
l 
s
ta

k
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

 a
re

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
ly

 a
w

a
re

 o
f 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
a
c
ts

 o
f 

th
e
 f

u
tu

re
 i
m

p
a
c
ts

 o
f 

w
a
s
te

 m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 t

o
 m

a
in

ta
in

 t
h
e
ir
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

th
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

o
v
e
r 

it
s
 t

e
rm

.

7
. 

V
a
lu

e
: 

T
o
 m

a
in

ta
in

 m
a
rk

e
t 

in
te

re
s
t 

th
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
o
ro

u
g
h
 e

n
g
a
g
e

m
e
n
t 

o
f 

s
u
p
p
lie

rs
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 (

b
y
 t

h
e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

) 
o
f 

a
n
 a

d
e

q
u

a
te

 s
u
it
a
b
le

 s
it
e
(s

).

8
. 
A

 s
in

g
le

 c
o
m

m
o
n
 g

a
te

 f
e
e
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 p

o
in

t 
o
f 

re
c
e
ip

t 
fo

r 
a
ll 

P
a
rt

n
e
r 

A
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
.

T
o

 p
ro

c
u

re
 a

 l
o

n
g

 t
e
rm

 w
a
s
te

 m
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
c
o

n
tr

a
c
t 

to
 t

re
a
t 

th
e
 r

e
s
id

u
a
l 

w
a

s
te

 f
in

e
s
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 f

iv
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

s
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e
 t

h
e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 t
h

a
t 

w
il

l 
a
ll
o

w
 t

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 t
o

 b
e
 c

o
m

p
li

a
n

t 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 W

A
G

 N
a
ti

o
n

a
l 

W
a
s
te

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
.

Page 23



R
IR

 4
.1

9
R

is
k
 a

n
d
 I

s
s
u
e
s
 R

e
g
is

te
r

0
6
/1

2
/1

2

A
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
e
x
p
la

n
a
to

ry
 n

o
te

s

Im
p
a
c
t

L
'h

o
o
d

O
v
e
ra

ll
A

lr
e
a
d
y
 i
n
 P

la
c
e

W
h
o
 i
s
 

M
a
n
a
g
in

g

N
o
t 

in
 P

la
c
e
 (

P
ro

p
o
s
e
d
)

W
h
o
 w

ill
 

M
a
n
a
g
e

Im
p
a

c
t

L
'h

o

o
d

O
v
e
r

a
ll

P
O

4

C
h
a
n
g
e
 i
n
 l
e
g
is

la
ti
o
n
 o

r 
g
u
id

a
n
c
e
 

e
it
h
e
r 

a
t 

E
u
ro

p
e
a
n
, 

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
o
r 

R
e
g
io

n
a
l/
L
o
c
a
l 
le

v
e
l

C
o
u
ld

 r
e
q
u
ir
e
 r

e
v
is

it
 o

f 
p
re

fe
rr

e
d
 

s
o
lu

ti
o
n
, 

p
o
s
s
ib

le
 t

e
rm

in
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 

p
ro

je
c
t,

 e
x
c
e
s
s
iv

e
 L

A
S

 c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 

c
o
s
ts

4
5

2
0

K
e
e
p
 i
n
 c

lo
s
e
 c

o
n
ta

c
t 

w
it
h
 W

G
 t

o
 

e
n
s
u
re

 p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
p
o
lic

y
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 

th
a
t 

m
a
y
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
n
 t

h
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

a
re

 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 e

a
rl
y
.

P
D

L
o
b
b
y
 W

G
 a

n
d
 l
ia

is
e
 w

it
h
 W

L
G

A
 o

n
 

th
is

 i
s
s
u
e
. 

P
D

 
4

3
1
2

O
n
g
o
in

g
S

e
p
-1

2

W
G

 h
a
v
e
 n

o
w

 c
la

ri
fi
e
d
 t

h
e
 

p
o
s
it
io

n
 o

n
 u

s
e
 o

f 
IB

A
 

(B
o
tt

o
m

 a
s
h
) 

s
o
 t

h
e
 

lik
e
lih

o
o
d
 o

f 
p
o
lic

y
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 i
n
 

re
la

ti
o
n
 t

o
 t

h
is

 h
a
s
 r

e
d
u
c
e
d
. 

T
h
e
 i
n
it
ia

l 
d
ra

ft
 o

f 
th

e
 C

IM
 

(c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
s
, 

m
a
rk

e
ts

 a
n
d
 

in
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 p

la
n
 c

o
n
ta

in
e
d
 

a
 p

a
s
s
in

g
 r

e
fe

re
n
c
e
 t

o
 

c
h
a
n
g
in

g
 t

h
e
 t

a
x
 r

e
g
im

e
 f

o
r 

re
c
o
v
e
ry

 o
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 

w
a
s
te

 t
o
 e

n
e
rg

y
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

m
a
n
y
 o

p
ti
o
n
s
 o

p
e
n
 t

o
 W

G
. 

T
h
e
 f

in
a
l 
p
u
b
lic

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 

C
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 

In
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 P

la
n
 h

a
s
 

re
m

o
v
e
d
 a

n
y
 r

e
fe

re
n
c
e
 t

o
 

th
is

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
re

fo
re

 a
n
y
 

u
n
c
e
rt

a
in

ti
e
s
 i
n
 t

h
is

 a
re

a
 

h
a
v
e
 r

e
d
u
c
e
d
.

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 r

is
k
 –

 c
h

a
n

g
e
 i

n
 a

n
y
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti

n
g

 c
o

u
n

c
il

’s
 w

a
s
te

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 o

r 
te

c
h

n
o

lo
g

y
 /

 s
o

lu
ti

o
n

 p
re

fe
re

n
c
e

S
R

 1

A
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 i
n
 a

n
y
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
n
g
 c

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 

w
a
s
te

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 o

r 
te

c
h
n
o
lo

g
y
 /

 s
o
lu

ti
o
n
 

p
re

fe
re

n
c
e
 b

y
 a

n
y
 o

f 
th

e
 p

a
rt

n
e
r 

a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s

4
4

1
6

E
x
is

ti
n
g
 M

W
M

S
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
. 

Im
p
a
rt

ia
l 

o
p
ti
o
n
s
 a

p
p
ra

is
a
l 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 

o
u
t 

to
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 r
e
fe

re
n
c
e
 s

o
lu

ti
o
n
 

(b
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 W

G
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
e
v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 

fr
a
m

e
w

o
rk

).
 M

u
lt
i 
p
a
rt

n
e
r 

a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 

o
ff

ic
e
r 

in
p
u
t 

to
 t

h
is

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
.

O
n
g
o
in

g
 c

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 t

o
 p

a
rt

n
e
r 

a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 o

n
 

n
e
e
d
 f

o
r 

th
e
 p

ro
je

c
t,

 t
e
c
h
n
o
lo

g
ie

s
, 

b
e
n
e
fi
ts

 o
f 

a
d
o
p
te

d
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 a

n
d
 

a
 t

e
c
h
n
o
lo

g
y
 n

e
u
tr

a
l 
p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
.

P
M

 &
 

p
a
rt

n
e
r

a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e

s

4
3

1
2

O
n
g
o
in

g
S

e
p
-1

2

E
le

c
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 2

0
1
2
 h

a
v
e
 

b
ro

u
g
h
t 

a
b
o
u
t 

c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 i
n
 

a
d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 m

a
k
e
 u

p
 

o
f 

th
e
 N

W
R

W
T

P
 J

o
in

t 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
. 

 S
u
it
a
b
le

 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 t

o
 b

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 t

o
 

a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
ir
 

m
e
m

b
e
rs

 (
fo

r 
in

s
ta

n
c
e
 a

n
 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 p

a
c
k
) 

a
n
d
 

b
ri
e
fi
n
g
s
 b

y
 e

x
te

rn
a
l 

a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 E

A
W

 a
n
d
 

H
P

A
 t

o
g
e
th

e
r 

w
it
h
 v

is
it
s
 t

o
 

e
x
is

ti
n
g
 o

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l 
fa

c
ili

ti
e
s
 

to
 b

e
 o

rg
a
n
is

e
d
 d

u
ri
n
g
 2

0
1
2
 

a
n
d
 2

0
1
3
 a

s
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t

o
 

e
n
s
u
re

 f
u
ll 

u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
 o

f 

te
c
h
n
o
lo

g
ie

s
 b

e
in

g
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 

(E
fW

)

A
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
e
x
p
la

n
a
to

ry
 n

o
te

s

Im
p
a
c
t

L
'h

o
o
d

O
v
e
ra

ll
A

lr
e
a
d
y
 i
n
 P

la
c
e

W
h
o
 i
s
 

M
a
n
a
g
in

g

N
o
t 

in
 P

la
c
e
 (

P
ro

p
o
s
e
d
)

W
h
o
 w

ill
 

M
a
n
a
g
e

Im
p
a

c
t

L
'h

o

o
d

O
v
e
r

a
ll

F
in

a
n

c
e
 &

 A
ff

o
rd

a
b

il
it

y

C
o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
c
e

ID
E

N
T

IF
Y

IN
G

 T
H

E
 R

IS
K

 o
r 

IS
S

U
E

M
A

N
A

G
IN

G
 T

H
E

 R
IS

K
 o

r 
IS

S
U

E

ID

C
u
rr

e
n
t 
A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t

H
o
w

 t
h
e
 r

is
k
 w

ill
 b

e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
d
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
tr

o
lle

d
R

e
s
id

u
a
l 
ri
s
k
 

Im
p
ln

D
a
te

R
e
v
ie

w

D
a
te

C
lo

s
u
re

D
a
te

R
is

k
 /

 I
s
s
u
e
 (

i.
e
.:

 T
h
re

a
t 

to
 t

h
e
 P

ro
je

c
t)

ID
E

N
T

IF
Y

IN
G

 T
H

E
 R

IS
K

 o
r 

IS
S

U
E

M
A

N
A

G
IN

G
 T

H
E

 R
IS

K
 o

r 
IS

S
U

E

ID
R

is
k
 /

 I
s
s
u
e
 (

i.
e
.:

 T
h
re

a
t 

to
 t

h
e
 P

ro
je

c
t)

C
o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
c
e

C
u
rr

e
n
t 
A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t

H
o
w

 t
h
e
 r

is
k
 w

ill
 b

e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
d
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
tr

o
lle

d
R

e
s
id

u
a
l 
ri
s
k
 

Im
p
ln

D
a
te

R
e
v
ie

w

D
a
te

C
lo

s
u
re

D
a
te

P
a
g
e
 4

Page 24



R
IR

 4
.1

9
R

is
k
 a

n
d
 I

s
s
u
e
s
 R

e
g
is

te
r

0
6
/1

2
/1

2

F
1
3

W
G

 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 e
v
a
p
o
ra

te
s

P
ro

je
c
t 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
lly

 u
n
a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
5

3
1
5

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
s
 a

lr
e
a
d
y
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 f

ro
m

 

W
G

 t
h
a
t 

fu
n
d
in

g
 i
s
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 f
o
r 

th
e
 

p
ro

je
c
t 

a
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

g
re

e
d
 

p
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 f
o
r 

p
ro

je
c
t 

G
w

y
rd

d
. 

O
B

C
 

fu
n
d
in

g
 a

w
a
rd

 l
e
tt

e
r 

d
e
fi
n
e
s
 t

h
e
 

c
o
n
d
it
io

n
s
 f

o
r 

p
a
y
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

fu
n
d
in

g
- 

th
is

 i
s
 c

o
n
s
is

te
n
t 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

's
 e

x
p
e
c
ta

ti
o
n
s
.

P
D

P
D

5
2

1
0

O
n
g
o
in

g
S

e
p
-1

2

W
G

 h
a
s
 i
n
d
ic

a
te

d
 t

h
a
t 

in
 t

h
e
 

e
v
e
n
t 

th
a
t 

a
n
y
 s

o
lu

ti
o
n
 t

h
a
t 

m
a
y
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
 e

n
e
rg

y
 r

e
c
o
v
e
ry

 

fa
ils

 t
o
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 (

o
r 

la
te

r 

lo
s
e
s
) 

R
1
 e

n
e
rg

y
 e

ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
 

s
ta

tu
s
, 

m
a
y
 b

e
 a

t 
ri
s
k
 o

f 

lo
s
in

g
 t

h
e
 W

G
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

.
A

ll 
3
 b

id
d
e
rs

 a
t 

IS
D

S
 s

ta
g
e
 h

a
v
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 

te
c
h
n
o
lo

g
ie

s
 t

h
a
t 

a
re

 a
b
o
v
e
 

R
1
 t

h
re

s
h
o
ld

s
. 
T

h
e
 t

e
c
h
n
ic

a
l 

te
a
m

 a
re

 l
o
o
k
in

g
 a

t 
th

is
 

is
s
u
e
 t

o
 s

e
e
 h

o
w

 l
ik

e
ly

 i
t 

is
 

th
a
t 

a
 s

o
lu

ti
o
n
 c

o
u
ld

 f
a
ll 

b
e
lo

w
 R

1
 a

n
d
 i
f 

s
o
 u

n
d
e
r 

w
h
a
t 

c
ir
ic

u
m

s
ta

n
c
e
s
. 

T
h
e

te
a
m

 a
re

 a
ls

o
 l
o
o
k
in

g
 t

o
 

e
n
s
u
re

 s
u
it
a
b
le

 r
is

k
 

a
llo

c
a
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 

in
 t

h
is

 r
e
s
p
e
c
t.

P
ro

je
c
t 

D
e
li

v
e
ry

P
D

9
U

ti
lit

y
 c

o
n
n
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 m

a
y
 n

o
t 

b
e
 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

 f
o
r 

th
e
 s

o
lu

ti
o
n

P
o
s
s
ib

le
 t

h
re

a
t 

to
 a

ff
o
rd

a
b
ili

ty
, 

d
e
la

y
 

to
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
3

3
9

T
e
c
h
n
ic

a
l 
a
d
v
is

o
rs

 t
o
 b

e
 t

a
s
k
e
d
 t

o
 

e
n
s
u
re

 a
b
ili

ty
 t

o
 s

e
c
u
re

 u
ti
lit

y
 

c
o
n
n
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 i
s
 u

n
d
e
rs

to
o
d
 e

a
rl
y
 i
n
 t

h
e
 

p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
.

P
D

3
2

6
O

n
g
o
in

g
S

e
p
-1

2

B
id

d
e
rs

 h
a
v
e
 d

e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

d
 

th
a
t 

u
tl
it
y
 c

o
n
n
e
c
ti
o
n
d
 a

re
 

d
e
liv

e
ra

b
le

.

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a
ti

o
n

 &
 s

ta
k
e
h

o
ld

e
rs

 –
 f

a
il

u
re

 t
o

 p
ro

a
c
ti

v
e
ly

 e
n

g
a
g

e
 w

it
h

 k
e
y
 s

ta
k
e
 h

o
ld

e
rs

 l
e
a
d

in
g

 t
o

 d
e
la

y
s
 a

n
d

 l
a
c
k
 o

f 
p

u
b

li
c
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 f

o
r 

th
e
 p

ro
p

o
s
e
d

 s
o

lu
ti

o
n

C
O

4
P

re
s
s
u
re

 f
ro

m
 l
o
b
b
y
 g

ro
u
p
s
/p

u
b
lic

 a
g
a
in

s
t 

th
e
 p

re
fe

rr
e
d
 s

o
lu

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
.

A
lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 s

o
lu

ti
o
n
/s

it
e
 h

a
s
 t

o
 b

e
 s

o
u
g
h
t,

 

in
c
re

a
s
e
d
 p

ro
je

c
t 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

c
o
s
ts

, 
d
e
la

y
s
 t

o
 

p
ro

je
c
t 

d
e
liv

e
ry

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
, 

e
x
c
e
s
s
iv

e
 L

A
S

 

c
o
s
ts

, 
im

p
a
c
t 

o
n
 P

a
rt

n
e
r 

C
o
u
n
c
ils

 r
e
p
u
ta

ti
o
n

4
5

2
0

C
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 E

n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 d

ra
ft

e
d
 a

n
d
 a

g
re

e
d
 i
n
 

d
ra

ft
 f

o
rm

 b
y
 C

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
 

O
ff

ic
e
r 

g
ro

u
p
. 

T
o
 b

e
 "

liv
e
" 

d
o
c
u
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
re

fo
re

 u
p
d
a
te

d
 

w
h
e
n
 n

e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

.

P
M

E
n
s
u
re

 f
a
c
t 

b
a
s
e
d
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 

p
ro

d
u
c
e
d
 t

o
 c

o
u
n
te

r 
m

is
-i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 

o
r 

a
la

rm
is

t 
c
la

im
s
  

o
ft

e
n
 p

u
t 

fo
rw

a
rd

 

b
y
 l
o
b
b
y
is

ts
 a

n
d
 c

a
m

p
a
ig

n
 g

ro
u
p
s
.

P
D

4
4

1
6

O
n
g
o
in

g
S

e
p
-1

2

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
c
a
m

p
a
ig

n
e
rs

' 

e
n
g
a
g
in

g
 w

it
h
 l
o
c
a
l 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 c

o
u
n
c
ils

 a
n
d
 

lo
c
a
l 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 i
n
 a

tt
e
m

p
t 

to
 b

u
ild

 o
p
p
o
s
it
io

n
 t

o
 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
s
o
lu

ti
o
n
s
.

P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 a

n
d

 P
ro

c
e
s
s
 

P
1
0

D
o
c
u
m

e
n
t 

re
d
a
c
te

d
. 

T
h
e
 

In
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
d
a
c
te

d
 a

s
 

it
 r

e
la

te
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
o
r 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 a

ff
a
ir
s
 o

f 
th

e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

, 

a
n
d
 o

th
e
rs

 i
n
 a

c
c
o
rd

a
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 

R
u
le

 1
0
 o

f 
th

e
 A

c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 

In
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 P

ro
c
e
d
u
re

 R
u
le

s

P
1
2

S
o
lu

ti
o
n
 o

ff
e
re

d
 i
s
 n

o
t 

te
c
h
n
ic

a
lly

 v
ia

b
le

la
n
d
fi
ll 

d
iv

e
rs

io
n
 n

o
t 

o
b
ta

in
e
d
, 

L
A

's
 i
n
c
u
r 

in
fr

a
c
ti
o
n
 p

e
n
a
lt
ie

s

5
3

1
5

L
A

S
 i
n
fr

a
c
ti
o
n
 f

in
e
 p

a
s
s
e
d
 t

o
 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
to

r.
 T

e
c
h
n
ic

a
l 
v
ia

b
ili

ty
 

s
c
o
re

d
 w

it
h
in

 E
v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 

F
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

P
D

P
D

5
1

5
O

n
g
o
in

g
S

e
p
-1

2

A
ll 

3
 I

S
O

S
 s

u
b
m

is
s
io

n
s
 

ta
k
e
n
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 t

o
 I

S
D

S
 s

ta
g
e
 

c
le

a
rl
y
 m

e
e
t 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

's
 

la
n
d
fi
ll 

d
iv

e
rs

io
n
 

re
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

.
A

ll 
a
re

 p
ro

v
e
n
 

te
c
h
n
o
lo

g
ie

s
 w

it
h
 g

o
o
d
 t

ra
c
k
 

re
c
o
rd

s
.

A
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
e
x
p
la

n
a
to

ry
 n

o
te

s

Im
p
a
c
t

L
'h

o
o
d

O
v
e
ra

ll
A

lr
e
a
d
y
 i
n
 P

la
c
e

W
h
o
 i
s
 

M
a
n
a
g
in

g

N
o
t 

in
 P

la
c
e
 (

P
ro

p
o
s
e
d
)

W
h
o
 w

ill
 

M
a
n
a
g
e

Im
p
a

c
t

L
'h

o

o
d

O
v
e
r

a
ll

P
la

n
n

in
g

 a
n

d
 p

e
rm

it
ti

n
g

  
-a

b
il

it
y
 t

o
 s

e
c
u

re
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
p

la
n

n
in

g
 a

n
d

 p
e
rm

it
ti

n
g

 o
u

tc
o

m
e
 f

o
r 

s
o

lu
ti

o
n

P
S

1

R
e
g
io

n
a
l 
W

a
s
te

 P
la

n
 i
s
 i
n
 c

o
n
fl
ic

t 
w

it
h
 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
s
o
lu

ti
o
n
s

R
e
d
u
c
e
d
 C

o
m

p
e
ti
ti
o
n
 o

n
 b

id
 p

ro
c
e
s
s

4
3

1
2

P
la

n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 S

it
e
 W

o
rk

s
tr

e
a
m

 h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 s

e
t 

u
p
 t

o
 a

s
s
is

t 
in

 r
e
d
u
c
in

g
 

s
it
e
 a

n
d
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 u

n
c
e
rt

a
in

ty
 a

n
d
 

im
p
ro

v
e
 p

ro
s
p
e
c
ts

 f
o
r 

a
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
 f

o
r 

th
e
 p

ro
je

c
t.

 

N
o
rt

h
 W

a
le

s
 r

e
g
io

n
a
l 
w

a
s
te

 p
la

n
in

g
 

te
a
m

 n
o
w

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
. 

P
D

4
2

8
O

n
g
o
in

g
S

e
p
-1

2

C
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
s
, 

In
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 

a
n
d
 m

a
rk

e
ts

 p
la

n
 n

o
w

 

p
u
b
lis

h
e
d
 b

y
 W

G
. 
A

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 

R
e
g
io

n
a
l 
re

s
id

u
a
l 
w

a
s
te

 

tr
e
a
tm

e
n
t 

c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 c

le
a
rl
y
 

d
e
fi
n
e
d
.

ID
E

N
T

IF
Y

IN
G

 T
H

E
 R

IS
K

 o
r 

IS
S

U
E

M
A

N
A

G
IN

G
 T

H
E

 R
IS

K
 o

r 
IS

S
U

E

ID
R

is
k
 /

 I
s
s
u
e
 (

i.
e
.:

 T
h
re

a
t 

to
 t

h
e
 P

ro
je

c
t)

C
o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
c
e

C
u
rr

e
n
t 
A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t

C
lo

s
u
re

D
a
te

H
o
w

 t
h
e
 r

is
k
 w

ill
 b

e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
d
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
tr

o
lle

d
R

e
s
id

u
a
l 
ri
s
k
 

Im
p
ln

D
a
te

R
e
v
ie

w

D
a
te

P
a
g
e
 5

Page 25



R
IR

 4
.1

9
R

is
k
 a

n
d
 I

s
s
u
e
s
 R

e
g
is

te
r

0
6
/1

2
/1

2

P
S

5

S
u
it
a
b
le

 s
it
e
s
 a

re
 n

o
t 

in
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

o
w

n
e
rs

h
ip

 

to
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 s

o
lu

ti
o
n

P
ro

je
c
t 

d
e
la

y
e
d
 w

h
ils

t 
s
u
it
a
b
le

 s
it
e
s
 a

re
 

s
e
c
u
re

d

5
3

1
5

P
ro

je
c
t 

te
a
m

 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 s

it
e
s
 t

h
a
t 

c
o
u
ld

 b
e
 s

u
it
a
b
le

 f
o
r 

lo
c
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 

b
o
th

 t
h
e
 w

a
s
te

 t
ra

n
s
fe

r 
s
ta

ti
o
n
s
 

a
n
d
 r

e
s
id

u
a
l 
w

a
s
te

 t
re

a
tm

e
n
t 

fa
c
ili

ty
(s

).
 E

x
te

n
s
iv

e
 n

e
g
o
ti
a
ti
o
n
s
 

w
it
h
 l
a
n
d
 o

w
n
e
rs

 o
f 

(f
u
rt

h
e
r)

 

a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
s
it
e
s
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 a

im
 

o
f 

s
e
c
u
ri
n
g
 o

p
ti
o
n
(s

) 
fo

r 
s
it
e
(s

).

P
D

P
D

5
3

1
5

O
n
g
o
in

g
S

e
p
-1

2

A
n
g
le

s
e
y
 A

lu
m

in
iu

m
 s

it
e
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

s
 a

 p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
s
it
e
 

fo
r 

th
e
 l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
 f

a
c
ili

ty
, 

b
u
t 

d
e
s
p
it
e
 e

x
te

n
s
iv

e
 

n
e
g
o
ti
a
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 

e
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

w
it
h
 A

A
M

, 
A

A
M

 

d
e
c
id

e
d
 n

o
t 

to
 m

a
k
e
 t

h
e
 s

it
e
 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

 t
o
 t

h
e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 

a
s
 t

h
e
y
 h

a
d
 o

th
e
r 

u
s
e
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 s

it
e
.

W
a
s
te

s

W
3

C
o
m

p
o
s
it
io

n
 o

f 
w

a
s
te

 i
s
 d

if
fe

re
n
t 

fr
o
m

 t
h
a
t 

a
n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 (

p
o
o
r 

d
a
ta

, 

p
o
lic

y
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
, 

c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 i
n
 

c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
s
)

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 b

e
lo

w
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 l
e
v
e
l,
 

e
x
c
e
s
s
iv

e
 L

A
S

 c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 c

o
s
ts

3
5

1
5

W
a
s
te

 c
o
m

p
o
s
it
io

n
 t

o
 b

e
 m

o
n
it
o
re

d
 

d
u
ri
n
g
 p

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 d

a
ta

 

s
h
a
re

d
 a

t 
C

o
m

p
e
ti
ti
v
e
 D

ia
lo

g
u
e
 t

o
 

in
fo

rm
 s

o
lu

ti
o
n
. 

 A
ll 

W
a
le

s
 W

a
s
te

 

c
o
m

p
o
s
it
io

n
 a

n
a
ly

s
is

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

c
a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

b
y
 W

G
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 W

R
A

P
 

s
tu

d
y
 h

a
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 a

 g
o
o
d
 d

a
ta

 

s
e
t.

 P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
te

c
h
n
o
lo

g
y
 

s
o
lu

ti
o
n
 w

ill
 b

e
 t

e
s
te

d
 a

n
d
 

u
n
d
e
rs

to
o
d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 

p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 t

o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 t
h
e
 

a
b
ili

ty
 o

f 
e
a
c
h
 s

o
lu

ti
o
n
 t

o
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 

w
a
s
te

s
 w

it
h
 c

h
a
n
g
e
d
 c

o
m

p
o
s
it
io

n
.

P
D

3
4

1
2

O
n
g
o
in

g
S

e
p
-1

2

W
a
s
te

 c
o
m

p
o
s
ti
o
n
 r

is
k
 n

o
t 

b
e
in

g
 a

c
c
e
p
te

d
 b

y
 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 -
 r

is
k
 l
ie

s
 w

it
h
 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
to

r

P
a
g
e
 6

Page 26



R
IR

 4
.1

9
R

is
k
s
 a

n
d

 I
s
s
u

e
s
 R

e
g

is
te

r
0

6
/1

2
/1

2

A
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
e

x
p
la

n
a

to
ry

 n
o

te
s

Im
p

a
c
t

L
'h

o
o

d
O

v
e

ra
ll

A
lr
e

a
d

y
 i
n

 P
la

c
e

W
h

o
 i
s
 

M
a

n
a

g
in

g
N

o
t 

in
 P

la
c
e

 (
P

ro
p

o
s
e

d
)

W
h

o
 w

ill
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

Im
p

a
c
t

L
'h

o
o

d
O

v
e

ra
ll

P
o

li
c

y
 &

 r
e

g
u

la
to

ry
 R

is
k

 –
 C

h
a

n
g

e
 i

n
 W

G
 o

b
je

c
ti

v
e

s
 /

 r
e

g
u

la
ti

o
n

s

P
O

1

W
G

 c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

 a
v
a

ila
b

le
 f

o
r 

re
s
id

u
a

l 
w

a
s
te

 t
re

a
tm

e
n

t 

p
ro

je
c
ts

 d
u

e
 t

o
 W

G
 

a
ff

o
rd

a
b

ili
ty

 /
 b

u
d

g
e

ta
ry

 

c
o

n
s
tr

a
in

ts
 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 

e
c
o

n
o

m
ic

 c
lim

a
te

R
e

s
id

u
a

l 
w

a
s
te

 t
re

a
tm

e
n

t 

p
ro

je
c
ts

 b
e

c
o

m
e

 l
e

s
s
 

a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 f

o
r 

p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 

a
n

d
 e

a
c
h

 p
a

rt
n

e
r 

a
u

th
o

ri
ty

5
4

2
0

P
ro

je
c
t 

T
e

a
m

 t
o

 m
o

n
it
o

r 
W

G
 p

o
s
it
io

n
s
 i
n

 t
e

rm
s
 o

f 

b
u

d
g

e
t 

a
v
a

ila
b

ili
ty

 a
n

d
 l
o

b
b

y
 a

t 
m

in
is

te
ri
a

l 
le

v
e

l 
if
 

th
e

re
 a

re
 i
n

d
ic

a
ti
o

n
s
 t

h
a

t 
p

ro
p

o
s
e

d
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 i
s
 t

o
 

b
e

 r
e

d
u

c
e

d

P
D

5
3

1
5

O
n

g
o

in
g

M
a

y
-1

2

P
O

2

W
G

 E
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
ta

l 

p
o

lic
y
 a

n
d

 o
b
je

c
ti
v
e

s
 

c
h

a
n

g
e

P
ro

je
c
t 

is
 n

o
w

 

in
a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
4

5
2

0

K
e

e
p

 i
n

 c
lo

s
e

 c
o

n
ta

c
t 

w
it
h

 W
G

 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 

p
o

lic
y
 c

h
a

n
g

e
s
 t

h
a

t 
m

a
y
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
n

 t
h

e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

a
re

 

id
e

n
ti
fi
e

d
 e

a
rl
y
. 

T
h

e
 P

ro
je

c
t 

te
a

m
 h

a
v
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

 

a
n

d
 s

u
b

m
it
te

d
 a

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 

re
s
p

o
n

s
e

 (
a

p
p

ro
v
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 P
B

 a
n

d
 J

o
in

t 

C
o

m
m

it
te

e
) 

h
ig

h
lig

h
ti
n

g
 t

h
e

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
im

p
a

c
t 

o
f 

s
u

c
h

 a
 t

a
rg

e
t 

o
n

 t
h

e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

a
n

d
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 W

G
 

a
d

d
re

s
s
e

s
 h

o
w

 a
n

y
 s

u
c
h

 t
a

rg
e

t 
is

 r
e

la
te

d
 t

o
 

p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
h

o
u

s
e

h
o

ld
 n

u
m

b
e

rs
 o

f 
p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 g

ro
w

th
 

ra
te

s
 t

h
a

t 
a

u
th

o
ri
ti
e

s
 m

a
y
 b

e
 s

u
b
je

c
t 

to
 i
n

 f
u

tu
re

.
P

D
4

3
1

2
O

n
g

o
in

g
S

e
p

-1
2

W
G

's
 M

u
n

ic
ip

a
l 
S

e
c
to

r 
P

la
n

 (
M

S
P

) 
 a

d
o

p
te

d
 a

 w
a

s
te

 

m
in

im
is

a
ti
o

n
 t

a
rg

e
t 

fo
r 

M
S

W
 w

it
h

 a
 n

e
g

a
ti
v
e
 g

ro
w

th
 

ra
te

 (
re

d
u

c
ti
o

n
) 

o
f 

 -
1

.2
%

 p
a

. 
 T

h
e

 W
G

 M
S

P
 d

o
e

s
 n

o
t

ta
k
e

 a
n

y
 a

c
c
o

u
n

t 
o

f 
in

d
iv

id
u

a
l 
o

r 
p

a
rt

n
e

r 
a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 H
H

 

o
r 

p
o

p
u

la
ti
o

n
 g

ro
w

th
 r

a
te

s
. 

T
h

e
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 h

a
s
 

h
o

w
e

v
e

r 
re

c
e

iv
e

d
 g

u
id

a
n

c
e

 f
ro

m
 W

G
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 i
s
 f

re
e

 t
o

 m
a

k
e

 i
ts

 o
w

n
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

ts
 

a
b

o
u

t 
fu

tu
re

 w
a

s
te

 a
ri
s
in

g
s
 a

s
 t

h
e

 w
a

s
te

 r
e

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 

ta
rg

e
t 

is
 a

s
p

ir
a

ti
o

n
a

l.
 W

G
 h

a
s
 n

o
w

 p
u

b
lis

h
e

d
 g

u
id

a
n

c
e

o
n

 t
h

e
 W

a
s
te

 H
e

ir
a

rc
h

y
. 

T
h

is
 i
s
 v

ie
w

e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 p
ro

je
c
t 

te
a

m
 a

s
 h

e
lp

fu
ll 

a
n

d
 w

ill
 e

n
a

b
le

 t
h

e
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 t

o
 

d
e

m
o

n
s
tr

a
te

 h
o

w
 a

n
y
 s

o
lu

ti
o

n
 t

h
a

t 
c
o

m
e

s
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 

ra
n

k
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 w

a
s
te

 h
e

ir
a

rc
h

y
.

P
O

4

C
h

a
n

g
e

 i
n

 l
e

g
is

la
ti
o

n
 

o
r 

g
u

id
a

n
c
e

 e
it
h

e
r 

a
t 

E
u

ro
p

e
a

n
, 

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
o

r 

R
e

g
io

n
a

l/
L

o
c
a

l 
le

v
e

l

C
o

u
ld

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

 r
e

v
is

it
 

o
f 

p
re

fe
rr

e
d

 s
o

lu
ti
o

n
, 

p
o

s
s
ib

le
 t

e
rm

in
a

ti
o

n
 

o
f 

p
ro

je
c
t,

 e
x
c
e

s
s
iv

e
 

L
A

S
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

 

c
o

s
ts

4
5

2
0

K
e

e
p

 i
n

 c
lo

s
e

 c
o

n
ta

c
t 

w
it
h

 W
G

 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 

p
o

lic
y
 c

h
a

n
g

e
s
 t

h
a

t 
m

a
y
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
n

 t
h

e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

a
re

 

id
e

n
ti
fi
e

d
 e

a
rl
y
.

P
D

L
o

b
b

y
 W

G
 a

n
d

 l
ia

is
e

 w
it
h

 

W
L

G
A

 o
n

 t
h

is
 i
s
s
u

e
. 

P
D

 
4

3
1

2
O

n
g

o
in

g
S

e
p

-1
2

W
G

 h
a

v
e

 n
o

w
 c

la
ri
fi
e

d
 t

h
e

 p
o

s
it
io

n
 o

n
 u

s
e

 o
f 

IB
A

 

(B
o

tt
o

m
 a

s
h

) 
s
o

 t
h

e
 l
ik

e
lih

o
o

d
 o

f 
p

o
lic

y
 c

h
a

n
g

e
 i
n

 

re
la

ti
o

n
 t

o
 t

h
is

 h
a

s
 r

e
d

u
c
e

d
. T

h
e

 i
n

it
ia

l 
d

ra
ft

 o
f 

th
e

 C
IM

 

(c
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
s
, 

m
a

rk
e

ts
 a

n
d

 i
n

fr
a

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 p

la
n

 c
o

n
ta

in
e

d
 

a
 p

a
s
s
in

g
 r

e
fe

re
n

c
e

 t
o

 c
h

a
n

g
in

g
 t

h
e

 t
a

x
 r

e
g

im
e

 f
o

r 

re
c
o

v
e

ry
 o

p
e

ra
ti
o

n
s
 s

u
c
h

 a
s
 w

a
s
te

 t
o

 e
n

e
rg

y
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 

o
f 

m
a

n
y
 o

p
ti
o

n
s
 o

p
e

n
 t

o
 W

G
. 

T
h

e
 f

in
a

l 
p

u
b

lic
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 

th
e

 C
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 I
n

fr
a

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 P

la
n

 h
a

s
 r

e
m

o
v
e

d
 

a
n

y
 r

e
fe

re
n

c
e

 t
o

 t
h

is
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
re

fo
re

 a
n

y
 u

n
c
e

rt
a

in
ti
e

s
 i
n

th
is

 a
re

a
 h

a
v
e

 r
e

d
u

c
e

d
.

A
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
e

x
p
la

n
a

to
ry

 n
o

te
s

Im
p

a
c
t

L
'h

o
o

d
O

v
e

ra
ll

A
lr
e

a
d

y
 i
n

 P
la

c
e

W
h

o
 i
s
 

M
a

n
a

g
in

g
N

o
t 

in
 P

la
c
e

 (
P

ro
p

o
s
e

d
)

W
h

o
 w

ill
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

Im
p

a
c
t

L
'h

o
o

d
O

v
e

ra
ll

F
in

a
n

c
e

 &
 A

ff
o

rd
a

b
il

it
y

F
1

5

P
a

rt
n

e
r 

a
u

th
o

ri
ti
e

s
 f

a
il 

to
 m

a
k
e

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 

p
la

n
s
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt

a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
re

c
y
c
lin

g
 

a
n

d
 c

o
m

p
o

s
ti
n

g
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 t

o
 m

e
e

t 

"f
ro

n
t 

e
n

d
" 

in
c
re

a
s
e

d
 

re
c
y
c
lin

g
 l
e

v
e

ls
 t

h
a

t 

a
re

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

d

F
a

ilu
re

 t
o

 m
e

e
t 

W
G

 

"f
ro

n
t 

e
n

d
" 

re
c
y
c
lin

g
 

a
n

d
 c

o
m

p
o

s
ti
n

g
 

ta
rg

e
ts

 w
it
h

 

in
c
re

a
s
e

d
 r

e
s
id

u
a

l 

w
a

s
te

 a
ri
s
in

g
s
 a

s
 a

 

re
s
u

lt
.

4
4

1
6

P
a

rt
n

e
r 

a
u

th
o

ri
ti
e

s
 t

o
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

 l
o

n
g

 t
e

rm
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 

p
la

n
s
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 e

n
h

a
n

c
e

d
 f

ro
n

t 
e

n
d

 r
e

c
y
c
lin

g
 a

n
d

 

c
o

m
p

o
s
ti
n

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
.

P
a

rt
n

e
r

A
u

th
o

ri
ti
e

s
4

3
1

2
O

n
g

o
in

g
S

e
p

-1
2

W
G

 a
re

 e
n

c
o

u
ra

g
in

g
 a

u
th

o
ri
ti
e

s
 i
n

 W
a

le
s
 t

o
 e

n
te

r 
in

to
 

a
 "

c
h

a
n

g
e

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
" 

w
h

e
re

 W
G

 w
ill

 o
ff

e
r 

a
s
s
is

ta
n

c
e

 t
o

 L
a

s
 t

o
 w

o
rk

 t
o

g
e

th
e
r 

a
n

d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 "
fr

o
n

t 

e
n

d
" 

re
c
y
c
lin

g
 a

n
d

 c
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
.

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
 &

 s
ta

k
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
 –

 f
a

il
u

re
 t

o
 p

ro
a

c
ti

v
e

ly
 e

n
g

a
g

e
 w

it
h

 k
e

y
 s

ta
k

e
 h

o
ld

e
rs

 l
e

a
d

in
g

 t
o

 d
e

la
y

s
 a

n
d

 l
a

c
k

 o
f 

p
u

b
li

c
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 f

o
r 

th
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 s

o
lu

ti
o

n
.

C
O

4

P
re

s
s
u

re
 f

ro
m

 l
o

b
b

y
 

g
ro

u
p

s
/p

u
b

lic
 a

g
a

in
s
t 

th
e

 

p
re

fe
rr

e
d

 s
o

lu
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 

lo
c
a

ti
o

n
.

A
lt
e

rn
a

ti
v
e

 s
o

lu
ti
o

n
/s

it
e

 

h
a

s
 t

o
 b

e
 s

o
u

g
h

t,
 

in
c
re

a
s
e

d
 p

ro
je

c
t 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

c
o

s
ts

, 
d

e
la

y
s

to
 p

ro
je

c
t 

d
e

liv
e

ry
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
, 

e
x
c
e

s
s
iv

e
 

L
A

S
 c

o
s
ts

, 
im

p
a

c
t 

o
n

 

P
a

rt
n

e
r 

C
o

u
n

c
ils

 

re
p

u
ta

ti
o

n

4
5

2
0

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 E
n

g
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 d

ra
ft

e
d

 

a
n

d
 a

g
re

e
d

 i
n

 d
ra

ft
 f

o
rm

 b
y
 C

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti
o

n
 

O
ff

ic
e

r
g
ro

u
p

. 
T

o
 b

e
 "

liv
e

" 
d

o
c
u

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

re
fo

re
 

u
p

d
a

te
d

 w
h

e
n

 n
e

c
e

s
s
a

ry
.

P
M

E
n

s
u

re
 f

a
c
t 

b
a

s
e

d
 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 

p
ro

d
u

c
e

d
 t

o
 c

o
u

n
te

r 
m

is
-

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 o

r 
a

la
rm

is
t 

c
la

im
s

o
ft

e
n

 p
u

t 
fo

rw
a

rd
 b

y
 l
o

b
b

y
is

ts
 

a
n

d
 c

a
m

p
a

ig
n

 g
ro

u
p

s
.

P
D

4
4

1
6

O
n

g
o

in
g

S
e

p
-1

2

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
c
a

m
p

a
ig

n
e

rs
' e

n
g

a
g

in
g

 w
it
h

 l
o

c
a

l 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 

c
o

u
n

c
ils

 a
n

d
 l
o

c
a

l 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 i
n

 a
tt

e
m

p
t 

to
 b

u
ild

 

o
p

p
o

s
it
io

n
 t

o
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
s
o

lu
ti
o

n
s
.

P
la

n
n

in
g

 a
n

d
 p

e
rm

it
ti

n
g

  
-a

b
il

it
y

 t
o

 s
e

c
u

re
 s

u
c

c
e

s
s

fu
l 

p
la

n
n

in
g

 a
n

d
 p

e
rm

it
ti

n
g

 o
u

tc
o

m
e

 f
o

r 
s

o
lu

ti
o

n

P
S

5

S
u

it
a

b
le

 s
it
e

s
 a

re
 n

o
t 

in
 

c
o

u
n

c
il 

o
w

n
e

rs
h

ip
 t

o
 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

th
e

 

s
o

lu
ti
o

n

P
ro

je
c
t 

d
e

la
y
e

d
 w

h
ils

t 

s
u

it
a

b
le

 s
it
e

s
 a

re
 s

e
c
u

re
d

5
3

1
5

P
ro

je
c
t 

te
a

m
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 s

it
e

s
 t

h
a

t 
c
o

u
ld

 b
e

 s
u

it
a

b
le

 

fo
r 

lo
c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
b

o
th

 t
h

e
 w

a
s
te

 t
ra

n
s
fe

r 
s
ta

ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 

re
s
id

u
a

l 
w

a
s
te

 t
re

a
tm

e
n

t 
fa

c
ili

ty
(s

).
 E

x
te

n
s
iv

e
 

n
e

g
o

ti
a

ti
o

n
s
 w

it
h

 l
a

n
d

 o
w

n
e

rs
 o

f 
(f

u
rt

h
e

r)
 

a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
s
it
e

s
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 a

im
 o

f 
s
e

c
u

ri
n

g
 

o
p

ti
o

n
(s

) 
fo

r 
s
it
e

(s
).

P
D

P
D

5
3

1
5

O
n

g
o

in
g

S
e

p
-1

2

A
n

g
le

s
e

y
 A

lu
m

in
iu

m
 s

it
e

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 a

s
 a

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
s
it
e

 

fo
r 

th
e

 l
o

c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

 f
a

c
ili

ty
, 

b
u

t 
d

e
s
p

it
e

 e
x
te

n
s
iv

e
 

n
e

g
o

ti
a

ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 e
n

g
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

w
it
h

 A
A

M
, 
A

A
M

 d
e

c
id

e
d

n
o

t 
to

 m
a

k
e

 t
h

e
 s

it
e

 a
v
a

ila
b

le
 t

o
 t

h
e

 P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 a
s
 

th
e

y
 h

a
d

 o
th

e
r 

u
s
e

s
 f

o
r 

th
e

 s
it
e

.

P
S

1
4

T
h

e
 r

e
c
e

n
t 

is
s
u

e
 o

f 
th

e
 

d
ra

ft
 C

o
lle

c
ti
o

n
s
, 

In
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 a

n
d

 M
a

rk
e

ts
 

S
e

c
to

r 
P

la
n

 (
C

IM
) 

b
y
 W

G
 

h
a

s
 l
e

d
 t

o
 u

n
c
e

rt
a

n
in

ty
 a

s
 

to
 t

h
e

 s
ta

tu
s
 o

f 
th

e
 e

x
is

ti
n

g
 

R
e

g
io

n
a

l 
W

a
s
te

 P
la

n
 

(R
W

P
).

  
T

h
u

s
 t

h
e

 R
W

P
 

m
a

y
 b

e
 g

iv
e

n
 r

e
d

u
c
e

d
 

w
e

ig
h

t 
in

 d
e

te
rm

in
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 

a
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 a

p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

w
a

s
te

 f
a

c
ili

ti
e

s
. 
A

 p
o

lic
y
 

v
a

c
c
u

m
 m

a
y
 t

h
e

re
fo

re
 e

x
is

t 

if
 t

h
is

 i
s
 n

o
t 

a
d

d
re

s
s
e

d
 b

y
 

W
G

.

U
n

s
u

c
c
e

s
s
fu

ll

p
la

n
n

in
g

 a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
4

4
1

6

P
ro

je
c
t 

te
a

m
 a

n
d

 n
o

rt
h

 w
a

le
s
 r

e
g

io
n

a
l 
w

a
s
te

 

p
la

n
n

in
g

 t
e

a
m

 e
n

g
a

g
in

g
 w

it
h

 W
G

 o
n

 t
h

is
 i
s
s
u

e
 t

o
 

e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 f

in
a

l 
is

s
u

e
d

 v
e

rs
io

n
 o

f 
C

o
lle

c
ti
o

n
s
, 

In
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 a

n
d

 M
a

rk
e

ts
 S

e
c
to

r 
P

la
n

 (
C

IM
) 

d
o

e
s
 

n
o

t 
le

a
v
e

 a
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 "

p
o

lic
y
 v

a
c
u

u
m

".
 R

e
g

io
n

a
l 

P
la

n
in

g
 t

e
a

m
 a

n
d

 W
G

 p
la

n
in

g
 t

e
a

m
s
 e

n
g

a
g

e
d

 

w
it
h

 W
G

 W
a

s
te

 P
o

lic
y
 s

e
c
ti
o

n
 t

o
 s

e
e

k
 r

e
q

u
ir
e

d
 

a
m

m
e

n
d

m
e

n
ts

 t
o

 d
ra

ft
 C

IM

P
D

4
3

1
2

O
n

g
o

in
g

S
e

p
-1

2
W

G
's

 p
u

b
lis

h
e

d
 d

ra
ft

  
C

o
lle

c
ti
o

n
s
, 

In
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 a

n
d

 

M
a

rk
e

ts
 S

e
c
to

r 
P

la
n

 (
C

IM
) 

n
o

w
 i
s
s
u

e
d

. S
e

e
 r

is
k
 P

S
1

 

A
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
e

x
p
la

n
a

to
ry

 n
o

te
s

Im
p

a
c
t

L
'h

o
o

d
O

v
e

ra
ll

A
lr
e

a
d

y
 i
n

 P
la

c
e

W
h

o
 i
s
 

M
a

n
a

g
in

g
N

o
t 

in
 P

la
c
e

 (
P

ro
p

o
s
e

d
)

W
h

o
 w

ill
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

Im
p

a
c
t

L
'h

o
o

d
O

v
e

ra
ll

W
a

s
te

s

W
3

C
o

m
p

o
s
it
io

n
 o

f 
w

a
s
te

 

is
 d

if
fe

re
n

t 
fr

o
m

 t
h

a
t 

a
n

ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 (

p
o

o
r 

d
a

ta
, 

p
o

lic
y
 c

h
a

n
g

e
s
, 

c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 i
n

 c
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e

s
)

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 i
s
 b

e
lo

w

re
q

u
ir
e

d
 l
e

v
e

l,
 

e
x
c
e

s
s
iv

e
 L

A
S

 

c
o

m
p

lia
n

c
e

 c
o

s
ts

3
5

1
5

W
a

s
te

 c
o

m
p

o
s
it
io

n
 t

o
 b

e
 m

o
n

it
o

re
d

 d
u

ri
n

g
 

p
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 d
a

ta
 s

h
a

re
d

 a
t 

C
o

m
p

e
ti
ti
v
e

 

D
ia

lo
g

u
e

 t
o

 i
n

fo
rm

 s
o

lu
ti
o

n
. 

 A
ll 

W
a

le
s
 W

a
s
te

 

c
o

m
p

o
s
it
io

n
 a

n
a

ly
s
is

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 o
u

t 
b

y
 W

G
 

th
ro

u
g

h
 W

R
A

P
 s

tu
d

y
 h

a
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 a
 g

o
o

d
 d

a
ta

 

s
e

t.
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 o
f 

te
c
h

n
o

lo
g

y
 s

o
lu

ti
o

n
 w

ill
 b

e
 

te
s
te

d
 a

n
d

 u
n

d
e

rs
to

o
d

 a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 p
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 

p
ro

c
e

s
s
 t

o
 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

 t
h

e
 a

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
e

a
c
h

 s
o

lu
ti
o

n
 t

o
 

p
ro

c
e

s
s
 w

a
s
te

s
 w

it
h

 c
h

a
n

g
e

d
 c

o
m

p
o

s
it
io

n
.

P
D

3
4

1
2

O
n

g
o

in
g

S
e

p
-1

2
W

a
s
te

 c
o

m
p

o
s
ti
o

n
 r

is
k
 n

o
t 

b
e

in
g

 a
c
c
e

p
te

d
 b

y
 

p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 -
 r

is
k
 l
ie

s
 w

it
h

 c
o

n
tr

a
c
to

r 

P
E

1

M
a

rk
e

t/
o

u
tl
e

t 
is

 n
o

t 

a
v
a

ila
b

le
 f

o
r 

o
u

tp
u

ts
 

fr
o

m
 t

h
e

 f
a

c
ili

ty
(s

)

In
c
re

a
s
e

d
 p

ro
je

c
t 

o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
a

l 
c
o

s
ts

, 

in
c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 d
e

m
a

n
d

 

fo
r 

la
n

d
fi
ll 

v
o

id

4
4

1
6

E
n

s
u

re
 m

a
rk

e
t 

d
e

liv
e

ra
b

ili
ty

 d
e

m
o

n
s
tr

a
te

d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 

o
f 

p
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
e

v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
.

P
D

4
3

1
2

O
n

g
o

in
g

S
e

p
-1

2

S
tr

a
te

g
y

 r
is

k
 –

 c
h

a
n

g
e

 i
n

 a
n

y
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti

n
g

 c
o

u
n

c
il

’s
 w

a
s

te
 s

tr
a

te
g

y
 o

r 
te

c
h

n
o

lo
g

y
 /

 s
o

lu
ti

o
n

 p
re

fe
re

n
c

e

S
R

 1

A
 c

h
a

n
g

e
 i
n

 a
n

y
 

p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

ti
n

g
 c

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 

w
a

s
te

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 o

r 

te
c
h

n
o

lo
g

y
 /

 s
o

lu
ti
o

n
 

p
re

fe
re

n
c
e

 b
y
 a

n
y
 o

f 
th

e
 

p
a

rt
n

e
r 

a
u

th
o

ri
ti
e

s
4

4
1

6

E
x
is

ti
n

g
 M

W
M

S
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

. 
Im

p
a

rt
ia

l 
o

p
ti
o

n
s
 

a
p

p
ra

is
a

l 
p

ro
c
e

s
s
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 o
u

t 
to

 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

 r
e

fe
re

n
c
e

 

s
o

lu
ti
o

n
 (

b
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 W

G
 n

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
e

v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
 

fr
a

m
e

w
o

rk
).

 M
u

lt
i 
p

a
rt

n
e

r 
a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 o
ff

ic
e

r 
in

p
u

t 
to

 

th
is

 p
ro

c
e

s
s
. 

 O
n

g
o

in
g

 c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 t

o
 p

a
rt

n
e

r 
a

u
th

o
ri
ti
e

s
 o

n
 n

e
e

d
 f

o
r 

th
e

 

p
ro

je
c
t,

 t
e

c
h

n
o

lo
g

ie
s
, 

b
e

n
e

fi
ts

 o
f 

a
d

o
p

te
d

 

a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 a
n

d
 a

 t
e

c
h

n
o

lo
g

y
 n

e
u

tr
a

l 
p

ro
c
u

re
m

e
n

t 

p
ro

c
e

s
s
.

P
M

 &
 p

a
rt

n
e

r 

a
u

th
o

ri
ti
e

s
4

3
1

2
O

n
g

o
in

g
S

e
p

-1
2

E
le

c
ti
o

n
s
 i
n

 2
0

1
2

 h
a

v
e

 b
ro

u
g

h
t 

a
b

o
u

t 
c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 i
n

 

a
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 m
a

k
e

 u
p

 o
f 

th
e

 N
W

R
W

T
P

 J
o

in
t 

C
o

m
m

it
te

e
. 

 S
u

it
a

b
le

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 t

o
 b

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 t
o

 

a
u

th
o

ri
ti
e

s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
ir
 m

e
m

b
e

rs
 (

fo
r 

in
s
ta

n
c
e

 a
n

 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 p

a
c
k
) 

a
n

d
 b

ri
e

fi
n

g
s
 b

y
 e

x
te

rn
a

l 
a

g
e

n
c
ie

s
 

s
u

c
h

 a
s
 E

A
W

 a
n

d
 H

P
A

 t
o

g
e

th
e

r 
w

it
h

 v
is

it
s
 t

o
 e

x
is

ti
n

g
 

o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
a

l 
fa

c
ili

ti
e

s
 t

o
 b

e
 o

rg
a

n
is

e
d

 d
u

ri
n

g
 2

0
1

2
 a

n
d

 

2
0

1
3

 a
s
 r

e
q

u
ir
e

d
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 f

u
ll 

u
n

d
e

rs
ta

n
d

in
g

 o
f 

te
c
h

n
o

lo
g

ie
s
 b

e
in

g
 p

ro
p

o
s
e

d
 (

E
fW

)

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e

ID
E

N
T

IF
Y

IN
G

 T
H

E
 R

IS
K

 o
r 

IS
S

U
E

M
A

N
A

G
IN

G
 T

H
E

 R
IS

K
 o

r 
IS

S
U

E

H
o

w
 t

h
e

 r
is

k
 w

ill
 b

e
 m

a
n

a
g

e
d

 a
n

d
 c

o
n

tr
o

lle
d

R
e

s
id

u
a

l 
ri
s
k
 a

ft
e

r 
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t

Im
p

ln
 D

a
te

R
e

v
ie

w
 D

a
te

C
lo

s
u

re
 D

a
te

ID

C
lo

s
u

re
 D

a
te

R
is

k
 /

 I
s
s
u

e
 (

i.
e

.:
 T

h
re

a
t 

to
 

th
e

 P
ro

je
c
t)

C
o

n
s
e

q
u

e
n

c
e

C
u

rr
e

n
t 
A

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t

ID
E

N
T

IF
Y

IN
G

 T
H

E
 R

IS
K

 o
r 

IS
S

U
E

Im
p

ln
 D

a
te

M
A

N
A

G
IN

G
 T

H
E

 R
IS

K
 o

r 
IS

S
U

E

ID
R

is
k
 /

 I
s
s
u

e
 (

i.
e

.:
 T

h
re

a
t 

to
 

th
e

 P
ro

je
c
t)

C
o

n
s
e

q
u

e
n

c
e

C
u

rr
e

n
t 
A

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t
H

o
w

 t
h

e
 r

is
k
 w

ill
 b

e
 m

a
n

a
g

e
d

 a
n

d
 c

o
n

tr
o

lle
d

R
e

s
id

u
a

l 
ri
s
k
 a

ft
e

r 
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t

Im
p

ln
 D

a
te

R
e

v
ie

w
 D

a
te

R
e

v
ie

w
 D

a
te

C
lo

s
u

re
 D

a
te

ID
E

N
T

IF
Y

IN
G

 T
H

E
 R

IS
K

 o
r 

IS
S

U
E

M
A

N
A

G
IN

G
 T

H
E

 R
IS

K
 o

r 
IS

S
U

E

ID
R

is
k
 /

 I
s
s
u

e
 (

i.
e

.:
 T

h
re

a
t 

to
 

th
e

 P
ro

je
c
t)

C
o

n
s
e

q
u

e
n

c
e

C
u

rr
e

n
t 
A

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t
H

o
w

 t
h

e
 r

is
k
 w

ill
 b

e
 m

a
n

a
g

e
d

 a
n

d
 c

o
n

tr
o

lle
d

R
e

s
id

u
a

l 
ri
s
k
 a

ft
e

r 
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t

P
a

g
e

 7

Page 27



V
e
rs

io
n
: 

4
.1

9
P

ro
je

c
t 

R
is

k
 I

s
s
u
e
 R

e
g
is

te
r

0
6
/1

2
/1

2

A
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
e
x
p
la

n
a
to

ry
 n

o
te

s

Im
p
a
c
t

L
'h

o
o
d

O
v
e
ra

ll
A

lr
e
a
d
y
 i
n
 P

la
c
e

W
h
o
 i
s
 

M
a
n
a
g
in

g
N

o
t 

in
 P

la
c
e
 (

P
ro

p
o
s
e
d
)

W
h
o
 w

ill
 

M
a
n
a
g
e

Im
p
a
c
t

L
'h

o
o
d

O
v
e
ra

ll

P
o

li
c
y
 &

 r
e
g

u
la

to
ry

 R
is

k
 –

 C
h

a
n

g
e
 i

n
 W

G
 o

b
je

c
ti

v
e
s
 /

 r
e
g

u
la

ti
o

n
s

P
O

1

W
G

 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

 f
o
r 

re
s
id

u
a
l 
w

a
s
te

 

tr
e
a
tm

e
n
t 

p
ro

je
c
ts

 d
u
e
 t

o
 W

G
 

a
ff

o
rd

a
b
ili

ty
 /

 b
u
d
g
e
ta

ry
 

c
o
n
s
tr

a
in

ts
 i
n
 t

h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

e
c
o
n
o
m

ic
 c

lim
a
te

R
e
s
id

u
a
l 
w

a
s
te

 t
re

a
tm

e
n
t 

p
ro

je
c
ts

 b
e
c
o
m

e
 l
e
s
s
 

a
ff

o
rd

a
b
le

 f
o
r 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 

a
n
d
 e

a
c
h
 p

a
rt

n
e
r 

a
u
th

o
ri
ty

5
4

2
0

P
ro

je
c
t 

T
e
a
m

 t
o
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

W
G

 p
o
s
it
io

n
s
 i
n
 t

e
rm

s
 o

f 

b
u
d
g
e
t 

a
v
a
ila

b
ili

ty
 a

n
d
 l
o
b
b

y

a
t 

m
in

is
te

ri
a
l 
le

v
e
l 
if
 t

h
e
re

 

a
re

 i
n
d
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 t

h
a
t 

p
ro

p
o
s
e
d
 f

u
n
d
in

g
 i
s
 t

o
 b

e
 

re
d
u
c
e
d

P
D

5
3

1
5

O
n
g
o
in

g
M

a
y
-1

2

P
O

2

W
G

 E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 

p
o
lic

y
 a

n
d
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 

c
h
a
n
g
e

P
ro

je
c
t 

is
 n

o
w

 

in
a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

4
5

2
0

K
e
e
p
 i
n
 c

lo
s
e
 c

o
n
ta

c
t 

w
it
h
 

W
G

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 

p
o
lic

y
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 t

h
a
t 

m
a
y
 

im
p
a
c
t 

o
n
 t

h
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

a
re

 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 e

a
rl
y
. 

T
h
e
 P

ro
je

c
t 

te
a
m

 h
a
v
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 a

n
d
 

s
u
b
m

it
te

d
 a

 p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 

(a
p
p
ro

v
e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 P

B
 a

n
d
 

J
o
in

t 
C

o
m

m
it
te

e
) 

h
ig

h
lig

h
ti
n
g
 t

h
e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 

im
p
a
c
t 

o
f 

s
u
c
h
 a

 t
a
rg

e
t 

o
n
 

th
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

a
n
d
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 

W
G

 a
d
d
re

s
s
e
s
 h

o
w

 a
n
y
 

s
u
c
h
 t

a
rg

e
t 

is
 r

e
la

te
d
 t

o
 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

 

n
u
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 

p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 

g
ro

w
th

 r
a
te

s
 t

h
a
t 

a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 

m
a
y
 b

e
 s

u
b
je

c
t 

to
 i
n
 f

u
tu

re
.

P
D

4
3

1
2

O
n
g
o
in

g
S

e
p
-1

2

W
G

's
 M

u
n
ic

ip
a
l 
S

e
c
to

r 
P

la
n
 

(M
S

P
) 

 a
d
o
p
te

d
 a

 w
a
s
te

 

m
in

im
is

a
ti
o
n
 t

a
rg

e
t 

fo
r 

M
S

W
 

w
it
h
 a

 n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 g

ro
w

th
 r

a
te

 

(r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
) 

o
f 

 -
1
.2

%
 p

a
. 

 T
h
e
 

W
G

 M
S

P
 d

o
e
s
 n

o
t 

 t
a
k
e
 a

n
y
 

a
c
c
o
u
n
t 

o
f 

in
d
iv

id
u
a
l 
o
r 

p
a
rt

n
e
r 

a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 H
H

 o
r 

p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 g

ro
w

th
 r

a
te

s
. 

T
h
e
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 h
a
s
 h

o
w

e
v
e
r 

re
c
e
iv

e
d
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e
 f

ro
m

 W
G

 

th
a
t 

th
e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 i
s
 f

re
e
 t

o
 

m
a
k
e
 i
ts

 o
w

n
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 

a
b
o
u
t 

fu
tu

re
 w

a
s
te

 a
ri
s
in

g
s
 

a
s
 t

h
e
 w

a
s
te

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 t

a
rg

e
t 

is
 a

s
p
ir
a
ti
o
n
a
l.
 W

G
 h

a
s
 n

o
w

 

p
u
b
lis

h
e
d
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e
 o

n
 t

h
e
 

W
a
s
te

 H
e
ir
a
rc

h
y
. 

T
h
is

 i
s
 

v
ie

w
e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

te
a
m

 a
s
 

h
e
lp

fu
ll 

a
n
d
 w

ill
 e

n
a
b
le

 t
h
e
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 t
o
 d

e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

 

h
o
w

 a
n
y
 s

o
lu

ti
o
n
 t

h
a
t 

c
o
m

e
s
 

fo
rw

a
rd

 r
a
n
k
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 w

a
s
te

 

h
e
ir
a
rc

h
y
.

P
O

4

C
h
a
n
g
e
 i
n
 l
e
g
is

la
ti
o
n
 o

r 

g
u
id

a
n
c
e
 e

it
h
e
r 

a
t 

E
u
ro

p
e
a
n
, 

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
o
r 

R
e
g
io

n
a
l/
L
o
c
a
l 
le

v
e
l

C
o
u
ld

 r
e
q
u
ir
e
 r

e
v
is

it
 

o
f 

p
re

fe
rr

e
d
 s

o
lu

ti
o
n
, 

p
o
s
s
ib

le
 t

e
rm

in
a
ti
o
n
 

o
f 

p
ro

je
c
t,

 e
x
c
e
s
s
iv

e
 

L
A

S
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 

c
o
s
ts

4
5

2
0

K
e
e
p
 i
n
 c

lo
s
e
 c

o
n
ta

c
t 

w
it
h
 

W
G

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 

p
o
lic

y
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 t

h
a
t 

m
a
y
 

im
p
a
c
t 

o
n
 t

h
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

a
re

 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 e

a
rl
y
.

P
D

L
o
b
b
y
 W

G
 a

n
d
 l
ia

is
e
 w

it
h
 W

L
G

A
 

o
n
 t

h
is

 i
s
s
u
e
. 

P
D

 
4

3
1
2

O
n
g
o
in

g
S

e
p
-1

2

W
G

 h
a
v
e
 n

o
w

 c
la

ri
fi
e
d
 t

h
e
 

p
o
s
it
io

n
 o

n
 u

s
e
 o

f 
IB

A
 

(B
o
tt

o
m

 a
s
h
) 

s
o
 t

h
e
 l
ik

e
lih

o
o
d
 

o
f 

p
o
lic

y
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t

o
 

th
is

 h
a
s
 r

e
d
u
c
e
d
. 

T
h
e
 i
n
it
ia

l 

d
ra

ft
 o

f 
th

e
 C

IM
 (

c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
s
, 

m
a
rk

e
ts

 a
n
d
 i
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 

p
la

n
 c

o
n
ta

in
e
d
 a

 p
a
s
s
in

g
 

re
fe

re
n
c
e
 t

o
 c

h
a
n
g
in

g
 t

h
e
 t

a
x
 

re
g
im

e
 f

o
r 

re
c
o
v
e
ry

 

o
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 w

a
s
te

 t
o
 

e
n
e
rg

y
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

m
a
n
y
 

o
p
ti
o
n
s
 o

p
e
n
 t

o
 W

G
. 

T
h
e
 

fi
n
a
l 
p
u
b
lic

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 

C
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 I

n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 

P
la

n
 h

a
s
 r

e
m

o
v
e
d
 a

n
y
 

re
fe

re
n
c
e
 t

o
 t

h
is

 a
n
d
 

th
e
re

fo
re

 a
n
y
 u

n
c
e
rt

a
in

ti
e
s
 i
n
 

th
is

 a
re

a
 h

a
v
e
 r

e
d
u
c
e
d
.

P
O

5

W
G

 f
a
il 

to
 p

ro
v
id

e
 

c
la

ri
ty

 w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
ir
 

s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 o
b
je

c
ti
v
e
s

D
e
la

y
 a

n
d
 l
o
s
s
 o

f 

s
ta

k
e
h
o
ld

e
r 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

3
4

1
2

K
e
e
p
 i
n
 c

lo
s
e
 c

o
n
ta

c
t 

w
it
h
 

W
G

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 

p
o
lic

y
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 t

h
a
t 

m
a
y
 

im
p
a
c
t 

o
n
 t

h
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

a
re

 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 e

a
rl
y
.

P
D

3
3

9
O

n
g
o
in

g
S

e
p
-1

2

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 r

is
k
 –

 c
h

a
n

g
e
 i

n
 a

n
y
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti

n
g

 c
o

u
n

c
il

’s
 w

a
s
te

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 o

r 
te

c
h

n
o

lo
g

y
 /

 s
o

lu
ti

o
n

 p
re

fe
re

n
c
e

R
is

k
 /

 I
s
s
u
e
 (

i.
e
.:

 T
h
re

a
t 

to
 t

h
e
 

P
ro

je
c
t)

ID
R

e
s
id

u
a
l 
ri
s
k
 a

ft
e
r 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

ID
E

N
T

IF
Y

IN
G

 T
H

E
 R

IS
K

 o
r 

IS
S

U
E

M
A

N
A

G
IN

G
 T

H
E

 R
IS

K
 o

r 
IS

S
U

E

H
o
w

 t
h
e
 r

is
k
 w

ill
 b

e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
d
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
tr

o
lle

d
Im

p
ln

 D
a
te

R
e
v
ie

w
 D

a
te

C
lo

s
u
re

 D
a
te

C
u
rr

e
n
t 
A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t

C
o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
c
e

8
P

ro
je

c
t 

R
is

k
s
 a

n
d
 I

s
s
u
e
s
 R

e
g
is

te
r

R
IR

Page 28



V
e
rs

io
n
: 

4
.1

9
P

ro
je

c
t 

R
is

k
 I

s
s
u
e
 R

e
g
is

te
r

0
6
/1

2
/1

2

S
R

 1

A
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 i
n
 a

n
y
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
n
g
 

c
o
u
n
c
il’

s
 w

a
s
te

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 o

r 

te
c
h
n
o
lo

g
y
 /

 s
o
lu

ti
o
n
 

p
re

fe
re

n
c
e
 b

y
 a

n
y
 o

f 
th

e
 

p
a
rt

n
e
r 

a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s

4
4

1
6

E
x
is

ti
n
g
 M

W
M

S
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
. 

Im
p
a
rt

ia
l 
o
p
ti
o
n
s
 a

p
p
ra

is
a
l 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

to
 

id
e
n
ti
fy

 r
e
fe

re
n
c
e
 s

o
lu

ti
o
n
 

(b
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 W

G
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 

e
v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 f

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

).
 M

u
lt
i 

p
a
rt

n
e
r 

a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 o
ff

ic
e
r 

in
p
u
t 

to
 t

h
is

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
.

O
n
g
o
in

g
 c

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 

a
n
d
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 t

o
 p

a
rt

n
e
r 

a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 o

n
 n

e
e
d
 f

o
r 

th
e
 

p
ro

je
c
t,

 t
e
c
h
n
o
lo

g
ie

s
, 

b
e
n
e
fi
ts

 o
f 

a
d
o
p
te

d
 

a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 a

n
d
 a

 t
e
c
h
n
o
lo

g
y
 

n
e
u
tr

a
l 
p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
.

P
M

 &
 p

a
rt

n
e
r 

a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s

4
3

1
2

O
n
g
o
in

g
S

e
p
-1

2

E
le

c
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 2

0
1
2
 h

a
v
e
 

b
ro

u
g
h
t 

a
b
o
u
t 

c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 i
n
 

a
d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 m

a
k
e
 u

p
 

o
f 

th
e
 N

W
R

W
T

P
 J

o
in

t 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
. 

 S
u
it
a
b
le

 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 t

o
 b

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 t

o
 

a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
ir
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

 

(f
o
r 

in
s
ta

n
c
e
 a

n
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 

p
a
c
k
) 

a
n
d
 b

ri
e
fi
n
g
s
 b

y
 

e
x
te

rn
a
l 
a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 

E
A

W
 a

n
d
 H

P
A

 t
o
g
e
th

e
r 

w
it
h
 

v
is

it
s
 t

o
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 o

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l 

fa
c
ili

ti
e
s
 t

o
 b

e
 o

rg
a
n
is

e
d
 

d
u
ri
n
g
 2

0
1
2
 a

n
d
 2

0
1
3
 a

s
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 f
u
ll 

u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
 o

f 

te
c
h
n
o
lo

g
ie

s
 b

e
in

g
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 

(E
fW

)

P
o

li
ti

c
a
l

A
P

1

M
u
lt
i-
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 A
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 l
e
a
d

s

to
 p

ro
tr

a
c
te

d
 d

is
c
u
s
s
io

n
s
 t

o
 

re
s
o
lv

e
 i
s
s
u
e
s

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
c
y
 c

o
s
ts

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
. 

E
n
d
 d

a
te

 n
o
t 

m
e
t.

  
L
A

S
 

p
e
n
a
lt
y
 r

is
k
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
.

3
3

9

P
ro

je
c
t 

P
la

n
 d

e
ta

ili
n
g
 

ti
m

e
s
c
a
le

s
. 

O
B

C
 A

p
p
ro

v
a
ls

 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 m

a
p
p
e
d
 o

u
t 

fo
r 

e
a
c
h
 p

a
rt

n
e
r 

a
u
th

o
ri
ty

. 
O

ff
e

r

o
f 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 f
o
rm

 p
ro

je
c
t 

te
a
m

 a
n
d
 a

d
v
is

o
rs

 i
n
 

a
p
p
ro

v
a
ls

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
. 

IA
A

 

s
e
ts

 o
u
t 

g
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 

a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 r

e
s
e
rv

e
d
 

m
a
tt

e
rs

.

P
M

3
2

6
o
n
g
o
in

g
S

e
p
-1

2

A
P

2

D
e
c
is

io
n
 o

n
 a

w
a
rd

 o
f 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 

is
 m

u
lt
i 
a
u
th

o
ri
ty

S
e
le

c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
C

o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 
is

 

d
e
la

y
e
d
 d

u
e
 t

o
 m

u
lt
i-

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

 I
n
v
o
lv

e
m

e
n
t 

(C
a
b
in

e
t 

P
ro

c
e
s
s
)

4
3

1
2

P
ro

je
c
t 

C
h
a
m

p
io

n
s
 (

te
c
h
n
ic

a
l 

o
ff

ic
e
rs

) 
fr

o
m

 p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
n
g
 

A
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 s

h
a
ll 

b
e
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
d
 i
n
 

e
v
a
lu

a
ti
n
g
 t

h
e
 b

id
s
 

P
D

4
2

8
u
ly

 -
 A

u
g
 2

0
1

S
e
p
-1

2

A
P

4

L
a
c
k
 o

f 
C

o
u
n
c
il 

p
o
lit

ic
a
l 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 w
it
h
in

 o
n
e
 o

r 

m
o
re

 o
f 

th
e
 P

a
rt

n
e
r 

A
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
.

D
e
la

y
s
 t

o
 p

ro
je

c
t,

 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 c

o
s
ts

, 

lo
s
s
 o

f 
c
o
m

p
e
ti
ti
v
e
 

p
re

s
s
u
re

, 
th

re
a
t 

to
 

V
F

M
, 

p
o
s
s
ib

le
 

p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t

c
h
a
lle

n
g
e
, 

o
r 

to
ta

l 

a
b
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
je

c
t

4
3

1
2

IA
A

 s
e
ts

 o
u
r 

g
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 

a
rr

a
n
g
m

e
n
ts

..
 P

ro
v
is

io
n
 o

f 

b
ri
e
fi
n
g
s
 a

n
d
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 t

o
 

p
a
rt

n
e
r 

a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 -

 o
ff

e
re

d
 

p
ro

a
c
ti
v
e
ly

 b
y
 p

ro
je

c
t 

te
a
m

 

a
n
d
 a

d
v
is

o
rs

. 
 O

n
g
o
in

g
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

e
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

o
n
 k

e
y
 p

ro
je

c
t 

p
a
ra

m
e
te

rs
.

L
e
a
d
 c

h
ie

f 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
,

P
ro

je
c
t 

B
o
a
rd

 

m
e
m

b
e
rs

(l
e
a
d
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

 

fo
r 

e
a
c
h
 

p
a
rt

n
e
r

a
u
th

o
ri
ty

)

4
2

8
O

n
g
o
in

g
S

e
p
-1

2
S

e
e
 S

R
1

A
P

5
C

h
a
n
g
e
 i
n
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 i
n
 a

 

C
o
u
n
c
il

M
a
jo

r 
fu

n
d
in

g
 i
s
s
u
e
s

4
3

1
2

O
B

C
 h

a
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

a
ff

o
rd

a
b
ili

ty
 o

f 
p
ro

je
c
t 

a
n
d
 

b
e
n
e
fi
ts

 o
f 

th
e
 r

e
fe

re
n
c
e
 

s
o
lu

ti
o
n
 i
n
 t

e
rm

s
 o

f 
c
o
s
ts

 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t.

L
e
a
d
 c

h
ie

f 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
,

P
ro

je
c
t 

B
o
a
rd

 

m
e
m

b
e
rs

(l
e
a
d
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

 

fo
r 

e
a
c
h
 

p
a
rt

n
e
r

a
u
th

o
ri
ty

)

4
2

8
O

n
g
o
in

g
S

e
p
-1

2

A
P

6
L
o
c
a
l 
G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

re
-

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n

C
o
n
fu

s
io

n
 a

n
d
 

u
n
c
e
rt

a
in

ty
4

4
1
6

T
o
 b

e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
d
 i
f 

a
n
d
 w

h
e
n
 

p
ro

s
p
e
c
t 

o
c
c
u
rs

 d
u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 

p
ro

je
c
t 

p
e
ri
o
d

T
B

C
4

2
8

O
n
g
o
in

g
S

e
p
-1

2

J
o

in
t 

W
o

rk
in

g
 –

 o
n

e
 o

r 
m

o
re

 p
a
rt

n
e
rs

 e
x
it

in
g

 t
h

e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

J
W

1

O
n
e
 o

f 
th

e
 P

a
rt

n
e
r 

L
A

's
 

w
it
h
d
ra

w
 d

u
ri
n
g
 p

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

p
ro

c
e
s
s

N
e
w

 O
J
E

U
 n

o
ti
c
e
 h

a
s
 t

o
 b

e
 

p
la

c
e
d

5
2

1
0

IA
A

 1
 s

ig
n
e
d
 b

y
 p

a
rt

n
e
r 

a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 t

h
a
t 

s
h
o
w

s
 c

le
a
r 

c
o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
c
e
s
 o

f 
A

u
th

o
ri
ti
e

s

le
a
v
in

g
 t

h
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 d

u
ri
n
g
 

a
n
d
 a

ft
e
r 

p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

p
h
a
s
e
.

B
D

5
1

5
O

n
g
o
in

g
S

e
p
-1

2

F
in

a
n

c
e
 &

 A
ff

o
rd

a
b

il
it

y

F
1

L
a
c
k
 o

f 
B

u
d
g
e
t 

p
ro

fi
le

 l
e
a
d
s
 t

o
 

u
n
e
x
p
e
c
te

d
 s

u
rp

lu
s

S
u
rp

lu
s
 i
s
 a

b
s
o
rb

e
d
 a

n
d
 r

e
-

a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d

3
2

6

F
in

a
n
c
e
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

to
 b

e
 

a
p
p
o
in

te
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 t

e
a
m

. 

P
a
y
m

e
n
ts

 b
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

m
ile

s
to

n
e
s
. 

 P
D

 h
a
s
 

u
p
d
a
te

d
 p

ro
je

c
t 

b
u
d
g
e
t 

p
ro

fi
le

. 
P

D
 t

o
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

a
n
d
 

m
a
n
a
g
e

P
D

3
1

3
O

n
g
o
in

g
S

e
p
-1

2

F
2

P
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

d
e
la

y
s
 l
e
a
d
 t

o
 

in
c
re

a
s
e
d
 p

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

c
o
s
ts

 

(d
u
e
 t

o
 e

x
te

n
d
e
d
 p

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
)

L
A

's
 s

e
e
k
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
fu

n
d
in

g
 

o
r 

w
it
h
d
ra

w

1
2

2

A
ff

o
rd

a
b
ili

ty
 e

n
v
e
lo

p
e
 h

a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 a

g
re

e
d
 t

h
a
t 

in
c
lu

d
e
s
 

d
e
la

y
 t

o
 t

h
e
 p

ro
je

c
t

P
D

M
a
n
a
g
e
 p

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

d
e
la

y
s
 b

y
 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 d
e
s
ig

n
 o

f 

p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
. 

P
D

3
3

9
O

n
g
o
in

g
S

e
p
-1

2

D
u
e
 t

o
 r

e
q
u
e
s
t 

fr
o
m

 

p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
n
t 

a
n
d
 e

x
te

n
s
io

n
 t

o
 

th
e
 I

S
D

S
 t

im
e
ta

b
le

 g
iv

e
n
 

(a
p
p
ro

x
 5

 m
o
n
th

s
).

 

9
P

ro
je

c
t 

R
is

k
s
 a

n
d
 I

s
s
u
e
s
 R

e
g
is

te
r

R
IR

Page 29



V
e
rs

io
n
: 

4
.1

9
P

ro
je

c
t 

R
is

k
 I

s
s
u
e
 R

e
g
is

te
r

0
6
/1

2
/1

2

F
3

C
o
m

m
o
d
it
y
 a

n
d
 

c
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 p

ri
c
e
s
 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
tl
y
 

d
u
ri
n
g
 p

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 c

o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 

p
h
a
s
e
s

In
c
re

a
s
e
d
 p

ro
je

c
t 

c
o
s
ts

 a
n
d
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
 

e
x
c
e
e
d
a
n
c
e
 o

f 

a
ff

o
rd

a
b
ili

ty
 e

n
v
e
lo

p
e

4
5

2
0

A
d
v
is

o
rs

 h
a
v
e
 u

ti
lis

e
d
 

c
u
rr

e
n
t 

m
a
rk

e
t 

p
ri
c
in

g
 a

n
d
 

lia
is

in
g
 w

it
h
 W

G
 /

 L
o
c
a
l 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t

o
 

p
ro

je
c
te

d
 c

o
ts

 i
n
 f

u
tu

re
 a

n
d
 

s
e
n
s
ib

le
 a

s
s
u
m

p
ti
o
n
s
 t

o
 b

e
 

m
a
d
e
. 
A

 r
a
n
g
e
 o

f 
s
e
n
s
it
iv

it
y
 

te
s
ts

 c
a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 O

B
C

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 

ra
n
g
e
 o

f 
c
o
s
ts

 u
n
d
e
rs

to
o
d

P
D

4
2

8
O

n
g
o
in

g
S

e
p
-1

2

F
4

L
o
n
g
 t

e
rm

 i
n
te

re
s
t 

ra
te

s
 v

o
la

ti
lit

y
 b

e
y
o
n
d
 

c
u
rr

e
n
t 

a
n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 

le
v
e
ls

In
c
re

a
s
e
d
 p

ro
je

c
t 

c
o
s
ts

 a
n
d
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 

im
p
a
c
t 

o
n
 a

ff
o
rd

a
b
ili

ty
 

e
n
v
e
lo

p
e

3
5

1
5

O
B

C
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
s
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

s
e
n
s
it
iv

it
ie

s
 t

o
 b

e
 m

o
d
e
lle

d
 

to
 i
n
fo

rm
 a

ff
o
rd

a
b
ili

ty
 p

ro
fi
le

.
P

D
3

3
9

O
n
g
o
in

g
S

e
p
-1

2

F
5

T
h
e
 b

id
 p

ri
c
e
s
 a

re
 

o
u
ts

id
e
 o

f 
th

e
 

a
ff

o
rd

a
b
ili

ty
 e

n
v
e
lo

p
e

D
e
la

y
 t

o
 p

ro
je

c
t 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
,

e
x
c
e
s
s
iv

e
 L

A
S

 

c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 c

o
s
ts

, 

e
x
c
e
s
s
iv

e
 c

o
s
ts

 

a
s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 w

it
h
 

s
e
c
u
ri
n
g
 a

n
d
 

im
p
le

m
e
n
ti
n
g
 a

n
 

a
lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 s

o
lu

ti
o
n

4
4

1
6

A
d
v
is

o
rs

 h
a
v
e
 u

ti
lis

e
d
 

c
u
rr

e
n
t 

m
a
rk

e
t 

p
ri
c
in

g
 a

n
d
 

lia
is

in
g
 w

it
h
 W

G
 /

 L
o
c
a
l 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t

o
 

p
ro

je
c
te

d
 c

o
ts

 i
n
 f

u
tu

re
 a

n
d
 

s
e
n
s
ib

le
 a

s
s
u
m

p
ti
o
n
s
 t

o
 b

e
 

m
a
d
e
. 
A

 r
a
n
g
e
 o

f 
s
e
n
s
it
iv

it
y
 

te
s
ts

 c
a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 O

B
C

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 

ra
n
g
e
 o

f 
c
o
s
ts

 u
n
d
e
rs

to
o
d

P
D

H
ig

h
 m

a
rk

e
t 

in
te

re
s
t 

e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
d
 

b
y
 a

c
ti
v
e
 m

a
rk

e
t 

e
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t.

 

P
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 i
s
 t

o
 b

e
 

ru
n
 u

n
d
e
r 

c
o
m

p
e
ti
ti
v
e
 d

ia
lo

g
u
e
 

e
n
a
b
lin

g
 t

h
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 t
o
 s

e
e
k
 

to
 d

ri
v
e
 d

o
w

n
 c

o
s
ts

 o
f 

th
e
 

s
o
lu

ti
o
n
. 

IS
O

S
 s

o
lu

ti
o
n
s
 b

e
lo

w
 

a
ff

o
rd

a
b
ili

ty
 e

n
v
e
lo

p
e
.

P
D

4
2

8
O

n
g
o
in

g
S

e
p
-1

2

B
id

 p
o
s
it
io

n
s
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 a

t 

IS
D

S
 w

e
ll 

w
it
h
in

 a
p
p
ro

v
e
d
 

a
ff

o
rd

a
b
ili

ty
 e

n
v
e
lo

p
e

F
6

P
re

fe
rr

e
d
 s

o
lu

ti
o
n
 i
s
 n

o
t 

b
a
n
k
a
b
le

D
e
la

y
 t

o
 p

ro
je

c
t 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
,

e
x
c
e
s
s
iv

e
 L

A
S

 

c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 c

o
s
ts

, 

e
x
c
e
s
s
iv

e
 c

o
s
ts

 

a
s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 w

it
h
 

s
e
c
u
ri
n
g
 a

n
d
 

im
p
le

m
e
n
ti
n
g
 a

n
 

a
lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 s

o
lu

ti
o
n

5
3

1
5

P
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 w

a
s
 

d
e
s
ig

n
e
d
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

o
n
ly

 

th
o
s
e
 s

o
lu

ti
o
n
s
 c

a
p
a
b
le

 o
f 

d
e
liv

e
ry

 (
e
.g

. 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 

b
a
n
k
a
b
ili

ty
) 

a
re

 c
a
p
a
b
le

 o
f 

b
e
in

g
 

a
w

a
rd

e
d
 t

h
e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t

P
D

5
2

1
0

O
n
g
o
in

g
S

e
p
-1

2

S
o
lu

ti
o
n
s
 b

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 p

ro
v
e
n
 

te
c
h
n
o
lo

g
y
 f

ro
m

 p
ro

v
e
n
 

te
c
h
n
o
lo

g
y
 p

ri
v
id

o
rs

. 

F
7

In
a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 f
u
n
d
in

g
 

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 a

d
o
p
te

d

F
a
ilu

re
, 

d
e
la

y
, 

a
n
d
 

c
o
s
t

4
3

1
2

P
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 t

o
 b

e
 

d
e
s
ig

n
e
d
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

o
n
ly

 

th
o
s
e
 s

o
lu

ti
o
n
s
 c

a
p
a
b
le

 o
f 

d
e
liv

e
ry

 (
e
.g

. 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 f

in
a
n
c
e
 

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 )

 a
re

 c
a
p
a
b
le

 o
f 

b
e
in

g
 

a
w

a
rd

e
d
 t

h
e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t

P
D

4
2

8
O

n
g
o
in

g
S

e
p
-1

2

A
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 f
u
n
d
in

g
 

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
s
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 b

y
 a

ll 
3
 

b
id

d
e
rs

 a
t 

IS
D

S
.

F
8

In
a
d
e
q
u
a
te

 d
u
e
 

d
ili

g
e
n
c
e
 w

h
e
re

 a
 n

o
n
 

p
ro

je
c
t 

fi
n
a
n
c
e
 

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 i
s
 a

d
o
p
te

d

In
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 

p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

c
o
s
t 

a
n
d
 

tr
a
n
s
fe

r 
o
f 

ri
s
k
 t

o
 

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

3
3

9

E
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

a
d
e
q
u
a
te

 a
d
v
ic

e
 i
s
 

ta
k
e
n
 f

ro
m

 W
G

, 
L
o
c
a
l 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
  

a
n
d
 a

d
v
is

o
rs

 s
o
 

th
a
t 

ri
s
k
 o

f 
p
ru

d
e
n
ti
a
l 
b
o
rr

o
w

in
g

o
r 

o
th

e
r 

fi
n
a
n
c
e
 r

o
u
te

 a
re

 w
e
ll 

u
n
d
e
rs

to
o
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
r 

a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
.

P
D

3
2

6
O

n
g
o
in

g
S

e
p
-1

2

F
9

F
o
re

ig
n
 e

x
c
h
a
n
g
e
 r

a
te

 

c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 a

d
v
e
rs

e
ly

A
ff

o
rd

a
b
ili

ty

c
o
m

p
ro

m
is

e
d

4
3

1
2

A
d
v
is

o
rs

 h
a
v
e
 m

a
d
e
 

p
ru

d
e
n
t 

a
s
s
u
m

p
ti
o
n
s
 

(c
h
e
c
k
e
d
 w

it
h
 L

o
c
a
l 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 a

n
d
 W

G
) 

a
n
d
 

c
a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

s
e
n
s
it
iv

it
y
 

a
n
a
ly

s
is

 a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

O
B

C
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

P
D

4
2

8
O

n
g
o
in

g
S

e
p
-1

2

F
1
0

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
a
s
s
u
m

p
ti
o
n
 

in
c
o
rr

e
c
t

R
e
-p

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 

re
d
u
c
e
d
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 

s
e
rv

ic
e

5
3

1
5

A
d
v
is

o
rs

 h
a
v
e
 m

a
d
e
 

p
ru

d
e
n
t 

a
s
s
u
m

p
ti
o
n
s
 

(c
h
e
c
k
e
d
 w

it
h
 L

o
c
a
l 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 a

n
d
 W

G
) 

a
n
d
 

c
a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

s
e
n
s
it
iv

it
y
 

a
n
a
ly

s
is

 a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

O
B

C
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

P
D

4
2

8
O

n
g
o
in

g
S

e
p
-1

2

F
1
1

D
o
c
u
m

e
n
t 

re
d
a
c
te

d
. 

T
h
e
 I

n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 h

a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 r

e
d
a
c
te

d
 a

s
 i
t 

re
la

te
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 

o
r 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 a

ff
a
ir
s
 o

f 

th
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

, 
a
n
d
 

o
th

e
rs

 i
n
 a

c
c
o
rd

a
n
c
e
 

w
it
h
 R

u
le

 1
0
 o

f 
th

e
 

A
c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 I

n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 

P
ro

c
e
d
u
re

 R
u
le

s
C

o
m

m
e
rc

ia
ll

y
 c

o
n

fi
d

e
n

ti
a
l 

- 
n

o
t 

fo
r 

re
le

a
s
e
 u

n
d

e
r 

F
O

I

1
0

P
ro

je
c
t 

R
is

k
s
 a

n
d
 I

s
s
u
e
s
 R

e
g
is

te
r

R
IR

Page 30



V
e
rs

io
n
: 

4
.1

9
P

ro
je

c
t 

R
is

k
 I

s
s
u
e
 R

e
g
is

te
r

0
6
/1

2
/1

2

F
1
2

D
o
c
u
m

e
n
t 

re
d
a
c
te

d
. 

T
h
e
 I

n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 h

a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 r

e
d
a
c
te

d
 a

s
 i
t 

re
la

te
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 

o
r 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 a

ff
a
ir
s
 o

f 

th
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

, 
a
n
d
 

o
th

e
rs

 i
n
 a

c
c
o
rd

a
n
c
e
 

w
it
h
 R

u
le

 1
0
 o

f 
th

e
 

A
c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 I

n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 

P
ro

c
e
d
u
re

 R
u
le

s
C

o
m

m
e
rc

ia
ll

y
 c

o
n

fi
d

e
n

ti
a
l 

- 
n

o
t 

fo
r 

re
le

a
s
e
 u

n
d

e
r 

F
O

I

F
1
3

W
G

 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 

e
v
a
p
o
ra

te
s

P
ro

je
c
t 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
lly

 

u
n
a
ff

o
rd

a
b
le

5
3

1
5

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
s
 a

lr
e
a
d
y
 

re
c
e
iv

e
d
 f

ro
m

 W
G

 t
h
a
t 

fu
n
d
in

g
 i
s
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 f
o
r 

th
e
 

p
ro

je
c
t 

a
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

g
re

e
d
 

p
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 f
o
r 

p
ro

je
c
t 

G
w

y
rd

d
. 

O
B

C
 f

u
n
d
in

g
 

a
w

a
rd

 l
e
tt

e
r 

d
e
fi
n
e
s
 t

h
e
 

c
o
n
d
it
io

n
s
 f

o
r 

p
a
y
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

fu
n
d
in

g
- 

th
is

 i
s
 c

o
n
s
is

te
n
t 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

's
 

e
x
p
e
c
ta

ti
o
n
s
.

P
D

P
D

5
2

1
0

O
n
g
o
in

g
S

e
p
-1

2

W
G

 h
a
s
 i
n
d
ic

a
te

d
 t

h
a
t 

in
 t

h
e
 

e
v
e
n
t 

th
a
t 

a
n
y
 s

o
lu

ti
o
n
 t

h
a
t 

m
a
y
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
 e

n
e
rg

y
 r

e
c
o
v
e
ry

 

fa
ils

 t
o
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 (

o
r 

la
te

r 

lo
s
e
s
) 

R
1
 e

n
e
rg

y
 e

ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
 

s
ta

tu
s
, 

m
a
y
 b

e
 a

t 
ri
s
k
 o

f 

lo
s
in

g
 t

h
e
 W

G
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

.
A

ll 
3
 b

id
d
e
rs

 a
t 

IS
D

S
 

s
ta

g
e
 h

a
v
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 

te
c
h
n
o
lo

g
ie

s
 t

h
a
t 

a
re

 a
b
o
v
e
 

R
1
 t

h
re

s
h
o
ld

s
. 

T
h
e
 t

e
c
h
n
ic

a
l 

te
a
m

 a
re

 l
o
o
k
in

g
 a

t 
th

is
 i
s
s
u
e
 

to
 s

e
e
 h

o
w

 l
ik

e
ly

 i
t 

is
 t

h
a
t 

a
 

s
o
lu

ti
o
n
 c

o
u
ld

 f
a
ll 

b
e
lo

w
 R

1
 

a
n
d
 i
f 

s
o
 u

n
d
e
r 

w
h
a
t 

c
ir
ic

u
m

s
ta

n
c
e
s
. 

T
h
e
 t

e
a
m

 a
re

 

a
ls

o
 l
o
o
k
in

g
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 

s
u
it
a
b
le

 r
is

k
 a

llo
c
a
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 

th
e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 
in

 t
h
is

 r
e
s
p
e
c
t.

F
1
4

W
G

 s
e
e
k
s
 

u
n
a
c
h
ie

v
a
b
le

 l
e
v
e
ls

 o
f 

V
F

M
 a

t 
F

in
a
l 
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 

c
a
s
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 s

ta
g
e
 a

n
d
 

a
p
p
ro

v
a
l 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
 d

u
e
 

to
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
c
o
n
s
tr

a
in

ts

W
G

 f
u
n
d
in

g
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 

is
 l
e
s
s
 t

h
a
n
 

a
n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 m

a
k
in

g
 

th
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
lly

 

u
n
a
ff

o
rd

a
b
le

5
3

1
5

O
B

C
 f

u
n
d
in

g
 a

w
a
rd

 l
e
tt

e
r 

d
e
fi
n
e
s
 t

h
e
 c

o
n
d
it
io

n
s
 f

o
r 

p
a
y
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

fu
n
d
in

g
- 

th
is

 i
s
 

c
o
n
s
is

te
n
t 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

's
 e

x
p
e
c
ta

ti
o
n
s
.

P
D

L
o
b
b
y
 W

G
 a

n
d
 l
ia

is
e
 w

it
h
 W

L
G

A
 

o
n
 t

h
is

 i
s
s
u
e
. 

P
D

5
2

1
0

O
n
g
o
in

g
S

e
p
-1

2

F
1
5

P
a
rt

n
e
r 

a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 f

a
il 

to
 m

a
k
e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
p
la

n
s
 

to
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

  
a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 

re
c
y
c
lin

g
 a

n
d
 

c
o
m

p
o
s
ti
n
g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 t

o
 

m
e
e
t 

"f
ro

n
t 

e
n
d
" 

in
c
re

a
s
e
d
 r

e
c
y
c
lin

g
 

le
v
e
ls

 t
h
a
t 

a
re

 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d

F
a
ilu

re
 t

o
 m

e
e
t 

W
G

 

"f
ro

n
t 

e
n
d
" 

re
c
y
c
lin

g
 

a
n
d
 c

o
m

p
o
s
ti
n
g
 

ta
rg

e
ts

 w
it
h
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 

re
s
id

u
a
l 
w

a
s
te

 

a
ri
s
in

g
s
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
.

4
4

1
6

P
a
rt

n
e
r 

a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 t

o
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
 l
o
n
g
 t

e
rm

 f
u
n
d
in

g
 

p
la

n
s
 t

o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 e
n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 

fr
o
n
t 

e
n
d
 r

e
c
y
c
lin

g
 a

n
d
 

c
o
m

p
o
s
ti
n
g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
.

P
a
rt

n
e
r

A
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s

4
3

1
2

O
n
g
o
in

g
S

e
p
-1

2

W
G

 a
re

 e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
in

g
 

a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 i
n
 W

a
le

s
 t

o
 e

n
te

r 

in
to

 a
 "

c
h
a
n
g
e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
" 

w
h
e
re

 W
G

 w
ill

 o
ff

e
r 

a
s
s
is

ta
n
c
e
 t

o
 L

a
s
 t

o
 w

o
rk

 

to
g
e
th

e
r 

a
n
d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 "

fr
o
n
t 

e
n
d
" 

re
c
y
c
lin

g
 a

n
d
 c

o
lle

c
ti
o
n
s
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
.

A
d

v
is

e
rs

 –
 c

h
a
n

g
e
 i

n
 k

e
y
 p

e
rs

o
n

n
e
l

A
D

 1

K
e
y
 a

d
v
is

o
r 

p
e
rs

o
n
n
e
l 
te

a
m

 

le
a
v
e
  

o
r 

a
re

 n
o
 l
o
n
g
e
r 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 

p
ro

je
c
t

D
e
la

y
s
 a

n
d
 l
a
c
k
 o

f 

fa
m

ili
a
ri
ty

 w
it
h
 t

h
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

b
y

a
n
y
 r

e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 

a
d
v
is

o
ry

 

s
ta

ff
.

3
3

9

A
d
v
is

o
r'
s
 p

ro
je

c
t 

d
ir
e
c
to

rs
 

to
 k

e
e
p
 a

n
 o

v
e
rv

ie
w

 o
f 

th
e
 

a
d
v
is

o
r 

w
o
rk

. 
C

a
p
a
c
it
y
 o

f 

te
a
m

s
 p

ro
v
id

in
g
 a

d
v
ic

e
 

te
s
te

d
 d

u
ri
n
g
 a

p
p
o
in

tm
e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 a

d
v
is

o
rs

. 
O

n
g
o
in

g
 

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 o

f 
a
d
v
is

o
r 

s
it
u
a
ti
o
n
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 a
d
e
q
u
a
t e

a
d
v
is

o
r 

c
o
v
e
r 

a
n
 k

n
o
w

le
d
g
e
 

o
ft

e
n
 p

ro
je

c
t 

.

P
D

3
2

6
O

n
g
o
in

g
S

e
p
-1

2

P
ro

je
c
t 

D
e
li

v
e
ry

P
D

1

P
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
b
id

d
e
rs

 d
o
 n

o
t 

b
id

 

d
u
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 c

o
s
ts

 a
s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 

w
it
h
 C

o
m

p
e
ti
ti
v
e
 D

ia
lo

g
u
e
 

p
ro

c
e
s
s

R
e
d
u
c
e
d
 C

o
m

p
e
ti
ti
o
n
 o

n
 b

id

p
ro

c
e
s
s

4
2

8

T
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 a
 s

u
it
a
b
ly

 

s
tr

e
a
m

lin
e
d
, 

ti
m

e
ly

 a
n
d
 w

e
ll 

d
e
liv

e
re

d
 p

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 a

d
o
p
te

d
. 

A
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 u
s
e
 a

n
d
 

in
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
d
v
is

o
rs

. 
In

p
u
t 

fr
o
m

 W
G

, 
W

P
P

O
 a

n
d
 L

o
c
a
l 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
.

P
D

4
1

4
O

n
g
o
in

g
S

e
p
-1

2

3
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
n
ts

 s
u
b
m

it
te

d
 f

u
ll 

IS
D

S
 s

u
b
m

is
s
io

n
s
 s

o
 s

tr
o
n
g
 

m
a
rk

e
t 

in
te

rs
e
t 

a
n
d
 

c
o
m

p
e
ti
ti
io

n
 d

e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

d
.

P
D

2

P
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
b
id

d
e
rs

 d
o
 n

o
t 

b
id

 

d
u
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 R

is
k
s
 b

e
in

g
 p

a
s
s
e
d
 

to
 t

h
e
 C

o
n
tr

a
c
to

r

R
e
d
u
c
e
d
 C

o
m

p
e
ti
ti
o
n
 o

n
 b

id

p
ro

c
e
s
s

4
3

1
2

A
 r

is
k
 a

llo
c
a
ti
o
n
 w

o
rk

s
h
o
p
 

w
a
s
 h

e
ld

 w
it
h
 i
n
p
u
t 

fr
o
m

 

A
d
v
is

o
rs

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 r
is

k
 a

llo
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 

a
re

 m
a
d
e
 f

o
r 

th
e
 

p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 a
d
o
p
t 

a
 

c
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
lly

 d
e
liv

e
ra

b
le

 

a
n
d
 s

u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

 p
o
s
it
io

n
.

P
D

T
h
e
 P

ro
je

c
t 
A

g
re

e
m

e
n
t 

w
ill

 

c
o
n
fo

rm
 t

o
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

 f
ro

m
 o

f 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 

a
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 b

y
 W

G
 /

 

L
o
c
a
l 
P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
. 
A

n
y
 

d
e
rr

o
g
a
ti
o
n
s
 /

 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 f

ro
m

 t
h
is

 

s
ta

n
d
a
rd

 p
o
s
it
io

n
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

g
re

e
d
 

w
it
h
 W

G
/ 

L
o
c
a
l 
P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 

b
e
fo

re
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 

a
c
c
e
p
ta

b
le

 t
ra

n
s
fe

r 
o
f 

ri
s
k
s
.

P
D

4
2

8
O

n
g
o
in

g
S

e
p
-1

2

3
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
n
ts

 s
u
b
m

it
te

d
 f

u
ll 

IS
D

S
 s

u
b
m

is
s
io

n
s
 s

o
 s

tr
o
n
g
 

m
a
rk

e
t 

in
te

rs
e
t 

a
n
d
 

c
o
m

p
e
ti
ti
io

n
 d

e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

d
.

1
1

P
ro

je
c
t 

R
is

k
s
 a

n
d
 I

s
s
u
e
s
 R

e
g
is

te
r

R
IR

Page 31



V
e
rs

io
n
: 

4
.1

9
P

ro
je

c
t 

R
is

k
 I

s
s
u
e
 R

e
g
is

te
r

0
6
/1

2
/1

2

P
D

 3

P
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
b
id

d
e
rs

 d
o
 n

o
t 

b
id

 

d
u
e
 t

o
 l
a
c
k
 o

f 
c
o
h
e
s
iv

e
n
e
s
s
 o

f 

th
e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

R
e
d
u
c
e
d
 C

o
m

p
e
ti
ti
o
n
 o

n
 b

id

p
ro

c
e
s
s

4
3

1
2

IA
A

 s
ig

n
e
d
 &

 G
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 

A
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

p
e
ri
o
d
 d

e
fi
n
e
d
 

in
 O

B
C

/ 
IA

A
.

P
D

IA
A

 s
ig

n
e
d
 b

y
 a

ll 
p
a
rt

n
e
r 

a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
.

P
D

4
2

8
O

n
g
o
in

g
S

e
p
-1

2

3
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
n
ts

 s
u
b
m

it
te

d
 f

u
ll 

IS
D

S
 s

u
b
m

is
s
io

n
s
 s

o
 s

tr
o
n
g
 

m
a
rk

e
t 

in
te

rs
e
t 

a
n
d
 

c
o
m

p
e
ti
ti
io

n
 d

e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

d
.

P
D

4

P
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
b
id

d
e
rs

 d
o
 n

o
t 

b
id

 

d
u
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 p

re
s
c
ri
p
ti
v
e
 

re
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

R
e
d
u
c
e
d
 C

o
m

p
e
ti
ti
o
n
 o

n
 b

i d

p
ro

c
e
s
s

4
3

1
2

P
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

is
 t

o
 b

e
 

"T
e
c
h
n
o
lo

g
y
 N

e
u
tr

a
l"

P
D

E
n
s
u
re

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 d
e
s
ig

n
 o

f 

p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
. 

P
D

4
1

4
O

n
g
o
in

g
S

e
p
-1

2

3
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
n
ts

 s
u
b
m

it
te

d
 f

u
ll 

IS
D

S
 s

u
b
m

is
s
io

n
s
 s

o
 s

tr
o
n
g
 

m
a
rk

e
t 

in
te

rs
e
t 

a
n
d
 

c
o
m

p
e
ti
ti
io

n
 d

e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

d
.

P
D

5

P
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
b
id

d
e
rs

 d
o
 n

o
t 

b
id

 a
s
 

v
o
lu

m
e
s
 o

f 
w

a
s
te

 a
re

 t
o
o
 

s
m

a
ll

R
e
d
u
c
e
d
 C

o
m

p
e
ti
ti
o
n
 o

n
 b

id

p
ro

c
e
s
s

4
3

1
2

G
o
o
d
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 

m
a
rk

e
t 

in
te

re
s
t 

d
e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

d
.

P
D

4
1

4
O

n
g
o
in

g
S

e
p
-1

2

3
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
n
ts

 s
u
b
m

it
te

d
 f

u
ll 

IS
D

S
 s

u
b
m

is
s
io

n
s
 s

o
 s

tr
o
n
g
 

m
a
rk

e
t 

in
te

rs
e
t 

a
n
d
 

c
o
m

p
e
ti
ti
io

n
 d

e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

d
.

P
D

6

T
o
o
 m

a
n
y
 b

id
d
e
rs

 

c
o
m

e
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 a
n
d
 

d
if
fi
c
u
lt
 t

o
 d

e
-s

e
le

c
t 

to
 

s
u
it
a
b
le

 s
h
o
rt

lis
t

D
e
la

y
s
 t

o
 

p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
,

in
c
re

a
s
e
d

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

p
h
a
s
e
 

c
o
s
ts

3
3

9

P
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 

d
e
s
ig

n
e
d
 a

n
d
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
d
 t

o
 

a
llo

w
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

b
id

d
e
rs

 t
o

a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
.

P
D

3
1

3
O

n
g
o
in

g
S

e
p
-1

2

M
a
x
im

u
m

 o
f 

8
 b

id
d
e
rs

 t
o
 b

e
 

in
v
it
e
d
 t

o
 I

S
O

S
 s

ta
g
e
, 

 3
 

p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
n
ts

 t
a
k
e
n
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 t

o
 

IS
D

S
 s

ta
g
e
. 

2
 t

o
 C

F
T

 s
ta

g
e

P
D

7

T
h
e
 P

re
fe

rr
e
d
 B

id
d
e
r 

d
ro

p
s
 o

u
t 

o
r 

fa
ils

 t
o
 

re
a
c
h
 a

 s
a
ti
s
fa

c
to

ry
 

c
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l/
fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l

c
lo

s
e

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 d

e
la

y
, 

in
c
re

a
s
e
d

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

p
h
a
s
e
 

c
o
s
ts

, 
e
x
c
e
s
s
iv

e
 L

A
S

 

p
e
n
a
lt
ie

s
, 

lo
s
s
 o

f 

c
o
m

p
e
ti
ti
v
e
 p

re
s
s
u
re

 

a
n
d
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 

in
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
s
o
lu

ti
o
n
 

c
o
s
ts

5
2

1
0

P
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 d

e
s
ig

n
e
d
 

to
 e

n
s
u
re

 a
b
ili

ty
 a

n
d
 /

o
r 

a
p
p
e
ti
te

 

fo
r 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 

c
lo

s
u
re

 i
s
 

u
n
d
e
rs

to
o
d
 p

re
 p

re
fe

rr
e
d
 b

id
d
e
r 

a
p
p
o
in

tm
e
n
t.

 N
o
 m

a
jo

r 
is

s
u
e
s
 t

o
 

b
e
 a

llo
w

e
d
 t

o
 r

e
m

a
in

 u
n
re

s
o
lv

e
d
 

p
ri
o
r 

to
 p

re
fe

rr
e
d
 b

id
d
e
r.

P
D

5
1

5
O

n
g
o
in

g
S

e
p
-1

2

P
D

8
O

n
e
 o

f 
th

e
 t

w
o
 f

in
a
l 

b
id

d
e
rs

 d
ro

p
s
 o

u
t

T
h
re

a
t 

to
 V

F
M

, 
p
ri
c
e
 

e
s
c
a
la

ti
o
n
, 

p
o
s
s
ib

le
 

e
x
c
e
e
d
a
n
c
e
 o

f 

a
ff

o
rd

a
b
ili

ty
 e

n
v
e
lo

p
e
, 

d
e
la

y
 t

o
 p

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e

4
3

1
2

P
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 d

e
s
ig

n
e
d
 

to
 e

n
s
u
re

 a
b
ili

ty
 a

n
d
 /

o
r 

a
p
p
e
ti
te

 

fo
r 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 

c
lo

s
u
re

 i
s
 

u
n
d
e
rs

to
o
d
 p

re
 f

in
a
l 
te

n
d
e
r 

a
p
p
o
in

tm
e
n
t.

 W
ill

 s
e
e
k
 

a
g
re

e
m

e
n
t 

w
it
h
 a

ll 
b
id

d
e
rs

 a
t 

th
is

s
ta

g
e
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t

o
 m

a
jo

r 
is

s
u
e
s
.

P
D

4
2

8
O

n
g
o
in

g
S

e
p
-1

2

P
D

9

U
ti
lit

y
 c

o
n
n
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 m

a
y
 

n
o
t 

b
e
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 f
o
r 

th
e
 

s
o
lu

ti
o
n

P
o
s
s
ib

le
 t

h
re

a
t 

to
 

a
ff

o
rd

a
b
ili

ty
, 

d
e
la

y
 t

o
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e

3
3

9

T
e
c
h
n
ic

a
l 
a
d
v
is

o
rs

 t
o
 b

e
 t

a
s
k
e
d
 

to
 e

n
s
u
re

 a
b
ili

ty
 t

o
 s

e
c
u
re

 u
ti
lit

y
 

c
o
n
n
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 i
s
 u

n
d
e
rs

to
o
d
 e

a
rl
y
 

in
 t

h
e
 p

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
.

P
D

3
2

6
O

n
g
o
in

g
S

e
p
-1

2

B
id

d
e
rs

 h
a
v
e
 d

e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

d
 

th
a
t 

u
tl
it
y
 c

o
n
n
e
c
ti
o
n
d
 a

re
 

d
e
liv

e
ra

b
le

.

P
D

1
0

C
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 

g
o
e
s
 i
n
to

 

liq
u
id

a
ti
o
n
/r

e
c
e
iv

e
rs

h
ip

d
u
ri
n
g
 c

o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 

p
h
a
s
e

D
e
la

y
 t

o
 

c
o
m

m
e
n
c
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

w
a
s
te

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
in

g
, 

e
x
c
e
s
s
iv

e
 L

A
S

 c
o
s
ts

, 

re
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t

c
o
n
s
tr

u
c
to

r 
re

q
u
ir
e
d
 -

 

in
c
re

a
s
e
d
 c

a
p
it
a
l 

c
o
s
ts

3
3

9

B
id

d
e
rs

 t
o
 d

e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
p
o
s
it
io

n
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

P
Q

Q
 a

n
d
 a

ls
o
 r

e
-c

h
e
c
k
e
d
 

a
t 

k
e
y
 s

ta
g
e
s
 d

u
ri
n
g
 

p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

p
ro

c
e
s
s

P
D

 
3

2
6

O
n
g
o
in

g
S

e
p
-1

2

P
D

1
1

In
s
u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

p
ro

je
c
t 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
 (

n
u
m

b
e
rs

 a
n
d
 

k
n
o
w

le
d
g
e
/e

x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e

o
f 

s
ta

ff
/p

ro
je

c
t 

te
a
m

)

D
e
la

y
s
 t

o
 p

ro
je

c
ts

, 

in
c
re

a
s
e
d

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

c
o
s
ts

 t
o
 

'r
e
p
a
ir
' 
p
ro

je
c
t,

 

re
d
u
c
e
d
 m

a
rk

e
t 

in
te

re
s
t 

a
n
d
 

c
o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
t 

lo
s
s
 o

f 

c
o
m

p
e
ti
ti
v
e
 p

re
s
s
u
re

 

V
F

M

3
3

9

P
D

 a
n
d
 P

M
 i
n
 p

o
s
t

A
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 t

o
 n

o
m

in
a
te

 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a
ls

 a
n
d
 t

o
 

b
a
c
k
fi
ll 

th
e
ir
 p

o
s
ts

. 
In

p
u
t 

re
q
u
ir
e
d

fr
o
m

 k
e
y
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

 i
n
 P

a
rt

n
e
r 

A
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
. 

P
D

 h
a
s
 p

ro
d
u
c
e
d
 a

n
 

e
s
ti
m

a
te

d
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
 i
n
p
u
t 

s
c
h
e
d
u
le

 t
o
 a

s
s
is

t 
P

a
rt

n
e
r 

a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 i
n
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

In
d
iv

id
u
a
l

P
a
rt

n
e
r

A
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s

3
2

6
O

n
g
o
in

g
S

e
p
-1

2

P
D

1
2

N
e
g
o
ti
a
ti
o
n
s
 o

n
 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 

a
re

 p
ro

tr
a
c
te

d
 

b
e
y
o
n
d
 p

la
n
n
e
d
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e

C
o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 
h
a
s
 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 t

o
 r

e
-b

id
, 

p
ri
c
e
 e

s
c
a
la

ti
o
n
, 

lo
s
s
 

o
f 

V
F

M
, 

a
ff

o
rd

a
b
ili

ty
 

th
re

a
te

n
e
d
, 

p
ro

je
c
t 

d
e
la

y
, 

p
o
s
s
ib

le
 

e
x
c
e
s
s
iv

e
 L

A
S

 c
o
s
ts

.

3
4

1
2

P
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 

c
le

a
rl
y
 d

e
fi
n
e
d
. 

C
le

a
r 

p
a
rt

n
e
r 

p
o
s
it
io

n
s
 t

o
 b

e
 a

rt
ic

u
la

te
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 

b
id

d
e
rs

 a
t 

a
ll 

s
ta

g
e
s
.

P
D

3
2

6
O

n
g
o
in

g
S

e
p
-1

2

N
e
g
o
ti
a
ti
o
n
 p

o
s
it
io

n
s
 o

n
 k

e
y
 

a
s
p
e
c
ts

 o
f 

th
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

a
re

 p
re

 

a
g
re

e
d
 b

y
 P

ro
je

c
t 

B
o
a
rd

 t
o
 

a
llo

w
 D

ia
lo

g
u
e
 t

e
a
m

 t
o
 g

e
t 

o
n
 

w
it
h
 n

e
g
o
ti
a
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 a

 t
im

e
 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

m
a
n
n
e
r.

1
2

P
ro

je
c
t 

R
is

k
s
 a

n
d
 I

s
s
u
e
s
 R

e
g
is

te
r

R
IR

Page 32



V
e
rs

io
n
: 

4
.1

9
P

ro
je

c
t 

R
is

k
 I

s
s
u
e
 R

e
g
is

te
r

0
6
/1

2
/1

2

P
D

1
5

In
a
d
e
q
u
a
te

 p
ro

je
c
t 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

d
is

c
ip

lin
e

P
o
s
s
ib

le
 d

e
la

y
 t

o
 

p
ro

je
c
t 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
, 

L
A

S
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 

c
o
s
ts

 i
n
c
u
rr

e
d
, 

d
e
liv

e
ry

 m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

o
b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 n

o
t 

m
e
t,

 

in
te

rn
a
l 
s
ta

k
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

 

c
o
m

p
la

in

2
2

4

P
D

 a
n
d
 P

M
 n

o
w

 i
n
 p

o
s
t.

 P
D

 

to
 c

h
e
c
k
 t

h
a
t 

a
d
e
q
u
a
te

 P
M

 

c
o
n
tr

o
ls

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
. 

In
te

rn
a
l 

a
u
d
it
 t

o
 b

e
 e

n
g
a
g
e
d
 p

ri
o
r 

to
 

P
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t.

 1
s
t 

g
a
te

w
a
ry

 

re
v
ie

w
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 -

 p
ro

je
c
t 

a
m

b
e
r 

g
re

e
n
. 

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 m

a
d
e
 

a
n
d
 t

a
k
e
n
 o

n
 b

o
a
rd

 b
y
 

p
ro

je
c
t 

te
a
m

.

F
u
rt

h
e
 W

G
 g

a
te

w
a
y
 r

e
v
ie

w
 p

ri
o
r 

to
 I

S
D

S
. 

P
D

 t
o
 t

a
k
e
 o

n
 b

o
a
rd

 

a
n
y
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
.

P
D

2
1

2
O

n
g
o
in

g
S

e
p
-1

2

P
D

1
6

F
a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 n

o
t 

c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
d
 o

n
 t

im
e

P
o
s
s
ib

le
 d

e
la

y
 t

o
 

p
ro

je
c
t 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
, 

L
A

S
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 

c
o
s
ts

 i
n
c
u
rr

e
d
.

3
3

9

P
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 

d
e
s
ig

n
e
d
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 s
it
e
s
 a

r e

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

n
d
 u

n
d
e
rs

to
o
d
 i
n
 

te
rm

s
 o

f 
p
la

n
n
in

g
 

d
e
liv

e
ra

b
ili

ty
. 

P
re

lim
in

a
ry

 

s
it
e
 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g
a
te

 w
o
rk

s
 t

o
 b

e
 

c
a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

o
n
 r

e
fe

re
n
c
e
 

s
it
e
s
. 

P
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 

to
 t

e
s
t 

b
id

d
e
rs

 d
e
liv

e
ry

 

ti
m

e
ta

b
le

s
.

P
D

2
2

4
O

n
g
o
in

g
S

e
p
-1

2

P
D

1
8

O
n
ly

 o
n
e
 a

c
c
e
p
ta

b
le

 

b
id

d
e
r 

c
o
m

e
s
 f

o
rw

a
rd

D
e
la

y
 t

o
 p

ro
je

c
t,

 

in
c
re

a
s
e
d
 c

o
s
t 

o
f 

g
o
in

g
 b

a
c
k
 t

o
 m

a
rk

e
t,

 

in
c
re

a
s
e
d
 b

id
 p

ri
c
e
s
, 

fa
ilu

re
 t

o
 s

e
c
u
re

 V
F

M
, 

e
x
c
e
s
s
iv

e
 L

A
S

 

c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 c

o
s
ts

4
2

8

P
D

 h
a
s
 c

o
m

m
e
n
c
e
d
 m

a
rk

e
t 

e
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t.

 G
o
o
d
 

fe
e
d
b
a
c
k
 a

n
d
 h

ig
h
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 

in
te

re
s
t 

a
lr
e
a
d
y
 e

x
p
re

s
s
e
d
 

b
y
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 

b
id

d
e
rs

.
P

D

E
n
s
u
re

 c
o
n
s
is

te
n
c
y
 o

f 
m

e
s
s
a
g
e
 

to
 m

a
rk

e
t.

 

P
D

4
1

4
O

n
g
o
in

g
S

e
p
-1

2

1
0
 c

o
m

p
a
n
ie

s
 s

u
b
m

it
e
e
d
 

E
O

I.
 1

0
 s

u
b
m

it
te

d
 P

Q
Q

 

re
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
. 

w
it
h
 8

 p
re

-

q
u
a
lif

y
in

g
. 

 3
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
n
ts

 

in
v
it
e
d
 t

o
 I

S
D

S
 s

ta
g
e
. 

2
 t

o
 b

e
 

in
v
it
e
d
 t

o
 C

F
T

P
D

1
9

T
h
e
re

 i
s
 n

o
 m

a
rk

e
t 

in
te

re
s
t 

d
u
e
 t

o
 l
im

it
e
d
 

c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 

in
d
u
s
tr

y

D
e
la

y
 t

o
 p

ro
je

c
t 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
,

e
x
c
e
s
s
iv

e
 L

A
S

 

c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 c

o
s
ts

, 

e
x
c
e
s
s
iv

e
 c

o
s
ts

 

a
s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 w

it
h
 

in
fl
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 n

e
e
d
 t

o
 

re
v
is

it
 m

a
rk

e
t 

to
 

s
e
c
u
re

 a
n
d
 a

n
 

a
c
c
e
p
ta

b
le

 s
o
lu

ti
o
n
. 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

re
p
u
ta

ti
o
n
 d

a
m

a
g
e
d
.

5
2

1
0

G
o
o
d
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 

m
a
rk

e
t 

in
te

re
s
t 

d
e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

d
.

P
D

5
1

5
O

n
g
o
in

g
S

e
p
-1

2

L
o
w

 r
is

k
 -

 h
o
e
w

v
e
r 

ri
s
k
 

c
a
n
n
o
t 

b
e
 c

lo
s
e
d
 u

n
ti
l 
P

B
 

a
p
p
o
in

te
d

P
D

2
0

P
a
rt

ic
ip

a
n
ts

 a
re

 

c
o
n
c
e
rn

e
d
 t

h
a
t 

o
n
e
 o

r 

m
o
re

 o
th

e
r 

P
a
rt

ic
ip

a
n
ts

 

h
a
v
e
 g

a
in

e
d
 a

 

c
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
a
d
v
a
n
ta

g
e
 

b
y
 g

a
in

in
g
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 
o
f 

a
 

s
it
e
 t

h
a
t 

m
a
y
 b

e
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

th
e
ir
 

s
o
lu

ti
o
n

P
a
rt

ic
ip

a
n
ts

 w
it
h
d
ra

w
 

fr
o
m

 t
h
e
 p

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

p
ro

c
e
s
s

4
3

1
2

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 i
s
s
u
e
 c

le
a
r 

in
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 t

o
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
n
ts

 i
n
 

re
la

ti
o
n
 t

o
 s

it
e
s
. 

P
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

te
a
m

 t
o
 

e
n
fo

rc
e
 s

a
n
c
ti
o
n
s
 t

h
a
t 

m
a
y
 

a
p
p
ly

 a
g
a
in

s
t 

p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
n
ts

 

th
a
t 

b
re

a
c
h
 t

h
e
s
e
 

in
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
s
. 

T
h
e
 P

D
 h

a
s
 

re
c
e
iv

e
d
 v

e
rb

a
l 
a
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
s
 

fr
o
m

 a
 r

a
il 

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
r 

th
a
t 

th
e
ir
 n

e
w

ly
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 o

p
ti
o
n
 

o
n
 t

h
e
 s

it
e
 i
n
 q

u
e
s
ti
o
n
 w

ill
 

n
o
t 

b
e
 u

s
e
d
 s

o
le

ly
 t

o
 g

iv
e
 

o
n
e
 o

r 
m

o
re

 p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
n
ts

 a
 

c
o
m

p
e
ti
ti
v
e
 a

d
v
a
n
ta

g
e
 i
n
 

s
e
c
u
ri
n
g
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 a

 r
a
il 

h
e
a
d
.

P
D

W
ri
tt

e
n
 c

o
n
fi
rm

a
ti
o
n
 g

a
in

e
d
 f

o
r 

th
e
 a

lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 s

it
e
 o

p
e
ra

to
r 

th
a
t 

h
a
s
 s

e
c
u
re

d
 a

n
 o

p
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 s

it
e
 

to
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

a
ll 

P
a
rt

ic
ip

a
n
ts

 

c
a
n
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 e

q
u
a
l 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 

s
it
e
 i
f 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 (

a
g
re

e
m

e
n
t 

to
 a

 

n
o
n
-e

x
c
lu

s
iv

e
 e

n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

w
it
h
 

a
ll 

p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
n
ts

 i
f 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
).

 

4
2

8
O

n
g
o
in

g
S

e
p
-1

2

C
o

m
m

e
rc

ia
ll

y
 c

o
n

fi
d

e
n

ti
a
l 

- 
n

o
t 

fo
r 

re
le

a
s
e
 u

n
d

e
r 

F
O

I

P
D

2
1

N
e
tw

o
rk

 R
a
il 

a
p
p
ro

v
a
ls

 

a
re

 n
o
t 

s
e
c
u
re

d
 t

o
 

a
llo

w
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

a
 r

a
il 

b
a
s
e
d
 t

ra
n
s
p
o
rt

 

s
o
lu

ti
o
n
.

T
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 e
le

m
e
n
t 

o
f 

R
a
il 

b
a
s
e
d
 s

o
lu

ti
o
n
 

b
e
c
o
m

e
s

u
n
d
e
liv

e
ra

b
le

 o
r 

p
a
rt

ia
lly

u
n
d
e
liv

e
ra

b
le

.

3
4

1
2

F
o
llo

w
in

g
 t

h
e
 d

e
c
is

io
n
 o

f 

J
o
in

t 
C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 a

t 
it
s
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
 i
n
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
2
, 

it
 

w
a
s
 a

g
re

e
d
 t

h
a
t 

a
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 w

o
u
ld

 b
e
 m

a
d
e
 i
n
 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
2
 t

o
 s

e
e
 i
f 

k
e
y
 N

e
tw

o
rk

 r
a
il 

a
p
p
ro

v
a
ls

 

h
a
d
 b

e
e
n
 s

e
c
u
re

d
. 

In
 t

h
e
 

e
v
e
n
t 

th
a
t 

lit
tl
e
 o

r 
n
o
 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 h

a
d
 b

e
e
n
 m

a
d
e
 

th
e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 m
a
y
 d

e
c
id

e
 

to
 r

e
v
e
rt

 t
o
 a

 r
o
a
d
 b

a
s
e
d
 

tr
a
n
s
p
o
rt

 s
o
lu

ti
o
n
.

P
D

3
3

9
S

e
p
-1

2
S

e
p
-1

2

P
D

2
2

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a
ti

o
n

 &
 s

ta
k
e
h

o
ld

e
rs

 –
 f

a
il

u
re

 t
o

 p
ro

a
c
ti

v
e
ly

 e
n

g
a
g

e
 w

it
h

 k
e
y
 s

ta
k
e
 h

o
ld

e
rs

 l
e
a
d

in
g

 t
o

 d
e
la

y
s
 a

n
d

 l
a
c
k
 o

f 
p

u
b

li
c
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 f

o
r 

th
e
 p

ro
p

o
s
e
d

 s
o

lu
ti

o
n

.

1
3

P
ro

je
c
t 

R
is

k
s
 a

n
d
 I

s
s
u
e
s
 R

e
g
is

te
r

R
IR

Page 33



V
e
rs

io
n
: 

4
.1

9
P

ro
je

c
t 

R
is

k
 I

s
s
u
e
 R

e
g
is

te
r

0
6
/1

2
/1

2

C
O

1

M
is

-i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 t

o
 M

e
m

b
e
rs

 

c
a
u
s
e
d
 b

y
 d

if
fe

re
n
c
e
s
 i
n
 

re
p
o
rt

s
 a

n
d
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
ta

ti
o
n

A
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 w

o
rk

in
g
 t

o
 

d
if
fe

re
n
t 

a
g
e
n
d
a
s
/o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 

le
a
d
in

g
 t

o
 a

 b
re

a
k
d
o
w

n
 i
n
 

th
e
 c

o
n
s
o
rt

ia
3

3
9

C
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

G
ro

u
p
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
, 

w
it
h
 a

 

m
e
d
ia

 p
ro

to
c
o
l 
a
g
re

e
d
 t

o
 

e
n
s
u
re

 c
o
n
s
is

te
n
c
y
 o

f 

m
e
s
s
a
g
e
.

P
M

P
M

3
2

6
O

n
g
o
in

g
S

e
p
-1

2

C
O

2

R
is

k
 o

f 
c
h
a
lle

n
g
e
 t

o
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 

a
p
p
ro

v
a
ls

 i
f 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 n

o
t 

g
iv

e
n
 t

o
 s

ta
k
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

 t
o
 i
n
p
u
t 

to
 t

h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 

e
v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 f

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 t
h
a
t 

w
ill

 

u
n
d
e
rp

in
 t

h
e
 p

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 

s
u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
t 

fa
c
ili

ty
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 

a
p
p
ro

v
a
ls

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
.

R
is

k
 o

f 
u
n
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 o

r 

ju
d
ic

ia
l 
re

v
ie

w
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 c

o
n
s
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 

th
e
re

fo
re

 i
n
a
b
ili

ty
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

th
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

a
s
 p

ro
c
u
re

d
.

4
3

1
2

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 s

e
s
s
io

n
s
 w

it
h
 

m
e
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 

th
e
 5

 

a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 a

n
d
 e

x
te

rn
a
l 

s
ta

k
e
h
o
ld

e
r 

h
e
ld

 d
u
ri
n
g
 J

u
ly

 

- 
S

e
p
 2

0
1
0
 t

o
 g

e
t 

in
p
u
t 

in
to

 

th
e
 e

v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 f

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

.

P
M

P
M

4
2

8

J
u
l-
1
0

S
e
p
-1

2

E
v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 f

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 b

e
fo

re
 I

T
P

D
 

is
s
u
e
d
. 

R
is

k
 c

a
n
 n

o
t 

th
e
re

fo
re

 

b
e
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

m
it
ig

a
te

d
. 

H
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 r
is

k
 o

f 
s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 

c
h
a
lle

n
g
e
 a

lt
h
o
u
g
h
 v

e
ry

 l
o
w

 

s
ti
ll 

re
m

a
in

s
. 

T
h
e
re

fo
re

 r
is

k
 

c
a
n
n
o
t 

b
e
 c

lo
s
e
d
.

C
O

3

R
e
fe

re
n
c
e
 s

it
e
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

w
it
h
in

 O
B

C
 c

o
u
ld

 l
e
a
d
 t

o
 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 

o
p
p
o
s
it
io

n
 t

o
 

p
ro

p
o
s
e
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t.

 A
s
 a

 

re
s
u
lt
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 c

o
m

m
it
te

e
(s

) 

a
n
d
 /

o
r 

 j
u
d
ic

ia
l 
re

v
ie

w
 m

a
y
 

n
o
t 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 a
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
 p

la
n
n
in

g

o
u
tc

o
m

e
 i
f 

e
a
rl
y
 e

n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

is
 n

o
t 

c
a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

w
it
h
 a

ff
e
c
te

d
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
.

R
is

k
 o

f 
u
n
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 o

r 

ju
d
ic

ia
l 
re

v
ie

w
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 c

o
n
s
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 

th
e
re

fo
re

 i
n
a
b
ili

ty
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

th
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

a
s
 p

ro
c
u
re

d
.

4
3

1
2

"D
ro

p
 i
n
" 

s
e
s
s
io

n
s
 h

e
ld

 i
n
 

th
e
 a

re
a
 o

f 
th

e
 R

e
fe

re
n
c
e
 

S
it
e
. 

C
o
n
ta

c
t 

m
a
d
e
 w

it
h
 k

e
y
 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 a

ro
u
n
d
 

R
e
fe

re
n
c
e
 S

it
e
.

P
M

F
u
rt

h
e
r 

e
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

w
o
rk

 

a
ro

u
n
d
 r

e
fe

re
n
c
e
 s

it
e
 (

a
n
d
 o

th
e
r 

re
fe

re
n
c
e
 s

it
e
s
 i
f 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
) 

a
t 

k
e
y
 s

ta
g
e
s
 o

f 
p
ro

je
c
t.

P
M

4
2

8
O

n
g
o
in

g
S

e
p
-1

2

C
O

4

P
re

s
s
u
re

 f
ro

m
 l
o
b
b
y
 

g
ro

u
p
s
/p

u
b
lic

 a
g
a
in

s
t 

th
e
 

p
re

fe
rr

e
d
 s

o
lu

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

lo
c
a
ti
o
n
.

A
lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 s

o
lu

ti
o
n
/s

it
e
 h

a
s
 

to
 b

e
 s

o
u
g
h
t,

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 

p
ro

je
c
t 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

c
o
s
ts

, 

d
e
la

y
s
 t

o
 p

ro
je

c
t 

d
e
liv

e
ry

 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
, 

e
x
c
e
s
s
iv

e
 L

A
S

 

c
o
s
ts

, 
im

p
a
c
t 

o
n
 P

a
rt

n
e
r 

C
o
u
n
c
ils

 r
e
p
u
ta

ti
o
n

4
5

2
0

C
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

E
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 

d
ra

ft
e
d
 a

n
d
 a

g
re

e
d
 i
n
 d

ra
ft

 

fo
rm

 b
y
 C

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
 

O
ff

ic
e
r 

g
ro

u
p
. 

T
o
 b

e
 "

liv
e
" 

d
o
c
u
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
re

fo
re

 

u
p
d
a
te

d
 w

h
e
n
 n

e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

.

P
M

E
n
s
u
re

 f
a
c
t 

b
a
s
e
d
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 

p
ro

d
u
c
e
d
 t

o
 c

o
u
n
te

r 
m

is
-

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 o

r 
a
la

rm
is

t 
c
la

im
s

o
ft

e
n
 p

u
t 

fo
rw

a
rd

 b
y
 l
o
b
b
y
is

ts
 

a
n
d
 c

a
m

p
a
ig

n
 g

ro
u
p
s
.

P
D

4
4

1
6

O
n
g
o
in

g
S

e
p
-1

2

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
c
a
m

p
a
ig

n
e
rs

' 

e
n
g
a
g
in

g
 w

it
h
 l
o
c
a
l 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 c

o
u
n
c
ils

 a
n
d
 l
o
c
a
l 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 i
n
 a

tt
e
m

p
t 

to
 

b
u
ild

 o
p
p
o
s
it
io

n
 t

o
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 

s
o
lu

ti
o
n
s
.

T
im

e
s
c
a
le

s

T
5

K
e
y
 A

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 n

o
t 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
 

P
ro

je
c
t 

P
la

n

P
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
fo

r 
p
ro

je
c
t 

to
 b

e
 

d
e
la

y
e
d
 d

u
e
 t

o
 l
a
c
k
 o

f 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
 o

r 
d
e
p
e
n
d
a
b
ili

ty
 

is
s
u
e
s

3
2

6

L
o
c
a
l 
P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 e

x
p
e
rt

s
 

to
 s

c
ru

ti
n
is

e
 P

ro
je

c
t 

d
o
c
u
m

e
n
ta

ti
o
n

P
D

P
D

3
1

3
O

n
g
o
in

g
S

e
p
-1

2

P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 a

n
d

 P
ro

c
e
s
s
 

P
2

D
o
c
u
m

e
n
t 

re
d
a
c
te

d
. 

T
h
e
 I

n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 h

a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 r

e
d
a
c
te

d
 a

s
 i
t 

re
la

te
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 

o
r 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 a

ff
a
ir
s
 o

f 

th
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

, 
a
n
d
 

o
th

e
rs

 i
n
 a

c
c
o
rd

a
n
c
e
 

w
it
h
 R

u
le

 1
0
 o

f 
th

e
 

A
c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 I

n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 

P
ro

c
e
d
u
re

 R
u
le

s
C

o
m

m
e
rc

ia
ll

y
 c

o
n

fi
d

e
n

ti
a
l 

- 
n

o
t 

fo
r 

re
le

a
s
e
 u

n
d

e
r 

F
O

I

P
1
0

T
h
e
 I

n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 h

a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 r

e
d
a
c
te

d
 a

s
 i
t 

re
la

te
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 

o
r 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 a

ff
a
ir
s
 o

f 

th
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

, 
a
n
d
 

C
o

m
m

e
rc

ia
ll

y
 c

o
n

fi
d

e
n

ti
a
l 

- 
n

o
t 

fo
r 

re
le

a
s
e
 u

n
d

e
r 

F
O

I

P
1
2

S
o
lu

ti
o
n
 o

ff
e
re

d
 i
s
 n

o
t 

te
c
h
n
ic

a
lly

 v
ia

b
le

la
n
d
fi
ll 

d
iv

e
rs

io
n
 n

o
t 

o
b
ta

in
e
d
, 

L
A

's
 i
n
c
u
r 

in
fr

a
c
ti
o
n
 p

e
n
a
lt
ie

s

5
3

1
5

L
A

S
 i
n
fr

a
c
ti
o
n
 f

in
e
 p

a
s
s
e
d
 

to
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
to

r.
 T

e
c
h
n
ic

a
l 

v
ia

b
ili

ty
 s

c
o
re

d
 w

it
h
in

 

E
v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

P
D

P
D

5
1

5
O

n
g
o
in

g
S

e
p
-1

2

A
ll 

3
 I

S
O

S
 s

u
b
m

is
s
io

n
s
 t

a
k
e
n
 

th
ro

u
g
h
 t

o
 I

S
D

S
 s

ta
g
e
 c

le
a
rl
y
 

m
e
e
t 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

's
 l
a
n
d
fi
ll 

d
iv

e
rs

io
n
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

. 
A

ll

a
re

 p
ro

v
e
n
 t

e
c
h
n
o
lo

g
ie

s
 w

it
h
 

g
o
o
d
 t

ra
c
k
 r

e
c
o
rd

s
.

P
1
3

T
e
c
h
n
o
lo

g
ic

a
l 
s
o
lu

ti
o
n
s
 

o
ff

e
re

d
 a

re
 n

o
t 

c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
a
b
le

 w
it
h
in

 L
A

S
 

in
fr

a
c
ti
o
n
 t

im
e
s
c
a
le

s

L
A

's
 f

a
c
e
 i
n
fr

a
c
ti
o
n
 f

in
e
s
 f

o
r 

a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
la

n
d
fi
ll 

a
b
o
v
e
 

a
llo

w
a
n
c
e

4
4

1
6

O
B

C
 m

o
d
e
lli

n
g
 h

a
s
 s

h
o
w

n
 

th
a
t 

e
a
c
h
 p

a
rt

n
e
r 

a
u
th

o
ir
ty

 

c
a
n
 m

e
e
t 

L
A

S
 a

llo
w

a
n
c
e
s
 i
f 

th
e
y
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 "

fr
o
n
t 

e
n
d
" 

re
c
y
c
lin

g
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

p
o
s
ti
n
g
" 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

is
 d

e
liv

e
rd

 t
o
 

ti
m

e
ta

b
le

. 
A

n
y
 

u
n
d
e
rp

e
rf

o
rm

a
c
n
e
 i
n
 t

h
is

 

"f
ro

n
t 

e
n
d
" 

re
c
y
c
lin

g
 a

n
d
 

c
o
m

p
o
s
ti
n
g
 a

re
 o

u
ts

id
e
 t

h
e
 

s
c
o
p
e
 o

f 
th

is
 p

ro
je

c
t 

a
n
d
 

a
n
y
 s

u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
t 

L
A

S

lia
b
ili

ti
e
s
 w

ill
 l
ie

 w
it
h
 t

h
e
 

in
v
id

iv
u
a
l 
p
a
rt

n
e
r 

a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
. 

 S
e
e
 a

ls
o
 r

is
k
 

W
1

P
a
rt

n
e
r

a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s

P
ro

c
u
rm

e
n
t 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 

th
a
t 

is
 d

lie
v
re

d
 i
n
a
 t

im
le

y
 m

a
n
n
e

r

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 r

is
k
 o

f 
la

te
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

th
e
 r

e
s
id

u
a
l 
w

a
s
te

 t
re

a
te

m
tn

 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 m

in
m

is
e
d
.

P
D

4
2

8
O

n
g
o
in

g
S

e
p
-1

2

U
p
d
a
te

d
 w

a
s
te

 f
lo

w
 m

o
d
e
lli

n
g
 

d
e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

s
 t

h
a
t 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 

c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 d

a
te

s
 w

ill
 n

o
t 

le
a
d
 t

o
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 

L
A

S
 

e
x
p
o
s
u
re

 t
o
 p

a
rt

n
e
r 

a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
.

1
4

P
ro

je
c
t 

R
is

k
s
 a

n
d
 I

s
s
u
e
s
 R

e
g
is

te
r

R
IR

Page 34



V
e
rs

io
n
: 

4
.1

9
P

ro
je

c
t 

R
is

k
 I

s
s
u
e
 R

e
g
is

te
r

0
6
/1

2
/1

2

P
1
4

B
id

s
 s

c
o
re

d
 b

y
 i
n
e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
d
 

in
te

rn
a
l 
te

a
m

S
o
lu

ti
o
n
 s

e
le

c
te

d
 i
s
 n

o
t 

th
e
 

m
o
s
t 

a
d
v
a
n
ta

g
e
o
u
s
 t

e
n
d
e
r 

a
n
d
 i
s
 o

p
e
n
 t

o
 c

h
a
lle

n
g
e
 b

y
 

u
n
s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
b
id

d
e
rs

4
3

1
2

B
id

 t
e
a
m

 s
e
le

c
te

d
 b

y
 

P
ro

je
c
t 

D
ir
e
c
to

r 
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 

m
ix

 o
f 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 s
k
ill

s
 

(i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 a

d
v
is

o
rs

)
P

D
4

2
8

O
n
g
o
in

g
S

e
p
-1

2

T
e
c
h
n
ic

a
l,
 f

in
a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 l
e
g
a
l 

o
ff

ic
e
rs

 i
n
v
o
lv

e
d
 i
n
 e

v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 

c
h
a
lle

n
g
e
 s

e
s
s
io

n
s
 w

it
h
 

a
d
v
is

o
rs

P
1
5

B
id

s
 s

c
o
re

d
 b

y
 e

x
te

rn
a
l 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
ts

S
o
lu

ti
o
n
 s

e
le

c
te

d
 d

o
e
s
 n

o
t 

m
e
e
t 

lo
c
a
l 
re

q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 

a
n
d
 i
s
 n

o
t 

a
c
c
e
p
te

d
 b

y
 L

A
s

4
3

1
2

B
id

 t
e
a
m

 s
e
le

c
te

d
 b

y
 

P
ro

je
c
t 

D
ir
e
c
to

r 
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 

m
ix

 o
f 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 s
k
ill

s
 

(i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

 f
ro

m
 

p
a
rt

n
e
r 

a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 a

n
d
 

s
p
e
c
ia

lis
t 

e
x
te

rn
a
l 
a
d
v
is

o
rs

)

P
D

4
2

8
O

n
g
o
in

g
S

e
p
-1

2

T
e
c
h
n
ic

a
l,
 f

in
a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 l
e
g
a
l 

o
ff

ic
e
rs

 i
n
v
o
lv

e
d
 i
n
 e

v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 

c
h
a
lle

n
g
e
 s

e
s
s
io

n
s
 w

it
h
 

a
d
v
is

o
rs

P
1
6

O
ff

ic
e
rs

 a
re

 p
e
rc

e
iv

e
d
 t

o
 h

a
v
e
 

p
re

c
o
n
c
e
iv

e
d
 i
d
e
a
s
 o

f 
th

e
 

'b
e
s
t'
 s

o
lu

ti
o
n

L
a
c
k
 o

f 
tr

u
s
t 

o
f 

b
id

d
e
r 

s
e
le

c
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 s

o
lu

ti
o
n
 

s
e
le

c
te

d

4
3

1
2

 A
g
re

e
d
 s

c
o
ri
n
g
 c

ri
te

ri
a
 a

n
d
 

E
v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

.

S
ta

k
e
h
o
ld

e
r 

in
p
u
t 

to
 

e
v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 f

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

. 

M
o
d
e
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
s
c
o
re

s
 t

o
 

e
n
s
u
re

 c
o
n
s
is

te
n
c
y
 o

f 

e
v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
. 

In
p
u
t 

fr
o
m

 l
o
c
a
l 
p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

's
 

tr
a
n
s
a
c
to

r.

P
D

4
2

8
O

n
g
o
in

g
S

e
p
-1

2

S
c
o

p
e
 C

h
a
n

g
e
 –

 M
a
te

ri
a
l 

c
h

a
n

g
e
 i

n
 t

h
e
 s

c
o

p
e
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

S
C

1
M

a
te

ri
a
l 
c
h
a
n
g
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 s

c
o
p
e
 

o
f 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d

D
e
la

y
 t

o
 p

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 o

f 
b
id

d
e
rs

 w
it
h
d
ra

w
 

fr
o
m

 p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

d
u
e
 t

o
 

u
n
c
e
rt

a
in

ti
e
s

4
3

1
2

T
e
c
h
n
ic

a
l 
o
ff

ic
e
r 

in
p
u
t 

o
n
 

d
ra

ft
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

a
p
p
ro

v
e
d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

O
B

C
 b

y
 

p
a
rt

n
e
r 

a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s

P
M

P
M

4
2

8
O

n
g
o
in

g
S

e
p
-1

2

P
la

n
n

in
g

 a
n

d
 p

e
rm

it
ti

n
g

  
-a

b
il

it
y
 t

o
 s

e
c
u

re
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
p

la
n

n
in

g
 a

n
d

 p
e
rm

it
ti

n
g

 o
u

tc
o

m
e
 f

o
r 

s
o

lu
ti

o
n

P
S

1

R
e
g
io

n
a
l 
W

a
s
te

 P
la

n
 i
s
 i
n
 

c
o
n
fl
ic

t 
w

it
h
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
s
o
lu

ti
o
n
s

R
e
d
u
c
e
d
 C

o
m

p
e
ti
ti
o
n
 o

n
 b

i d

p
ro

c
e
s
s

4
3

1
2

P
la

n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 S

it
e
 

W
o
rk

s
tr

e
a
m

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 s

e
t 

u
p
 t

o
 a

s
s
is

t 
in

 r
e
d
u
c
in

g
 s

it
e
 

a
n
d
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 u

n
c
e
rt

a
in

ty
 

a
n
d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 p

ro
s
p
e
c
ts

 f
o
r 

a
 

p
o
s
it
iv

e
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
 

fo
r 

th
e
 p

ro
je

c
t.

 N
o
rt

h
 W

a
le

s
 

re
g
io

n
a
l 
w

a
s
te

 p
la

n
in

g
 t

e
a
m

 

n
o
w

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
. 

P
D

4
2

8
O

n
g
o
in

g
S

e
p
-1

2

C
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
s
, 

In
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 

a
n
d
 m

a
rk

e
ts

 p
la

n
 n

o
w

 

p
u
b
lis

h
e
d
 b

y
 W

G
. 
A

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 

R
e
g
io

n
a
l 
re

s
id

u
a
l 
w

a
s
te

 

tr
e
a
tm

e
n
t 

c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 c

le
a
rl
y
 

d
e
fi
n
e
d
.

P
S

5

S
u
it
a
b
le

 s
it
e
s
 a

re
 n

o
t 

in
 

c
o
u
n
c
il 

o
w

n
e
rs

h
ip

 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 s

o
lu

ti
o
n

P
ro

je
c
t 

d
e
la

y
e
d
 w

h
ils

t 

s
u
it
a
b
le

 s
it
e
s
 a

re
 s

e
c
u
re

d

5
3

1
5

P
ro

je
c
t 

te
a
m

 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 s

it
e
s
 

th
a
t 

c
o
u
ld

 b
e
 s

u
it
a
b
le

 f
o
r 

lo
c
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
b
o
th

 t
h
e
 w

a
s
te

 

tr
a
n
s
fe

r 
s
ta

ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 

re
s
id

u
a
l 
w

a
s
te

 t
re

a
tm

e
n
t 

fa
c
ili

ty
(s

).
 E

x
te

n
s
iv

e
 

n
e
g
o
ti
a
ti
o
n
s
 w

it
h
 l
a
n
d
 

o
w

n
e
rs

 o
f 

(f
u
rt

h
e
r)

 

a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
s
it
e
s
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 w

it
h
 

th
e
 a

im
 o

f 
s
e
c
u
ri
n
g
 

o
p
ti
o
n
(s

) 
fo

r 
s
it
e
(s

).

P
D

P
D

5
3

1
5

O
n
g
o
in

g
S

e
p
-1

2

A
n
g
le

s
e
y
 A

lu
m

in
iu

m
 s

it
e
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

s
 a

 p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
s
it
e
 

fo
r 

th
e
 l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
 f

a
c
ili

ty
, 

b
u
t 

d
e
s
p
it
e
 e

x
te

n
s
iv

e
 

n
e
g
o
ti
a
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 e

n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

w
it
h
 A

A
M

, 
A

A
M

 d
e
c
id

e
d
 n

o
t 

to
 m

a
k
e
 t

h
e
 s

it
e
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 t
o
 

th
e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 a
s
 t

h
e
y
 h

a
d
 

o
th

e
r 

u
s
e
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 s

it
e
.

P
S

6

T
h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 d
e
la

y
 o

n
 

o
b
ta

in
in

g
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 

p
e
rm

is
s
io

n
 (

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

re
fe

re
n
c
e
 s

it
e
)

F
a
ilu

re
 t

o
 c

o
m

p
ly

 w
it
h
 

L
A

S
, 

in
c
re

a
s
e
d
 c

o
s
ts

, 

im
p
a
c
t 

o
n
 a

w
a
rd

 o
f 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
P

e
rm

it

3
3

9

O
n
g
o
in

g
 e

n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

/ 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 r

e
le

v
a
n
t 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 a

n
d
 

o
th

e
r 

s
ta

k
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

/ 

s
ta

tu
to

ry
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
e
rs

. 
S

it
e
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g
a
te

 

w
o
rk

s
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

b
y
 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

.

P
D

3
2

6
O

n
g
o
in

g
S

e
p
-1

2

P
S

7

T
h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 d
e
la

y
 o

n
 

o
b
ta

in
in

g
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 

p
e
rm

is
s
io

n
 f

o
r 

W
T

S
 

s
it
e
s
 r

e
q
u
ir
in

g
 p

la
n
n
in

g

F
a
ilu

re
 t

o
 c

o
m

p
ly

 w
it
h
 

L
A

S
, 

in
c
re

a
s
e
d
 c

o
s
ts

, 

im
p
a
c
t 

o
n
 a

w
a
rd

 o
f 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
P

e
rm

it

4
4

1
6

O
n
g
o
in

g
 e

n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

/ 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 r

e
le

v
a
n
t 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 a

n
d
 

o
th

e
r 

s
ta

k
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

/ 

s
ta

tu
to

ry
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
e
e
s
. 

S
it
e
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g
a
te

 

w
o
rk

s
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

b
y
 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

.

P
D

3
2

6
O

n
g
o
in

g
S

e
p
-1

2

1
5

P
ro

je
c
t 

R
is

k
s
 a

n
d
 I

s
s
u
e
s
 R

e
g
is

te
r

R
IR

Page 35



V
e
rs

io
n
: 

4
.1

9
P

ro
je

c
t 

R
is

k
 I

s
s
u
e
 R

e
g
is

te
r

0
6
/1

2
/1

2

P
S

8

T
h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 d
e
la

y
 o

n
 

o
b
ta

in
in

g
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 

p
e
rm

is
s
io

n
 (

a
lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 

m
a
in

 r
e
fe

re
n
c
e
 s

it
e
 

s
o
lu

ti
o
n
 )

F
a
ilu

re
 t

o
 c

o
m

p
ly

 w
it
h
 

L
A

S
, 

in
c
re

a
s
e
d
 c

o
s
ts

, 

im
p
a
c
t 

o
n
 a

w
a
rd

 o
f 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
P

e
rm

it

4
4

1
6

E
a
rl
y
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
lly

 s
u
it
a
b
le

 

a
lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 m

a
in

 s
it
e
. 

O
n
g
o
in

g
 e

n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

/ 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 r

e
le

v
a
n
t 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 a

n
d
 

o
th

e
r 

s
ta

k
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

/ 

s
ta

tu
to

ry
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
e
e
s
. 

S
it
e
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g
a
te

 

w
o
rk

s
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

b
y
 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

.

P
D

3
3

9
O

n
g
o
in

g
S

e
p
-1

2

P
S

9
P

la
n
n
in

g
 p

e
rm

is
s
io

n
 

h
a
s
 o

n
e
ro

u
s
 c

o
n
d
it
io

n
s

S
u
b
-o

p
ti
m

a
l 
s
o
lu

ti
o
n
, 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 b

e
lo

w
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 l
e
v
e
l,
 

in
c
re

a
s
e
d
 c

o
s
ts

3
3

9

O
n
g
o
in

g
 e

n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

/ 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 r

e
le

v
a
n
t 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 a

n
d
 

o
th

e
r 

s
ta

k
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

/ 

s
ta

tu
to

ry
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
e
e
s
. 

S
it
e
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g
a
te

 

w
o
rk

s
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

b
y
 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

.

P
D

3
2

6
O

n
g
o
in

g
S

e
p
-1

2

R
is

k
s
 a

p
p
ly

 t
o
 a

ll 
s
it
e
s
 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
o
s
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 b

y
 

C
o
n
tr

a
c
to

r,
 n

o
t 
ju

s
t 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 

s
it
e
s

P
S

1
0

P
la

n
n
in

g
 p

e
rm

is
s
io

n
 

n
o
t 

s
e
c
u
re

d
 e

v
e
n
 a

ft
e
r 

a
p
p
e
a
l.

D
iv

e
rs

io
n

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 b

e
lo

w
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 l
e
v
e
l,
 

e
x
c
e
s
s
iv

e
 L

A
S

 

p
e
n
a
lt
ie

s
, 

in
c
re

a
s
e
d
 

c
o
s
ts

5
3

1
5

P
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 t

o
 

id
e
n
ti
fy

 d
e
liv

e
ra

b
ili

ty
 r

is
k
s
 o

f 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 
p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
  

lik
e
lih

o
o
d
 o

f 
a
 

s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
p
la

n
n
in

g
 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
.

P
D

5
2

1
0

O
n
g
o
in

g
S

e
p
-1

2

R
is

k
s
 a

p
p
ly

 t
o
 a

ll 
s
it
e
s
 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
o
s
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 b

y
 

C
o
n
tr

a
c
to

r,
 n

o
t 
ju

s
t 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 

s
it
e
s

P
S

1
2

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
P

e
rm

it
 

n
o
t 

s
e
c
u
re

d
 i
n
 

a
c
c
o
rd

a
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 p

ro
je

c
t 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e

P
ro

je
c
t 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

c
o
s
ts

 e
x
c
e
e
d
 

e
x
p
e
c
ta

ti
o
n
s
, 

d
e
la

y
s
 

to
 p

ro
je

c
t,

 e
x
c
e
s
s
iv

e
 

L
A

S
 p

e
n
a
lt
ie

s

4
3

1
2

P
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 t

o
 

id
e
n
ti
fy

 d
e
liv

e
ra

b
ili

ty
 r

is
k
s
 o

f 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 
p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
  

lik
e
lih

o
o
d
 o

f 
a
 

s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
p
e
rm

it
 

a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
.

P
D

4
2

8
O

n
g
o
in

g
S

e
p
-1

2

P
S

1
3

P
la

n
n
in

g
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 

fr
o
m

 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

ll 
b
id

d
e
r 

fa
ils

 t
o
 d

e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

 

B
e
s
t 

P
ra

c
ti
c
a
b
le

 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
O

p
ti
o
n
 

(B
P

E
O

)

U
n
s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

ll

p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n

4
4

1
6

T
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 B
P

E
O

 i
n
 L

if
e
 

C
y
c
le

 A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

(L
C

A
) 

(W
iz

a
rd

) 
a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

O
B

C
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t,

 a
n
d
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 

s
u
p
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ry
 m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 

e
m

p
lo

y
e
d
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

s
ie

ts
 

a
n
d
 e

v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 f

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 

fo
r 

p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
, 

th
e
re

b
y
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 

o
f 

B
P

E
O

A
 c

h
a
lle

n
g
e
 s

e
s
s
io

n
 w

il 
b
e
 s

e
t 

u
p

p
re

 C
F

T
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 t

w
o
 l
a
s
t 

re
m

a
in

in
g
 p

a
rt

ic
ia

p
n
ts

 t
o
 t

e
s
t 

th
e
 

w
a
y
 t

h
e
y
 w

ill
 s

e
e
k
 t

o
 

d
e
m

e
o
s
n
tr

a
te

 t
h
e
ir
 s

o
lu

ti
o
n
s
 a

re
 

B
P

E
O

 w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 

c
o
n
te

x
t.

P
D

4
2

8
O

n
g
o
in

g
S

e
p
-1

2

P
S

1
4

T
h
e
 r

e
c
e
n
t 

is
s
u
e
 o

f 
th

e
 d

ra
ft

 

C
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
s
, 

In
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 a

n
d
 

M
a
rk

e
ts

 S
e
c
to

r 
P

la
n
 (

C
IM

) 
b
y
 

W
G

 h
a
s
 l
e
d
 t

o
 u

n
c
e
rt

a
n
in

ty
 a

s
 

to
 t

h
e
 s

ta
tu

s
 o

f 
th

e
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 

R
e
g
io

n
a
l 
W

a
s
te

 P
la

n
 (

R
W

P
).

T
h
u
s
 t

h
e
 R

W
P

 m
a
y
 b

e
 g

iv
e
n
 

re
d
u
c
e
d
 w

e
ig

h
t 

in
 

d
e
te

rm
in

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 

a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 f

o
r 

w
a
s
te

 f
a
c
ili

ti
e
s
. 

A
 p

o
lic

y
 v

a
c
c
u
m

 m
a
y
 

th
e
re

fo
re

 e
x
is

t 
if
 t

h
is

 i
s
 n

o
t 

a
d
d
re

s
s
e
d
 b

y
 W

G
.

U
n
s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

ll

p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n

4
4

1
6

P
ro

je
c
t 

te
a
m

 a
n
d
 n

o
rt

h
 

w
a
le

s
 r

e
g
io

n
a
l 
w

a
s
te

 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 t

e
a
m

 e
n
g
a
g
in

g
 

w
it
h
 W

G
 o

n
 t

h
is

 i
s
s
u
e
 t

o
 

e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
 f

in
a
l 
is

s
u
e
d
 

v
e
rs

io
n
 o

f 
C

o
lle

c
ti
o
n
s
, 

In
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 a

n
d
 M

a
rk

e
ts

 

S
e
c
to

r 
P

la
n
 (

C
IM

) 
d
o
e
s
 n

o
t 

le
a
v
e
 a

 p
la

n
n
in

g
 "

p
o
lic

y
 

v
a
c
u
u
m

".
 R

e
g
io

n
a
l 
P

la
n
in

g
 

te
a
m

 a
n
d
 W

G
 p

la
n
in

g
 

te
a
m

s
 e

n
g
a
g
e
d
 w

it
h
 W

G
 

W
a
s
te

 P
o
lic

y
 s

e
c
ti
o
n
 t

o
 

s
e
e
k
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 

a
m

m
e
n
d
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 d

ra
ft

 C
IM

P
D

4
3

1
2

O
n
g
o
in

g
S

e
p
-1

2

W
G

's
 p

u
b
lis

h
e
d
 d

ra
ft

C
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
s
, 

In
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 

a
n
d
 M

a
rk

e
ts

 S
e
c
to

r 
P

la
n
 

(C
IM

) 
n
o
w

 i
s
s
u
e
d
. 
S

e
e
 r

is
k
 

P
S

1

S
it

e
s S

1
S

it
e
 c

o
n
d
it
io

n
s
 a

re
 n

o
t 

a
s
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d

D
e
la

y
 i
n
 p

ro
je

c
t 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
,

e
x
c
e
s
s
iv

e
 L

A
S

 c
o
s
ts

, 

e
x
c
e
s
s
iv

e
 C

a
p
e
x
 

p
ri
c
e
s
, 

p
o
s
s
ib

le
 t

h
re

a
t 

to
 a

ff
o
rd

a
b
ili

ty

3
3

9

T
e
c
h
n
ic

a
l 
a
d
v
is

o
rs

 h
a
v
e
 

b
e
e
n
 t

a
s
k
e
d
 t

o
 r

e
v
ie

w
 s

it
e
 

c
o
n
s
tr

a
in

ts

P
D

P
D

3
2

6
O

n
g
o
in

g
S

e
p
-1

2

S
2

S
in

g
le

 s
it
e
 n

o
t 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

 

fo
r 

re
s
id

u
a
l 
fa

c
ili

ty

R
e
-d

e
fi
n
e
 t

h
e
 p

ro
je

c
t,

 

d
e
la

y
e
d
, 

c
o
s
t,

.e
tc

5
3

1
5

In
it
ia

l 
re

fe
re

n
c
e
 s

o
lu

ti
o
n
 s

it
e
 

a
lr
e
a
d
y
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
. 

F
u
rt

h
e
r 

s
it
e
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 w

o
rk

 t
o
 b

e
 

c
a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

p
ri
o
r 

to
  

a
n
d
 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 e

a
rl
y
 s

ta
g
e
s
 o

f 

p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

p
ro

c
e
s
s

P
D

5
2

1
0

O
n
g
o
in

g
S

e
p
-1

2

1
6

P
ro

je
c
t 

R
is

k
s
 a

n
d
 I

s
s
u
e
s
 R

e
g
is

te
r

R
IR

Page 36



V
e
rs

io
n
: 

4
.1

9
P

ro
je

c
t 

R
is

k
 I

s
s
u
e
 R

e
g
is

te
r

0
6
/1

2
/1

2

S
3

O
n
e
 o

r 
m

o
re

 o
f 

th
e
 

s
it
e
s
 n

o
t 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

 f
o
r 

s
o
m

e
 r

e
s
id

u
a
l 
fa

c
ili

ti
e
s

R
e
-d

e
fi
n
e
 t

h
e
 p

ro
je

c
t,

 

d
e
la

y
e
d
, 

c
o
s
t,

.e
tc

4
3

1
2

A
  

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
s
it
e
s
 

a
lr
e
a
d
y
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
.

P
D

A
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
a
c
q
u
is

it
io

n
 w

o
rk

 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
.

P
D

4
2

8
O

n
g
o
in

g
S

e
p
-1

2
S

e
e
 r

is
k
 P

S
5

S
4

O
n
e
 o

r 
m

o
re

 o
f 

s
it
e
s
 

n
o
t 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

 f
o
r 

s
o
m

e
 

W
T

S
 f

a
c
ili

ti
e
s

D
is

p
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
a
te

c
o
s
ts

 o
n
 s

o
m

e
 

p
a
rt

n
e
r 

a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s

4
3

1
2

A
  

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
s
it
e
s
 

a
lr
e
a
d
y
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
.

P
D

A
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
a
c
q
u
is

it
io

n
 w

o
rk

 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
.

P
D

4
2

8
O

n
g
o
in

g
S

e
p
-1

2

W
a
s
te

s

W
1

A
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

fa
il 

to
 r

e
a
c
h
 

re
c
y
c
lin

g
 t

a
rg

e
ts

 b
y
 n

o
t 

d
e
liv

e
ri
n
g
 e

n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 

"f
ro

n
t 

e
n
d
" 

re
c
y
c
lin

g
 

a
n
d
 c

o
m

p
o
s
ti
n
g
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

P
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
e
x
c
e
s
s
iv

e
 

p
ro

je
c
t 

c
o
s
ts

 d
u
e
 t

o
 

e
x
c
e
s
s
 r

e
s
id

u
a
l 

w
a
s
te

, 
th

re
a
t 

to
 

a
ff

o
rd

a
b
ili

ty
, 

p
o
s
s
ib

le
 

e
x
c
e
s
s
iv

e
 L

A
S

 

p
e
n
a
lt
ie

s
 i
f 

fa
c
ili

ti
e
s
 

u
n
d
e
r-

s
iz

e
d
 a

n
d
 f

in
e
s
 

a
p
p
lie

d
 b

y
 W

G
 t

o
 

a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 f

o
r 

u
n
d
e
rp

e
rf

o
rm

in
g

a
g
a
in

s
t 

re
c
y
c
lin

g
 

ta
rg

e
ts

.

3
4

1
2

In
it
ia

l 
d
is

c
u
s
s
io

n
s
 a

lr
e
a
d
y
 

h
e
ld

 o
n
 k

e
y
 p

a
y
m

e
n
t 

m
e
c
h
a
n
is

m
 a

n
d
 i
n
te

r 

a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 p
ri
n
c
ip

le
s
 t

o
 

d
e
s
c
ri
b
e
 r

is
k
 a

n
d
 h

o
w

 c
o
s
ts

 

w
ill

 b
e
 a

s
s
ig

n
e
d
 a

m
o
n
g
s
t 

th
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
r 

a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 f

o
r 

u
n
d
e
r/

 o
v
e
r 

p
ro

v
is

io
n
 o

f 

w
a
s
te

 t
o
n
n
a
g
e
s
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 

o
f 

u
n
d
e
r/

o
v
e
r 

re
c
y
c
lin

g
/ 

c
o
m

p
o
s
ti
n
g
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

a
g
a
in

s
t 

a
g
re

e
d
 w

a
s
te

 

p
ro

fi
le

s
.

P
D

O
n
g
o
in

g
 e

n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 p

a
rt

n
e
r 

a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 t

o
 u

n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
 

p
ro

p
o
s
e
d
 w

a
s
te

 r
e
c
y
c
lin

g
 a

n
d
 

c
o
m

p
o
s
ti
n
g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 s

o
 t

h
a
t 

to
n
n
a
g
e
 p

ro
fi
le

s
 c

a
n
 b

e
 f

in
a
lis

e
d
 

p
ri
o
r 

to
 I

S
D

S
 s

ta
g
e
 o

f 
th

e
 

p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
. 

P
a
rt

n
e
r 

a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 t

o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 p

la
n
s
 f

o
r 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
 e

n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 r

e
c
y
c
lin

g
 a

n
d
 

c
o
m

p
o
s
ti
n
g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
.

P
D

3
3

9
O

n
g
o
in

g
S

e
p
-1

2

W
G

 a
re

 e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
in

g
 

a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 i
n
 W

a
le

s
 t

o
 e

n
te

r 

in
to

 a
 "

c
h
a
n
g
e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
" 

w
h
e
re

 W
G

 w
ill

 o
ff

e
r 

a
s
s
is

ta
n
c
e
 t

o
 L

a
s
 t

o
 w

o
rk

 

to
g
e
th

e
r 

a
n
d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 "

fr
o
n
t 

e
n
d
" 

re
c
y
c
lin

g
 a

n
d
 c

o
lle

c
ti
o
n
s
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
. 

S
e
e
 F

1
5

W
2

W
a
s
te

 f
lo

w
 m

o
d
e
l 
is

 

in
a
c
c
u
ra

te
 d

u
e
 t

o
 

in
c
o
rr

e
c
t 

a
s
s
u
m

p
ti
o
n
s

P
o
s
s
ib

le
 r

e
-b

id
d
in

g
 

re
s
u
lt
in

g
 i
n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 

p
ro

je
c
t 

c
o
s
ts

, 
d
e
la

y
s
 

to
 p

ro
je

c
t,

 p
o
s
s
ib

ly
 

e
x
c
e
s
s
iv

e
 L

A
S

 

c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 c

o
s
ts

 a
n
d
 

in
c
re

a
s
e
d
 l
a
n
d
fi
ll 

c
o
s
ts

 (
If

 w
a
s
te

 m
o
re

 

th
a
n
 p

re
d
ic

te
d
),

 

p
o
s
s
ib

le
 "

p
u
t 

o
r 

p
a
y
" 

lia
b
ili

ti
e
s
 (

if
 w

a
s
te

 

le
s
s
 t

h
a
n
 p

re
d
ic

te
d
).

3
4

1
2

A
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

s
e
n
s
it
iv

it
ie

s
 a

re

b
e
in

g
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

to
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 

im
p
a
c
t 

o
f 

d
if
fe

ri
n
g
 

a
s
s
u
m

p
ti
o
n
s
 u

s
e
d
 c

a
n
 b

e
 

u
n
d
e
rs

to
o
d
. 

E
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
 

w
a
s
te

 f
lo

w
s
 c

a
n
 b

e
 m

o
d
if
ie

d
 

th
ro

u
g
h
 e

a
rl
y
 s

ta
g
e
s
 o

f 

p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

(u
p
 t

o
 I

S
D

S
).

A
 r

a
n
g
e
 o

f 
s
e
n
s
it
iv

it
ie

s
 t

o
 b

e
 

m
o
d
e
lle

d
 a

n
d
 u

s
e
d
 a

s
 a

 

b
a
s
is

 f
o
r 

d
ia

lo
g
u
e
 w

it
h
 

b
id

d
e
rs

.

P
D

T
o
n
n
a
g
e
 p

ro
je

c
ti
o
n
s
 t

o
 b

e
 

re
v
iw

e
d
 p

re
 C

F
T

 b
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 l
a
te

s
t 

d
a
ta

.

P
D

3
3

9
O

n
g
o
in

g
S

e
p
-1

2

 S
ta

n
d
a
rd

 c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 

h
a
s
 

s
u
b
s
ti
tu

te
 w

a
s
te

 p
ro

v
is

io
n
s
 

s
o
 t

h
a
t 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 
h
a
s
 d

u
ty

 t
o
 

s
e
e
k
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
3
rd

 p
a
rt

y
 

w
a
s
te

 i
f 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 u
n
d
e
r 

d
e
liv

e
r.

W
3

C
o
m

p
o
s
it
io

n
 o

f 
w

a
s
te

 

is
 d

if
fe

re
n
t 

fr
o
m

 t
h
a
t 

a
n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 (

p
o
o
r 

d
a
ta

, 

p
o
lic

y
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
, 

c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 i
n
 c

o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e
s
)

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 b

e
lo

w
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 l
e
v
e
l,
 

e
x
c
e
s
s
iv

e
 L

A
S

 

c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 c

o
s
ts

3
5

1
5

W
a
s
te

 c
o
m

p
o
s
it
io

n
 t

o
 b

e
 

m
o
n
it
o
re

d
 d

u
ri
n
g
 

p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 d

a
ta

 

s
h
a
re

d
 a

t 
C

o
m

p
e
ti
ti
v
e
 

D
ia

lo
g
u
e
 t

o
 i
n
fo

rm
 s

o
lu

ti
o
n
.

A
ll 

W
a
le

s
 W

a
s
te

 

c
o
m

p
o
s
it
io

n
 a

n
a
ly

s
is

 h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

b
y
 W

G
 

th
ro

u
g
h
 W

R
A

P
 s

tu
d
y
 h

a
s
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d
 a

 g
o
o
d
 d

a
ta

 s
e
t.

 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
te

c
h
n
o
lo

g
y
 

s
o
lu

ti
o
n
 w

ill
 b

e
 t

e
s
te

d
 a

n
d
 

u
n
d
e
rs

to
o
d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 

p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 t

o
 

id
e
n
ti
fy

 t
h
e
 a

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
e
a
c
h
 

s
o
lu

ti
o
n
 t

o
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 w

a
s
te

s
 

w
it
h
 c

h
a
n
g
e
d
 c

o
m

p
o
s
it
io

n
.

P
D

3
4

1
2

O
n
g
o
in

g
S

e
p
-1

2

W
a
s
te

 c
o
m

p
o
s
ti
o
n
 r

is
k
 n

o
t 

b
e
in

g
 a

c
c
e
p
te

d
 b

y
 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 -
 r

is
k
 l
ie

s
 w

it
h
 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
to

r

W
4

P
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 i
n
 

th
e
 l
e
g
a
l 
d
e
fi
n
it
io

n
 o

f 

(c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
)

n
o
n
–

M
u
n
ic

ip
a
l 
S

o
lid

 

W
a
s
te

s
 s

u
c
h
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
y
 

b
e
c
o
m

e
 t

h
e
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ty

 o
f 

th
e
 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s

A
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
w

a
s
te

s
 

m
a
y
 h

a
v
e
 t

o
 b

e
 

a
c
c
o
m

o
d
a
te

d
 i
n
 

s
o
lu

ti
o
n

3
2

6

P
ro

je
c
t 

te
a
m

 t
o
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 W

G
 a

n
d
 U

K
 

G
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

P
o
lic

y

P
D

P
D

3
2

6
O

n
g
o
in

g
S

e
p
-1

2

P
E

1

M
a
rk

e
t/

o
u
tl
e
t 

is
 n

o
t 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

 f
o
r 

o
u
tp

u
ts

 

fr
o
m

 t
h
e
 f

a
c
ili

ty
(s

)

In
c
re

a
s
e
d
 p

ro
je

c
t 

o
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l 
c
o
s
ts

, 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 d

e
m

a
n
d
 

fo
r 

la
n
d
fi
ll 

v
o
id

4
4

1
6

E
n
s
u
re

 m
a
rk

e
t 

d
e
liv

e
ra

b
ili

ty
 

d
e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

e
v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
.

P
D

4
3

1
2

O
n
g
o
in

g
S

e
p
-1

2

P
E

2

T
h
e
 s

e
le

c
te

d
 

te
c
h
n
o
lo

g
y
 f

a
ils

 t
o
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

 t
o
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 

le
v
e
l 
(u

n
re

lia
b
le

 o
r 

p
o
o
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
)

E
x
c
e
s
s
iv

e
 L

A
S

 

c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 c

o
s
ts

, 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 
A

g
e
n
c
y
 

c
lo

s
e
 f

a
c
ili

ty
, 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 
d
e
fa

u
lt
s
, 

n
e
e
d
 t

o
 m

o
d
if
y
 t

h
e
 

s
o
lu

ti
o
n
 r

e
s
u
lt
in

g
 i
n
 

in
c
re

a
s
e
d
 C

a
p
e
x

3
3

9

E
n
s
u
re

 t
e
c
h
n
ic

a
l 
tr

a
c
k
 

re
c
o
rd

 p
ro

v
e
n
, 

a
d
e
q
u
a
te

 

te
s
t 

o
f 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 
o
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 

e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 t

h
a
t 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 
p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 a
re

 

e
x
p
lo

re
d
 i
n
 d

e
ta

il 
a
n
d
 w

e
ll 

u
n
d
e
rs

to
o
d
.

P
D

3
2

6
O

n
g
o
in

g
S

e
p
-1

2

C
o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 
w

ill
 h

a
v
e
 

m
a
x
im

u
m

 l
a
n
d
fi
ll 

a
llo

w
a
n
c
e
. 

If
 m

o
re

 m
a
te

ri
a
ls

 a
re

 l
a
n
d
 

fi
lle

d
 t

h
is

 w
o
u
ld

 b
e
 a

t 
c
o
s
t 

to
 

th
e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
to

r.
 U

lt
im

a
te

ly
 l
e
a
d
 

to
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 
d
e
fa

u
lt
 i
f 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 

u
jn

d
e
rp

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

C
o

n
tr

a
c
to

r 1
7

P
ro

je
c
t 

R
is

k
s
 a

n
d
 I

s
s
u
e
s
 R

e
g
is

te
r

R
IR

Page 37



V
e
rs

io
n
: 

4
.1

9
P

ro
je

c
t 

R
is

k
 I

s
s
u
e
 R

e
g
is

te
r

0
6
/1

2
/1

2

C
1

C
o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 
d
e
fa

u
lt

R
e
-p

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 

a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
c
o
s
ts

5
3

1
5

E
n
s
u
re

 t
ra

c
k
 r

e
c
o
rd

 o
f 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
to

r,
 d

e
liv

e
ra

b
ili

ty
 o

f 

p
ro

p
o
s
a
l 
(a

s
 a

t 
re

a
s
o
n
a
b
le

 

c
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
re

tu
rn

 t
o
 t

h
e
 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
to

r)
 u

n
d
e
rs

to
o
d
. 

T
h
o
s
e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 
p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 

v
ie

w
e
d
 a

s
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
h
ig

h
 r

is
k
 

o
f 

n
o
n
-d

e
liv

e
ry

 w
ill

 b
e
 

m
a
rk

e
d
  

a
c
c
o
rd

in
g
ly

 i
n
 l
in

e
 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 e

v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 

fr
a
m

e
w

o
rk

P
D

5
2

1
0

O
n
g
o
in

g
S

e
p
-1

2

K
e
y

P
D

P
ro

je
c
t 

D
ir
e
c
to

r

P
M

P
ro

je
c
t 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r

B
D

B
a
rr

y
 D

a
v
ie

s
 (

F
C

C
 M

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 O

ff
ic

e
r)

1
8

P
ro

je
c
t 

R
is

k
s
 a

n
d
 I

s
s
u
e
s
 R

e
g
is

te
r

R
IR

Page 38



R
6

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
ts

n
o
t

a
p
p
o
in

te
d

u
s
in

g
 c

o
rr

e
c
t 

p
ro

c
e
d
u
re

s

P
ro

je
c
t

d
e
la

y
s
 w

h
ils

t 

a
p
p
o
in

tm
e
n
t

s
 c

h
a
lle

n
g
e
d

4
1

4

P
ro

je
c
t 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
ts

 T
e
c
h
n
ic

a
l 
a
t 

IT
T

 

a
n
d
 L

e
g
a
l 
a
p
p
o
in

tm
e
n
ts

 a
b
o
u
t 

to
 b

e
 

a
p
p
o
in

te
d
. 

 F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
 o

u
ts

ta
n
d
in

g
 b

u
t 

b
e
in

g
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
e
d
.

T
a
k
e
 a

d
v
ic

e
 f

ro
m

 P
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

s
p
e
c
ia

lis
ts

 a
n
d
 

P
U

K

A
u
g
-0

9

2
7
/0

7
/0

9

H
R

2
 (

e
x
 R

2
)

U
n
c
le

a
r

d
e
fi
n
it
io

n
 o

f 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ti

e
s
 o

f 
th

e
 

p
ro

je
c
t 

te
a
m

T
a
s
k
s
 n

o
t 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
.

R
is

k
s
 a

n
d
 

is
s
u
e
s
 n

o
t 

e
s
c
a
la

te
d
.

3
2

6

J
o
b
 D

e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
s
 f

o
r 

k
e
y
 r

o
le

s
P

ro
je

c
t 

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 w

it
h
 o

u
tl
in

e
 J

o
b
 D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti
o
n
s
 

in
c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 P

ID

P
D

3
1

3

0
8
/1

0
.0

9
0
7
/0

9
/0

9

A
1
 (

E
X

 P
9
)

C
o
s
t 

o
f 

C
o
n
tr

a
c
t 

to
o
 

H
ig

h

P
ro

je
c
t 

R
e
-

te
n
d
e
re

d

4
4

1
6

O
B

C
 o

p
ti
o
n
s
 a

p
p
ra

is
a
l 
le

a
d
in

g
 t

o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 

o
f 

re
fe

re
n
c
e
 s

o
lu

ti
o
n
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
s
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
a
s
p
e
c
ts

 

o
f 

 s
o
lu

ti
o
n
. 
A

llo
w

 v
a
ri
a
n
ts

 w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 b

id
 t

o
 

re
m

o
v
e
 e

le
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 b

ri
n
g
 c

o
s
ts

 d
o
w

n
. 

U
s
e
 o

f 

c
o
m

p
e
ti
ti
v
e
 D

ia
lo

g
u
e
 w

ill
 a

llo
w

 s
o
m

e
 i
te

ra
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 a

m
e
n
d
m

e
n
t 

to
 r

is
k
 a

llo
c
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

s
p
e
c
if
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 i
f 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
.

P
D

4
3

1
2

O
n
g
o
in

g
N

o
v
-0

9
1
0
/1

1
/0

9

(c
lo

s
e
d
 a

s
 i
s
 

a
 d

u
p
lic

a
te

 o
f

F
1
3
)

A
2
 (

E
X

 R
4
)

F
u
n
d
in

g
 n

o
t 

P
ro

v
id

e
d

fr
o
m

T
re

a
s
u
ry

P
ro

je
c
t

D
e
la

y
e
d

w
h
ils

t 
c
o
s
ts

 

a
re

 r
e
d
u
c
e
d
 

o
r 

P
ro

je
c
t 

s
u
s
p
e
n
d
e
d

4
2

8

O
B

C
 p

la
n
n
e
d
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 t

h
a
t 

is
 

d
e
s
ig

n
e
d
 t

o
 m

e
e
t 

W
A

G
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

P
D

F
B

C
 (

F
in

a
l 
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 C

a
s
e
) 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 w

h
e
n
 

P
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 .

 N
e
e
d
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 

p
ro

c
u
re

d
 s

o
lu

ti
o
n
 i
s
 c

o
n
s
is

te
n
t 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 

o
b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 o

f 
th

e
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
O

B
C

.
P

D
4

1
4

O
n
g
o
in

g
N

o
v
-0

9
1
0
/1

1
/0

9

(c
lo

s
e
d
 a

s
 i
s
 

a
 d

u
p
lic

a
te

 o
f

F
1
3
)

 R
1

O
u
ts

ta
n
d
in

g

T
e
a
m

a
p
p
o
in

tm
e
n
t

s

P
ro

je
c
t 

te
a
m

 

u
n
d
e
r

re
s
o
u
rc

e
d

le
a
d
in

g
 t

o
 

p
ro

je
c
t

s
lip

p
a
g
e

3
3

9

P
ro

p
o
s
e
d
 t

e
a
m

 r
e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 

s
p
e
c
if
ie

d
. 

In
te

ri
m

 P
ro

je
c
t 

D
ir
e
c
to

r 
n
o
w

 

in
 r

o
le

. 
 P

ro
je

c
t 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

in
te

rv
ie

w
s
 

a
rr

a
n
g
e
d
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 a

d
v
e
rt

is
e
m

e
n
t 

fo
r 

in
te

rn
a
l 
s
e
c
o
n
d
e
e
.

In
d
iv

id
u
a
l

P
a
rt

n
e
r

A
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s

A
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 t

o
 n

o
m

in
a
te

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a
ls

 

a
n
d
 t

o
 b

a
c
k
fi
ll 

th
e
ir
 p

o
s
ts

. 
In

p
u
t 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 f

ro
m

 

k
e
y
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

 i
n
 P

a
rt

n
e
r 

A
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
. 

P
D

 h
a
s
 

p
ro

d
u
c
e
d
 a

n
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

d
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
 i
n
p
u
t 

s
c
h
e
d
u
le

 t
o
 a

s
s
is

t 
P

a
rt

n
e
r 

a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 i
n
 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

In
d
iv

id
u
a
l

P
a
rt

n
e
r

A
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s

3
2

6
O

n
g
o
in

g
N

o
v
-0

9
1
0
/1

1
/0

9

(d
u
p
lic

a
te

 o
f 

P
D

1
1
)

P
S

4

P
la

n
n
in

g

P
e
rm

is
s
io

n

n
o
t 

g
ra

n
te

d
 

a
t 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

S
it
e
s

P
ro

je
c
t

d
e
la

y
e
d

w
h
ils

t

s
u
it
a
b
le

 s
it
e
s
 

a
re

 s
e
c
u
re

d

5
3

1
5

A
lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 S

it
e
(s

) 
to

 b
e
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

n
d
 

p
ri
o
ri
ti
s
e
d
 i
n
 o

rd
e
r 

o
f 

s
u
it
a
b
ili

ty
. 

 P
la

n
n
in

g
 

a
d
v
is

o
r 

a
p
p
o
in

te
d
 t

o
 p

ro
je

c
t 

te
a
m

 a
n
d
 

P
la

n
n
in

g
/ 

s
it
e
s
 w

o
rk

s
tr

e
a
m

 t
o
 b

e
 s

e
t 

u
p
.

P
D

4
2

8

A
u
g
 /

2
0
0
9
 

(c
o
m

m
e
n
c
e
)

N
o
v
-0

9

1
0
/1

1
/0

9

T
7

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t

a
l 
A

c
ti
v
is

ts
 

s
e
e
k
 t

o
 d

e
la

y
 

c
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n

P
ro

je
c
t/

b
u
ild

p
o
te

n
ti
a
lly

d
is

ru
p
te

d
3

3
9

P
ro

-A
c
ti
v
e
 C

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 &

 

in
v
o
lv

e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

E
A

 a
n
d
 H

IA

A
p
p
o
in

tm
e
n
t 

o
f 

P
R

 C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
ts

P
D

1
0
/1

1
/0

9

(d
u
p
lic

a
te

 o
f 

C
O

4
)

P
3

L
A

S
 R

is
k
 f

o
r 

th
e

c
o
n
tr

a
c
to

r

d
e
te

rs

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l

b
id

d
e
rs

in
s
u
ff

ic
ie

n
t

c
o
m

p
e
ti
ti
o
n

fo
r 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 

4
2

8

A
 r

is
k
 a

llo
c
a
ti
o
n
 w

o
rk

s
h
o
p
 t

o
 b

e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
d
 

b
y
 t

h
e
 P

ro
je

c
t 

D
ir
e
c
to

r 
w

it
h
 i
n
p
u
t 

fr
o
m

 A
d
v
is

o
rs

 

to
 e

n
s
u
re

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 r
is

k
 a

llo
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 a

re
 m

a
d
e
 

fo
r 

th
e
 p

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 

a
d
o
p
t 

a
 c

o
m

m
e
rc

ia
lly

 d
e
liv

e
ra

b
le

 a
n
d
 

s
u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

 p
o
s
it
io

n
.

P
D

N
o
v
-0

9

1
0
/1

1
/0

9

(T
o
o
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 

a
n
d
 c

o
v
e
re

d
 

u
n
d
e
r

g
e
n
e
ra

l

p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t

ri
s
k
s
)

Page 39



S
2

R
D

F

p
ro

d
u
c
e
d

C
a
n
n
o
t 

b
e
 

s
o
ld

R
D

F
 i
s
 

la
n
d
fi
lle

d
4

2
8

 R
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

is
 p

o
s
it
io

n
 t

o
 b

e
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 i
n
 

c
o
n
ju

n
c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 a

d
v
is

o
rs

 a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

d
e
s
ig

n
 p

ro
c
e
s
s

P
D

N
o
v
-0

9
1
0
/1

1
/2

0
0
9

(d
u
p
lic

a
te

 o
f 

P
E

1
)

S
3

R
D

F
 q

u
a
lit

y
 

n
o
t

c
o
n
s
is

te
n
t

d
u
e
 t

o
 i
n
fl
o
w

 

o
f 

re
s
id

u
a
l

P
u
rc

h
a
s
e
r 

o
f 

R
D

F
 r

e
je

c
ts

 

lo
a
d
s

4
2

8

C
o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 
to

 g
u
a
ra

n
te

e
 c

a
lo

ri
fi
c
 v

a
lu

e
 w

it
h
in

 

to
le

ra
n
c
e
 l
im

it
s.

 A
 r

is
k
 a

llo
c
a
ti
o
n
 w

o
rk

s
h
o
p
 t

o
 

b
e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 P

ro
je

c
t 

D
ir
e
c
to

r 
w

it
h
 

in
p
u
t 

fr
o
m

 A
d
v
is

o
rs

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 r
is

k
 

a
llo

c
a
ti
o
n
s
 a

re
 m

a
d
e
 f

o
r 

th
e
 p

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 

th
a
t 

th
e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 a
d
o
p
t 

a
 c

o
m

m
e
rc

ia
lly

 

d
e
liv

e
ra

b
le

 a
n
d
 s

u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

 p
o
s
it
io

n
.

P
D

N
o
v
-0

9

1
1
/1

1
/2

0
0
9

(D
u
p
lic

a
te

 o
f 

P
E

2
)

S
4

L
A

 f
a
ils

 t
o
 

s
u
p
p
ly

re
q
u
ir
e
d

v
o
lu

m
e
s
 o

f 

w
a
s
te

 f
o
r 

tr
e
a
tm

e
n
t

C
o
n
tr

a
c
to

r

in
v
o
k
e
s

p
e
n
a
lt
y

c
la

u
s
e
 t

o
 

m
e
e
t 

ta
rg

e
ts

4
3

1
2

W
a
s
te

 v
o
lu

m
e
s
 s

e
t 

a
t 

m
in

im
u
m

 l
e
v
e
ls

 a
n
d
 

m
o
n
th

ly
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 o

f 
w

a
s
te

 a
ri
s
in

g
s
 u

n
ti
l 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 

s
ig

n
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 c

la
ri
ty

. 
A

 r
is

k
 a

llo
c
a
ti
o
n
 

w
o
rk

s
h
o
p
 t

o
 b

e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 P

ro
je

c
t 

D
ir
e
c
to

r 
w

it
h
 i
n
p
u
t 

fr
o
m

 A
d
v
is

o
rs

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 r
is

k
 a

llo
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 a

re
 m

a
d
e
 f

o
r 

th
e
 

p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 a
d
o
p
t 

a
 

c
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
lly

 d
e
liv

e
ra

b
le

 a
n
d
 s

u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

 

p
o
s
it
io

n
.

P
D

N
o
v
-0

9

1
1
/1

1
/2

0
0
9

(D
u
p
lic

a
te

 o
f 

W
1
)

S
5

W
a
s
te

c
o
m

p
o
s
it
io

n

a
n
a
ly

s
is

 n
o
t 

a
s
 E

u
n
o
m

ia
 /

 

A
E

A

C
o
n
tr

a
c
to

r

u
n
a
b
le

 t
o
 

d
e
te

rm
in

e

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

te
c
h
n
o
lo

g
y

fo
r 

tr
e
a
tm

e
n
t 

/ 
E

fW

2
3

6

W
a
s
te

 c
o
m

p
o
s
it
io

n
 t

o
 b

e
 m

o
n
it
o
re

d
 d

u
ri
n
g
 

p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 d

a
ta

 s
h
a
re

d
 a

t 
C

o
m

p
e
ti
ti
v
e
 

D
ia

lo
g
u
e
 t

o
 i
n
fo

rm
 s

o
lu

ti
o
n
. 

 A
ll 

W
a
le

s
 W

a
s
te

 

c
o
m

p
o
s
it
io

n
 a

n
a
ly

s
is

 b
e
in

g
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 b

y
 W

A
G

 

th
ro

u
g
h
 W

R
A

P
. 

 I
n
it
ia

l 
w

o
rk

 c
o
m

m
e
n
c
in

g
 i
n
 

J
u
n
e
 0

9
.

1
0
/1

/0
9

(D
u
p
lic

a
te

 o
f 

W
3
)

S
6

L
A

 c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 

m
e
th

o
d
o
lo

g
y

le
a
d
s
 t

o
 

p
e
a
k
s
 a

n
d
 

tr
o
u
g
h
s
 o

f 

s
u
p
p
ly

tr
e
a
tm

e
n
t

p
la

n
t 

u
n
a
b
le

 

to
 c

o
p
e
 w

it
h
 

w
id

e

v
a
ri
a
n
c
e
 i
n
 

v
o
lu

m
e
s
 /

 

c
o
m

p
o
s
it
io

n

3
3

9

L
A

's
 s

ig
n
 L

A
A

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 e
v
e
n
 f

lo
w

 o
f 

m
a
te

ri
a
l 

to
 f

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 a

s
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t.

  
A

 

ri
s
k
 a

llo
c
a
ti
o
n
 w

o
rk

s
h
o
p
 t

o
 b

e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
d
 b

y
 

th
e
 P

ro
je

c
t 

D
ir
e
c
to

r 
w

it
h
 i
n
p
u
t 

fr
o
m

 A
d
v
is

o
rs

 t
o
 

e
n
s
u
re

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 r
is

k
 a

llo
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 a

re
 m

a
d
e
 

fo
r 

th
e
 p

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 

a
d
o
p
t 

a
 c

o
m

m
e
rc

ia
lly

 d
e
liv

e
ra

b
le

 a
n
d
 

s
u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

 p
o
s
it
io

n
.

P
D

N
o
v
-0

9

1
0
/1

1
/0

9

(T
o
o
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 

a
n
d
 c

o
v
e
re

d
 

u
n
d
e
r 

W
1
)

P
O

3
 (

e
x
 S

8
)

W
A

G
 w

a
s
te

 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

ta
rg

e
ts

c
h
a
n
g
e

L
o
c
a
l

A
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s

w
ill

 i
n
c
u
r 

p
e
n
a
lt
ie

s

re
g
a
rd

le
s
s
 o

f 

th
is

 p
ro

je
c
t

4
4

1
6

P
ro

je
c
t 

T
e
a
m

 i
n
 c

o
n
ta

c
t 

w
it
h
 W

A
G

 

a
n
d
 P

U
K

P
D

P
ro

je
c
t 

D
ir
e
c
to

r 
to

 k
e
e
p
 i
n
 c

lo
s
e
 c

o
n
ta

c
t 

w
it
h
 

W
A

G
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
p
o
lic

y
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 t

h
a
t 

m
a
y
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
n
 t

h
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

a
re

 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 e

a
rl
y
. 

(S
e
e
 r

is
k
 T

6
).

 H
o
w

e
v
e
r 

N
W

R
W

T
P

 h
a
s
 l
it
tl
e
 

in
fl
u
e
n
c
e
 o

v
e
r 

W
A

G
 p

o
lic

y
 d

e
c
is

io
n
s

P
D

4
3

1
2

O
n
g
o
in

g
N

o
v
-0

9

1
0
/1

1
/0

9

(d
u
p
lic

a
te

 o
f 

P
O

2
)

A
P

3
 (

e
x
 T

3
)

P
a
rt

n
e
r 

L
A

 

d
o
e
s
n
't
 s

ig
n
 

In
te

r

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

A
g
re

e
m

e
n
t

(I
A

A
)

P
ro

je
c
t

d
e
la

y
e
d

w
h
ils

t

re
v
is

io
n
s
 a

re
 

m
a
d
e
 t

o
 I
A

A
 

d
o
c
u
m

e
n
t

3
2

6

N
e
w

ly
 a

p
p
o
in

te
d
 l
e
g
a
l 
a
d
v
is

o
rs

 t
o
 c

o
m

m
e
n
c
e
 

w
o
rk

 o
n
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 A
g
re

e
m

e
n
t 

w
it
h
 P

a
rt

n
e
r 

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

 l
e
g
a
l 
le

a
d
s

L
P

4
2

8
C

o
m

m
e
n
c
e

J
u
ly

2
0
0
9
,C

o
m

p
le

te
 N

o
v
 2

0
0
9
.

N
o
v
-0

9

1
0
/1

1
/0

9

(d
u
p
lic

a
te

 o
f 

A
P

4
)

Page 40



T
8

O
B

C
 t

im
e
lin

e
 

is
 d

e
la

y
e
d
 i
f 

re
q
u
ir
e
d

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n

in
 t

e
rm

s
 o

f 

to
n
n
a
g
e
,

fu
tu

re

re
c
y
c
lin

g
 /

 

d
iv

e
rs

io
n

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

(f
ro

n
t 

e
n
d
) 

a
n
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 

c
o
s
ts

 a
re

 n
o
t 

fu
lly

O
B

C
 i
s
 

d
e
la

y
e
d
 i
f 

m
o
re

 w
o
rk

 i
s
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 t

o
 

g
e
n
e
ra

te
 t

h
is

 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
.

If
 t

h
e
 O

B
C

 i
s
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d

w
it
h
o
u
t 

th
is

 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n

b
e
in

g
 f

u
lly

 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

,

W
A

G
 m

a
y
 

re
je

c
t

th
e

4
3

1
2

E
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

w
it
h
 t

e
c
h
n
ic

a
l 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
ts

, 
a
n
d
 d

is
c
u
s
s
io

n
s
 w

it
h
 

te
c
h
n
ic

a
l 
o
ff

ic
e
rs

.

P
D

/P
M

U
n
ti
l 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 f

ro
m

 p
a
rt

n
e
r 

a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 i
t 

is
 n

o
t 

k
n
o
w

 w
h
a
t 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

w
o
rk

 w
ill

 

b
e
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
.

P
M

4
2

8

N
o
v
-0

9

A
p
r-

1
0

4
0
2
8
2

P
D

1
3

D
e
la

y
 i
n
 

p
ro

d
u
c
ti
o
n
/a

p
p
ro

v
a
l 
o
f 

O
B

C

P
o
s
s
ib

le

d
e
la

y
 t

o
 

p
ro

je
c
t

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
,

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
lo

s
s
 

o
f 

W
A

G
 

fu
n
d
in

g
, 

L
A

S
 

c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

c
o
s
ts

in
c
u
rr

e
d

4
3

0

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
, 

ta
s
k
s
 a

llo
c
a
te

d
 

a
n
d
 W

A
G

 s
u
p
p
lie

d
 w

it
h
 a

p
p
ro

v
a
ls

 

ti
m

e
lin

e
 f

o
r 

p
a
rt

n
e
r 

a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
. 

A
p
p
ro

v
a
ls

 a
ll 

m
a
d
e
 i
n
 t

im
e
 f

o
r 

s
u
b
m

is
io

n
 o

f 
O

B
C

 t
o
 W

A
G

P
a
rt

n
e
r 

a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

a
d
e
q
u
a
te

 

s
e
n
io

r 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 g
iv

e
n
 t

o
 

a
p
p
ro

v
a
ls

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s

, 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 D

i
4

0
0

O
n
g
o
in

g

S
e
p
-1

0

P
D

1
4

D
e
la

y
 i
n
 

p
ro

d
u
c
ti
o
n
/a

p
p
ro

v
a
l 
o
f 

in
te

r-

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

a
g
re

e
m

e
n
t

P
o
s
s
ib

le

d
e
la

y
 t

o
 

p
ro

je
c
t

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
,

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
lo

s
s
 

o
f 

W
A

G
 

fu
n
d
in

g
, 

L
A

S
 

c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

c
o
s
ts

in
c
u
rr

e
d

3
3

0

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
, 

ta
s
k
s
 a

llo
c
a
te

d
 

a
n
d
 W

A
G

 s
u
p
p
lie

d
 w

it
h
 a

p
p
ro

v
a
ls

 

ti
m

e
lin

e
 f

o
r 

p
a
rt

n
e
r 

a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
. 

P
a
rt

n
e
r 

a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

a
d
e
q
u
a
te

 

s
e
n
io

r 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 g
iv

e
n
 t

o
 

a
p
p
ro

v
a
ls

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s

, 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 D

i
3

0
0

O
n
g
o
in

g

S
e
p
-1

0

P
D

1
7

O
B

C

re
je

c
te

d
 b

y
 

W
A

G
 (

d
u
e
 t

o
 

o
m

is
s
io

n
s
,

to
o
 m

u
c
h
 

c
o
m

p
e
ti
ti
o
n

fr
o
m

 o
th

e
r 

a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
)

P
o
s
s
ib

le

d
e
la

y
 t

o
 

p
ro

je
c
t

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
,

L
A

S

c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

c
o
s
ts

in
c
u
rr

e
d
.

3
3

9

O
B

C
 f

o
llo

w
s
 W

A
G

 g
u
id

a
n
c
e
. 

R
e
g
u
la

r 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 w

it
h
 W

A
G

 a
n
d
 i
n
p
u
t 

fr
o
m

 

P
U

K
 t

ra
n
s
a
c
to

r.

P
D

3
0

0

O
n
g
o
in

g

S
e
p
-1

0

P
S

1
1

P
u
b
lic

o
p
p
o
s
it
io

n
 t

o
 

te
c
h
n
ic

a
l

s
o
lu

ti
o
n
/p

la
n

n
in

g

a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n

in
c
lu

d
in

g

le
g
a
l

c
h
a
lle

n
g
e

D
e
la

y
s
 t

o
 

p
ro

je
c
t

d
e
liv

e
ry

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
,

e
x
c
e
s
s
iv

e

L
A

S

p
e
n
a
lt
ie

s
,

a
ff

o
rd

a
b
ili

ty

e
n
v
e
lo

p
e

th
re

a
te

n
e
d
.

4
5

2
0

A
c
ti
v
e
 s

ta
k
e
h
o
ld

e
r 

a
n
d
 c

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 p

la
n
.

P
M

4
4

1
6

O
n
g
o
in

g

S
e
p
-1

0

C
lo

s
e
d
 -

 

th
is

 i
s
 a

 

d
u
p
lic

a
te

o
f 

C
O

4

Page 41



T
4
b

P
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t

d
e
la

y
s
 l
e
a
d
 

to
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 

p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t

c
o
s
ts

 (
d
u
e
 t

o
 

e
x
te

n
d
e
d

A
p
p
ro

v
a
ls

p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
)

L
A

's
 s

e
e
k
 

a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l

fu
n
d
in

g
 o

r 

w
it
h
d
ra

w

3
3

9

P
ID

 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
s
 p

ro
je

c
te

d
 t

im
e
lin

e
 a

n
d
 

k
e
y
 d

e
c
is

io
n
 p

o
in

ts
.

P
D

P
D

3
3

9

O
n
g
o
in

g

S
e
p
-1

1

4
0
7
8
7

C
L
O

S
E

D

D
u
p
lic

a
te

o
f 

F
2

Page 42



Definition of Risk

High 5 (W) 10 (W) 15 (M) 20 (M) 25 (M) M Mitigate

Medium / 

High
4 (W) 8 (W) 12 (M) 16 (M) 20 (M)

Medium 3 (A) 6 (W) 9 (W) 12 (M) 15 (M) W Watch

Low

/Medium
2 (A) 4 (A) 6 (W) 8 (W) 10 (M)

Low 1 (A) 2 (A) 3 (A) 4 (W) 5 (W) A Accept

Low
Low

/Medium
Medium

Medium / 

High
High

Likelyhood (probability of occurrence)

5 High 75% to 100%

4 Medium / High 50% to 75%

3 Medium 26% to 49%

2 Low / Medium 11% to 25%

1 Low < 10%

Impact (affect on outcome)

5 High Catastrophic

4 Medium / High Critical

3 Medium Concerning

2 Low / Medium Marginal

1 Low Negligible

Impact

L
ik

e
ly

h
o
o
d

Project Risk and Issues Register RIRPage 43



Page 44

This page is intentionally left blank



NNWWRRWWTTPP  
NNoorrtthh  WWaalleess  RReessiidduuaall  WWaassttee  TTrreeaattmmeenntt  PPrroojjeecctt    

 
AGENDA ITEM NO: 7 

 
 
REPORT TO:  NWRWTP JOINT COMMITTEE 
 
DATE:  13 DECEMBER  2012 
 
REPORT BY:   PROJECT MANAGER 
 
SUBJECT:    COMMUNICATIONS UPDATE  
 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1. To update the NWRWTP Joint Committee on communication matters 

concerning the North Wales Residual Waste Treatment Project 
(NWRWTP). 

 

2. BACKGROUND 
 
2.1. The Joint Committee has requested regular updates on communication 

matters relating to the NWRWTP. This report provides an update on 
progress to date. 
 

3. CONSIDERATIONS 
 
3.1. Press conference and announcement 
 

Following the last Joint Committee on 1 August 2012 a press conference 
was arranged announcing the names of the two remaining bidders, along 
with announcing that both bidders were proposing an energy from waste 
facility at Deeside Industrial Park. The press conference was hosted by 
Cllr Eryl Williams (Chair of the North Wales Residual Waste Joint 
Committee) and lead Chief Executive Colin Everett. The Project 
Manager, Steffan Owen and the projects communications advisor, John 
Twitchen were in attendance also. It was a well attended press 
conference, with representation from some Flintshire local press 
(Flintshire Chronicle and Flintshire Leader), as well as some regional 
press and media (BBC, ITV and Daily Post). 

 
3.2. Media Coverage 
 

Following the press conference, there was coverage regionally and 
locally in Flintshire. See appendix 1 for examples.  
 
The Project Team, Lead Chief Executive Colin Everett and Flintshire 
County Council’s Director of Environment, Carl Longland  attended a 
meeting of Connah’s Quay Town Council on 7 November 2012 to discuss 
the project. There was some coverage in the Flintshire local press 
following that meeting, which is shown in appendix 2. 

 

Agenda Item 7

Page 45



NNWWRRWWTTPP  
NNoorrtthh  WWaalleess  RReessiidduuaall  WWaassttee  TTrreeaattmmeenntt  PPrroojjeecctt    

 
3.3. Welsh Government meeting with Flintshire County Council Members 
 

Flintshire County Council Members recently invited Jasper Roberts 
(Deputy Director for Waste and Resource Efficiency) from the Welsh 
Government (WG) to talk to Members about WG’s waste strategy and 
policies, with particular regards to residual waste. Mr Roberts attended a 
meeting at County Hall in Mold on 28 November 2012, and stated his 
willingness to attend future meetings with any of the partner authorities, 
as well as local town and community councils. 

 
3.4. Member seminar with the Health Protection Agency on Energy from 

Waste facilities 
 

Dates have been set for a seminar for all partner authority Members on 
the subject of health effects from Energy from Waste Facilities. Two 
sessions will be held, one “east” at County Hall in Mold, and one “west” at 
Ty Menai (the old Technium Cast) in Bangor.  The dates are Wednesday 
6th February for the session in Mold (PM session), and Thursday 7th 
February 2012 for the Bangor session (AM session). In attendance will be 
Dr David Russell from the Health Protection Agency.  
 
An invite to the above sessions will be sent to all partner authority 
Members 
 

3.5. Communication and engagement strategy 
 
The Project Team have prepared an updated communication and 
engagement strategy for 2013 to take the project up to the appointment of 
preferred bidder. See Appendix 3. 
  

 
4. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
4.1. To note the content of this update report. 
 
4.2. To provide feedback on the draft communication and engagement 

strategy. 
 
 

5. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1. Not applicable. 

 
6. ANTI-POVERTY IMPACT 
 
6.1.   Not applicable. 
 
7. ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT 
 
7.1.  Not applicable. 
 
8. EQUALITIES IMPACT Page 46



NNWWRRWWTTPP  
NNoorrtthh  WWaalleess  RReessiidduuaall  WWaassttee  TTrreeaattmmeenntt  PPrroojjeecctt    

 
 
8.1.  Not applicable. 
 
9. PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS 
 
9.1. Not applicable. 
 
10. CONSULTATION REQUIRED 

 
10.1. See above. 
 
11. CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN 
 
11.1. Not applicable. 
 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT 1985 
 
Background Documents: 
 
None 
 
Contact Officer: Steffan Owen  NWRWTP 
 

Page 47



NNWWRRWWTTPP  
NNoorrtthh  WWaalleess  RReessiidduuaall  WWaassttee  TTrreeaattmmeenntt  PPrroojjeecctt    

 
Appendix 1- Online coverage 
BBC News website :- http://www.bbc.co.uk/news/uk-wales-north-east-wales-19341513 
ITV News coverage:- http://www.itv.com/news/wales/story/2012-08-22/deeside-site-for-
800m-waste-plant/ 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 55



Page 56

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 57



Page 58

This page is intentionally left blank



 

Appendix 3 - Communications, Consultation and Community Engagement 
Strategy for 2013 

 

December 2012  

 

1. Introduction 

 

This document sets out the North Wales Residual Waste Treatment Project’s 

(NWRWTP’s) communication and engagement activities during 2013 from post ISDS 

stage until the Preferred Bidder is appointed (this will be after all five partner 

authorities have approved the appointment following their internal approvals 

processes). 

 

The aim of the next phase of communication is to build on progress to date, and 

continue to support the NWRWTP procurement process in preparation for the 

appointment of a preferred bidder.  

 

It is essential that the NWRWTP ensures broad awareness across North Wales of 

the need for and context of the proposals for an energy from waste facility. 

 

It is equally important that NWRWTP works hard in the local host community to 

engage with opinion formers and key stakeholders, including local residents and 

nearest neighbours, to address general issues of interest/concern and identify 

specific issues that the preferred bidder will need to attend to. 

 

The table below gives an indication of the activities planned by the partnership and 

when they will be carried out. It should be noted that close and pro active liaison with 

the media will be important throughout all of the stages noted below. 

Page 59



Timescale Activity Comment 

December 
2012 

Set dates for two sessions for partner 
authority Members on health effects from 
EfW facilities. Welsh Government and 
Health Protection Agency to be present. 
One “east” session at County Hall, Mold 
and one “west” session at Bangor. 
 
Also offer individual authorities project 
updates / briefings for their Members. 
 
On going engagement with key political 
stakeholders throughout process. 
 

Dates set for 6 & 7 
February 2013 and 
venues booked. 
 
 Invites to be sent to all 
Members by 14 
December 2012. 
 
 
 
To be led by Lead Chief 
Executive, Colin Everett. 

December 
2012 

Agree dates for public drop in sessions at 
Connah’s Quay. Likely to be two 
consecutive weeks - Friday afternoon’s 
(2pm – 8pm) and Saturday’s (10am – 
4pm).   
 

Dates to be set to 
complement the Member 
sessions.  

December 
2012 

Write to Connah’s Quay Town Council 
(CQTC) to inform them of the 
Partnership’s communication and 
engagement strategy and activities 
planned for 2013.  
 
Letter to include contact details of Health 
Protection Agency to allow CQTC to 
organise their own session with them 
(independently of the NWRWTP). This to 
include proposing the setting up of a 
Community Liaison Group (CLG). 
 

Write to CQTC before 14 
December 2013 

December 
2012 

Write to other Town and Community 
Councils to offer the NWRWTP project 
team attend a meeting with them to 
update them on the project. 
 
Meetings to follow as and when required. 
 

Write prior to Christmas 
with a view to organising 
dates with other Flintshire 
Town and Community 
Council in early 2013 

January 
2013 

Write Newsletter to stakeholders on 
database with update on Project 
(timetable, informing of drop in sessions 
etc). 
 
Pro-actively propose meetings with FoE, 
TCC, Chamber of Commerce, other key 
groups. Meetings to be held as when 
required. 
 

 

Page 60



January / 
February 
2013 

Advert in press 2-3 weeks in advance of 
drop-in sessions. 

 

January / 
February 
2013 

Meet with CQTC to set up GLC – Agree 
Terms of Reference, Agendas, 
programme etc 
 

 

February 
2013 

Host Member sessions on health effects 
of EfW facilities 
 

Dates set for 6 & 7 
February 2013 at Bangor 
and County Hall, Mold. 
 

February 
2013 

Press release reminding public of drop in 
sessions, also include wider story – focus 
on project being one part of a wider 
process of change in how we manage 
our waste (Reduce, Re-use and 
Recycle). 
 

 

February 
2013 

Host public drop in sessions a Connah’s 
Quay  
 

 

February / 
March 2013 

Engage directly with Local Authorities 
and key stakeholders across the border 
in England (e.g. CHAIN – Cheshire Anti 
Incinerator Network). Pro actively 
propose meetings with relevant groups. 
 

This work will be on going 
throughout the process 
after initial engagement. 

March 2013 First meeting of CLG 
 
Further meetings of CLG will follow as 
agreed with the CLG. 
 

 

April 2013 Close of dialogue and issue of Call for 
Final Tender (CFT) 
 
Issue press release updating public on 
progress and on expected timetable. 
Also include further wider information 
such as potential local benefits. 
 

 

May / June 
2013 

Final tender evaluation and preparation 
of Final Business Case 
 

 

June 2013 Possible special pieces in local press 
(e.g. “Ask us a question” piece in local 
press where the public can submit 
questions and the partnership answer 
them (a double page spread, agreed in 
advance)). 
 

 

Page 61



August 2013 Announcement of preferred bidder 
recommendation by Joint Committee:- 

• Press conference 

• Offer of site visits for press, CLG, 
Members (all separately) to similar 
type of facility (neutral) 

• Update information pack 

• Prepare press release accompany 
above 

• Prepare and announce drop in 
sessions as part of press release 

 

 

September – 
December 
2013 

Individual partner authority approvals 
processes.  

 

September – 
December 
2013 

Site visits to similar type of facility 
(neutral) 

 

September – 
October 
2013 

Public drop in sessions across 
partnership area (more sessions in 
certain areas if required) 
 

 

January 
2014 

Announcement of preferred bidder 
appointment:- 

• Press conference 

• Update information pack (to reflect 
the fact that all partner authorities 
have approved appointment) 

• Prepare press release accompany 
above. 

 

 

The Preferred Bidder will take on an active role with regards to communication and 
engagement from their appointment onwards, working in partnership with the 
NWRWTP.  

 

 

Page 62



NNWWRRWWTTPP  
NNoorrtthh  WWaalleess  RReessiidduuaall  WWaassttee  TTrreeaattmmeenntt  PPrroojjeecctt    

 

 1 

AGENDA ITEM NO: 8 
 

REPORT TO:  NWRWTP JOINT COMMITTEE 
 
DATE:  13th DECEMBER 2012 
 
REPORT BY:   PROJECT DIRECTOR 
 
SUBJECT:    PROCURMENT UPDATE REPORT  
 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1. To update the Joint Committee on progress relating to procurement aspects 

of the NWRWTP. 

 

2. BACKGROUND 
 
2.1. The NWRWTP project team have been in extensive dialogue with the two 

remaining participants since the NWRWTP Joint Committee de-selection 
decision in August 2012. As part of this process the NWRWTP Project 
Director has reviewed the procurement programme and the latest update is 
described within this report. 
 

2.2. The Joint Committee will be aware that the project team has been tasked to 
review the potential opportunities for providing some form of community 
benefit scheme that may be appropriate to support the delivery of the 
project. On aspect that the project team were specifically addressing was to 
explore any benefits that could be derived from utilisation of heat produced 
by a potential energy from waste facility at Deeside. To this end a specialist 
district heating consultant was appointed to assess the potential 
opportunities for developing a heat network in the Deeside area and to 
assess its viability. This work has not yet completed but a presentation is to 
be made by Cofely District Energy Ltd to accompany this report with the 
intention of providing some initial findings to the Joint Committee. 

 
2.3.  At the Joint Committee meeting of 1st August 2012 there was a discussion 

relating to particulate monitoring that could be enhanced above that 
required by the Waste Incineration Directive (this directive sets all the 
emission limits that any operator of a waste incinerator must meet and 
therefore what it must monitor to ensure compliance).  Members from 
Flintshire County particularly wished to see if additional particulate 
monitoring could be carried out for very small particulates (PM 2.5). The 
project team agreed to engage with both Participants to explore this more 
fully.   The outcome of these discussions set out in section 4.3 of this report.  
 
 
 
 

 

Agenda Item 8

Page 63



NNWWRRWWTTPP  
NNoorrtthh  WWaalleess  RReessiidduuaall  WWaassttee  TTrreeaattmmeenntt  PPrroojjeecctt    

 

 2 

3. CONSIDERATIONS 
 

Procurement programme 
 

3.1.  The project team and its external advisors have been in detailed 
discussions and dialogue with the two remaining Participants in the 
procurement process. The project team has made clear to both participants 
what level of detail it will require and surety in commercial positions before 
the Partnership would consider closing dialogue. Participants have as a 
result informed the project team that they would not be in a position to 
provide all information and close all issues by the original timetable. The 
proposed amended timetable is shown at Appendix 1. The project team 
now expects the commercial issues to have been completed by the end of 
this year with a few matters requiring finalisation in January 2013 (and 
potentially into early February 2013).   
 

3.2. As a result the Joint Committee in February 2013 will now be provisionally 
programmed to consider close of dialogue for the project. Welsh 
Government gateway review (readiness to close dialogue would be 
programmed for February to March 2013). Call for final tender would expect 
to be issued in April 2013. The Project team will continue to keep the 
timetable under review. 
 

3.3. The original programme allowed 6 weeks for participants to ready their final 
tender submissions. Participants have indicated however that their 
submissions would be fundamentally ready for call for final tender and they 
are only likely to require 2- 3 weeks. The programme has been adjusted to 
reflect this. A further update on the programme will be brought to the 
February 2013 Joint Committee.  
 
 
Update on progress in exploring options for a Community Benefit 
Scheme 
 

3.4. It is not unusual for community benefit schemes (CBS) to be introduced in 
conjunction with large high profile developments, e.g. renewable energy 
schemes, major pipelines or highway improvements, large waste projects, 
etc. In some cases these CBS are covered by a section 106 planning 
agreement; in others the benefit is provided by the developer or via a fund 
put up voluntarily by the developers. In all of those circumstances, the CBS 
is not offered as compensation for allowing the development to proceed, nor 
does it imply that the development has an adverse impact on those 
communities. It is merely recognition that one area or community is being 
asked to host a development which serves a much wider catchment. 

 
3.5. The project team has carried out an initial review of the types of schemes 

that have been considered or proposed in the UK to date on similar 
schemes. Two potential types of schemes were considered by the Project 
board of having the most merit. These were: 

 
 

Page 64



NNWWRRWWTTPP  
NNoorrtthh  WWaalleess  RReessiidduuaall  WWaassttee  TTrreeaattmmeenntt  PPrroojjeecctt    

 

 3 

 
 

3.6. A) “One off” capital provision with potentially an ongoing revenue 
provision for maintenance upkeep. This can be for things such as youth 
facilities, play areas or other community type projects. Typically a local 
community liaison group would be set up to assist in identifying priorities for 
such funding. 
 

3.7. At the July 2012 Project Board, the Project Transactor confirmed that 
informal consultations with within Local Partnerships had indicated that for 
similar types of projects a capital value of £250k with a ongoing review 
contribution of circa £50k pa had been seen on some other projects. The 
Project Transactor briefed the Project board on 12th July on further 
investigations that had been carried out in relation to what had been seen in 
other similar projects in the UK. The Project Transactor informed the project 
board that the figures previously reported (e.g. £250k capital and circa £50k 
pa revenue) were the normal amounts seen, but the majority of projects had 
no proposed community benefit scheme. The Project board meet again in 
January 2013 and seeking to agree a position on this for the Joint 
Committee’s consideration will be a key matter for that meeting.  

 
3.8. The Project team would also like to bring to the Joint Committee’s attention 

that is has received confirmation from WG that dependant on the exact 
nature of the proposals, WG will consider counting such costs within the 
calculation for WG’s review support (i.e. could be subject to WG’s 25% 
review support).  T 
 
 

3.9. B) The setting up of a joint venture ESCO (energy services company) 
for the provision of heat to local residents and / or 3rd sector /public 
buildings. There is the potential for the Partnership to enter into a joint 
venture with an energy provider to form an ESCO, that would then contract 
with the Partnership’s waste contractor for the purchase of heat for 
distribution to residential customers (such as for instance the new housing 
potentially being developed as part of the Northern Gateway Project and 
that will contain a high proportion of social housing or shared ownership 
housing). Such heat provision could significantly reduce the heating cost of 
those households receiving the heat in comparison to conventional heating 
systems. If a heat distribution system was developed there would also be 
opportunities to supply heat to 3rd sector or public buildings (such as 
community or leisure centres etc).  

 
4. The project team were instructed to proceed with securing additional 

specialist technical support for carrying out a heat distribution feasibility 
study looking at the potential benefits that could be accrued if the NWRWTP 
project were to supply energy in the form of heat to potential users located 
in the Deeside area..  
 

4.1. The study is intended to identify whether a heat distribution scheme is 
technically deliverable, financially viable and importantly for the purposes of 
providing community benefit can reduce costs for those potential heat 

Page 65



NNWWRRWWTTPP  
NNoorrtthh  WWaalleess  RReessiidduuaall  WWaassttee  TTrreeaattmmeenntt  PPrroojjeecctt    

 

 4 

users. This work has not yet completed but a presentation is to be made by 
Cofely District Energy Ltd to accompany this report with the intention of 
providing some initial findings to the Joint Committee. 

 
 
4.2. Two other types of scheme were also considered at the Project Board’s 

meeting of 12th July but were not seen as deliverable as the other potential 
schemes. The project team agreed to monitor development and keep under 
review. A summary of any further work is set out below:- 

 

• The setting up of a joint venture ESCO (energy services company) for 
provision of electricity to local residents. There is the potential for the 
Partnership to enter into a joint venture with an electricity provider to form an 
ESCO, that would then contract with the Partnership’s waste contractor for a 
better than market electricity rate (with resulting savings being passed onto 
end users).  This is usually considered when a local authority wishes to 
purchase energy for its own use (such as for council buildings etc).  However 
it could potentially also be used to allow purchase of electricity for sale to 
residential users.  The Project team thought it prudent to ask the two 
participants to provide their views of the deliverability of such a scheme. Both 
the participants clearly stated that to set up such a scheme would be very 
complex and costly for such a relatively small number of potential 
beneficiaries. Significant regulatory barriers also exist that may well preclude 
the development of such arrangements. No further work on this area is 
therefore suggested. 
 

 
Particulate Monitoring (PM 2.5) Requirements   
 

4.3. Please see Appendix 2 for a paper describing normal monitoring relating to 
particulates for waste to energy facilities (incineration).  
 

4.4. Waste to energy facilities like all combustion processes emits particulates. 
The smallest particulates are classified as PM 2.5 (that is particulates of 2.5 
µm and below). PM2.5 is simply a sub-set of Total Particulate Matter (TPM) 
that is continually monitored at such facilities. Therefore although PM2.5 
concentrations are not specifically reported, they are still collected and 
monitored as part of these tests. So, for instance, if the TPM result was 5 
mg/m3, we would know that PM2.5 emissions could be no greater than 5 
mg/m3, since this value is the concentration of all particle sizes, and PM2.5 
only makes up a certain proportion of all monitored particle sizes.  

 
4.5. The Project Director also wishes to remind the Joint Committee that the 

approved information pack included information that clearly showed that 
although maximum emission levels are set by the Waste Incineration 
Directive, in practice most modern incinerators typically operate at levels 
considerably below this. For instance typical modern waste to energy 
facilities operate at only 20% or less than their emission limit. The Project 
Board are  also asked to note that Energy from Waste facilities have 
emission limits as set out by the Waste Incineration Directive of 10mg/m3 
for particulates whilst for example a cement kiln has a higher limit of 

Page 66



NNWWRRWWTTPP  
NNoorrtthh  WWaalleess  RReessiidduuaall  WWaassttee  TTrreeaattmmeenntt  PPrroojjeecctt    

 

 5 

18mg/m3. Thus waste energy facilities are already high performing 
industrial processes in terms of particulates. The table from the 
Partnership’s information pack is reproduced below.  

 
4.6. Figure 4.6 

 

 
 

 
4.7. Despite the fact that PM 2.5 is measured as part of measuring overall 

particulate levels, in order to address some members concerns, both 
Participants were required to bring forward their proposals for specific 
PM2.5 monitoring.  Both participants have indicated that as part of their 
permit requirements they are required to carry out additional emissions 
tests (twice yearly) to the continuous on-line measurements. This is carried 
out by using the required sample point located in the stack to extract 
samples for further laboratory analysis of a suite of compounds. Although 
specific PM2.5 particle size analysis is not currently required under permit, 
both Participants have confirmed that they would include the additional 
analysis of PM2.5 particulates emissions as part of our regular twice yearly 
sampling regime. Therefore the NWRWTP’s contractor would be able to 
produce data showing what PM2.5 particulates were being emitted. The 
costs of this additional monitoring and analysis are marginal (estimated total 
costs at circa £4k pa).  
 
Please note that it is the intention in early 2013 to offer a meeting open to 
all members of partner authorities at which a specialist representative of the 
Heath Protection Agency (HPA) will attend. The aim of the meeting is to 
allow detailed questioning of the HPA from members in relation to 

Page 67



NNWWRRWWTTPP  
NNoorrtthh  WWaalleess  RReessiidduuaall  WWaassttee  TTrreeaattmmeenntt  PPrroojjeecctt    

 

 6 

emissions from energy from waste facilities.  The HPA representative will be 
able to brief member directly on the facts and their position in relation to air 
emissions arising from waste to energy facilities.   

 
5. RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
5.1. To note the content of this report. 
 
5.2. To agree the proposed way forward for ensuring PM2.5 particulates 

emissions are specifically monitored within the NWRWTP solution. 
 
 
6. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
6.1. See section 3.7 to 3.10 within this report. 

 
7. ANTI-POVERTY IMPACT 
 
7.1. If affordable heat can be provided to social housing and low income 

households this will reduce fuel poverty. 
 
8. ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT 
 
8.1. Significant environmental benefits if heat usage can be secured from the 

Northern Gateway Development. 
 
9. EQUALITIES IMPACT 
 
9.1.  Not applicable. 
 
10. PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS 
 
10.1. Not applicable. 
 
11. CONSULTATION REQUIRED 

 
11.1. See above. 
 
12. CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN 
 
12.1. Not applicable. 
 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT 1985 
 
Background Documents: 
 
None 
 
Contact Officer: Stephen Penny - NWRWTP Project Director  

Page 68



NNWWRRWWTTPP  
NNoorrtthh  WWaalleess  RReessiidduuaall  WWaassttee  TTrreeaattmmeenntt  PPrroojjeecctt    

 

 7 

Appendix 1 Programme 
 
JC meeting to confirm agreement to close dialogue 

(projected to be ready for this date but subject to review)     20/02/2013 

WAG Readiness review (readiness to close dialogue) 30 days  Feb 2013 Mar 2013 

Issue Call For Final Tender + Close CD     April 2013 

Final tender submission   April 2013 

Final Evaluation / Fine Tuning 4 wks Apr 2013 May 2013 

Project Board Meeting to approve PB Appointment, FBC & 

IAA2     Jul 2013 

JC approve preferred bidder, FBC and IAA2     Aug 2013 

Individual authority approved bidder & FBC & Contract 

award approvals 80 days Aug 2013 Dec 2013 

All partner authority approvals in place     Dec 2013 

Gateway review 3 – Investment Decision (WAG approval of 

FBC) 20 days Dec 2013  Jan 2014 

All FBC & PB approvals complete      Jan 2014 

JC approval of Contract award     Jan 2014 

Planning Application    April 2014 

Construction Period (Treatment) 700 days  Mar 2015 Nov 2017 

Construction period 30 mons May 2015  Sep 2017 

Commissioning (waste accepted at facility) 3 mons  Sep 2017 Nov 2017 

Facility fully available     Nov 2017 

 
 
 
 

Page 69



NNWWRRWWTTPP  
NNoorrtthh  WWaalleess  RReessiidduuaall  WWaassttee  TTrreeaattmmeenntt  PPrroojjeecctt    

 

 8 

Appendix 3 PM2.5 Emissions from Energy 
Recovery Facilities 

What is PM2.5? 
Particulate matter (PM) is a term used to describe all suspended solid material in 
air. PM can range in size from a few hundred microns (usually referred to as ‘grit’ 
or ‘dust’) to less than one micron (commonly referred to as ‘ultra-fine particles’ or 
‘nano-particles’). 1 micron is equal to one millionth of a metre, or 1 micrometre 
(1µm). As a comparison, 100µm is the average width of a human hair, whilst 6-
8µm is the diameter of a red blood cell. PM2.5 refers to all particles that have a 
diameter less than or equal to 2.5µm.  
 
PM2.5 occurs due to emissions from both natural and man-made sources. 
Natural sources include sea spray/salt and natural fires, whilst man-made 
sources usually derive from transport and domestic and industrial combustion. 
 
Why is PM2.5 Important? 
Long-term and short-term exposure to PM in air we breathe is consistently 
associated with a range of ill health effects (Defra, 2007). Recent reviews by the 
Committee on the Medical Effects of Air Pollutants (COMEAP) suggest PM2.5 is 
primarily responsible for such effects due to its smaller size, meaning it is able to 
enter deep into the lungs (COMEAP, 2009, 2010).  
 
How is PM2.5 Regulated? 
PM2.5 emissions from energy recovery facilities are currently regulated in 
England and Wales through the Waste Incineration Directive (WID). Prior to any 
energy recovery facility commencing operation, the operators of that plant will 
need to apply to the Environment Agency for an environmental permit. The 
Environment Agency will only issue a permit if the operator can demonstrate that 
emissions of total PM from the stack (i.e., inclusive of PM2.5) will not exceed a 
certain concentration, known as an emission limit value (ELV)1. Additionally, they 
will need to demonstrate that when emissions from the stack are mixed with 
ambient air, the concentration of PM2.5 in the air breathed in at nearby populated 
areas does not exceed a certain concentration known as an Air Quality Standard 
(AQS)2. This standard is set at both an EU and UK level and is set at a level that 
protects human health.  
 
How are Emissions of PM2.5 Monitored? 
WID only requires that concentrations of total PM (TPM) be monitored and 
reported at an energy recovery facility (i.e., concentrations of all particle sizes 
including PM2.5). Currently, there is no specific requirement to report PM2.5 
separate from this total figure. However, as PM2.5 is simply a sub-set of TPM, 
although PM2.5 concentrations are not reported, they are still collected and 

                                                 
1
 The current ELV for TPM is 30mg/m

3
 as a maximum 30-minute average concentration, and 10 mg/m

3
 as 

a maximum daily average concentration. 
2
 The statutory AQS for PM2.5 is 25µg/m

3
 as an annual average concentration which must be met at all 

locations in the UK by 2015. 

Page 70



NNWWRRWWTTPP  
NNoorrtthh  WWaalleess  RReessiidduuaall  WWaassttee  TTrreeaattmmeenntt  PPrroojjeecctt    

 

 9 

monitored as part of these tests. So, for instance, if the TPM result was 5 
mg/m3, we would know that PM2.5 emissions could be no greater than 5 mg/m3, 
since this value is the concentration of all particle sizes, and PM2.5 only makes 
up a certain proportion of all monitored particle sizes. 
 
TPM emissions from energy recovery facilities are monitored using a 
combination of techniques. During periodic tests, particles collect on a filter, and 
the filter is weighed before and after the test to calculate the total concentration 
of all particle diameters present in the stack emissions as a single figure. The 
filter collects all particle sizes with a high degree of efficiency3, including PM2.5, 
and this has been conclusively demonstrated from recent peer reviewed 
research on particulate emissions from Italian energy recovery facilities 
(Buonanno et al, 2012).  
 
Many new plants now automatically, and continuously, publish data from their 
CEMS unit via a dedicated internet site, allowing regulators and members of the 
public to view current and historical emission levels in near real-time. Regardless 
of whether or not a plant makes data available in real time, operators are 
required to submit quarterly and annual summary reports of monitored data to 
the Environment Agency. These reports are then placed on the public register 
and available for viewing by members of the public.       
 
 
 
 
 
 
References 
Buonanno, G., Scungio, M., Stabile, L. and Tirler, W., 2012. ‘Ultrafine Particulate 
Emission from Incinerators: the Role of the Fabric Filter.’ Journal of the Air and 
Waste Management Association, 62:1, 103-111. 
COMEAP 2009. ‘Long-term Exposure to Air Pollution: Effect on Mortality’. 
COMEAP, 2010. ‘The Mortality Effects of Long-Term Exposure to Particulate Air 
Pollution in the United Kingdom.’  
Defra, 2007. ‘The Air Quality Strategy for England, Scotland, Wales and Northern 
Ireland.’ 
Environment Agency, 2009. ‘How to Comply with your Environmental Permit: 
Additional Guidance for the Incineration of Waste (EPR 5.01)’. 
 

 

 

 

This appendix extracted from a note provided by the partnership’s 
external technical advisors Amec. 
 
 

                                                 
3
 Up to 99.5% for particles with a diameter of 0.3µm or more 

Page 71



Page 72

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Approval of Previous Minutes
	5 Progress Report (SO Report)
	6 RIR - Risk Status Update (SP Report)
	Agenda Item 6 - Appendix

	7 Communications Update (SO Report)
	Agenda Item 7 - Appendix 1
	Agenda Item 7 - Appendix 2
	Agenda Item 7 - Appendix 2 (b)
	Agenda Item 7 - Appendix 3

	8 Procurement Update Report (SP Report)

